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CORPORATE PROFILE
157

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited (“SCE
CM" or the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries, (collectively,
the “Group”) have been principally engaged in the provision of
property management services since 2003 and its shares were listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) in July 2021 (Stock Code: 606). The Company is a
subsidiary of China SCE Group Holdings Limited (“China SCE
Holdings”, together with its subsidiaries but excluding the Group, the
“China SCE Group”) (Stock Code: 1966). The Group's principal
activities comprise two major segments, namely commercial property
management and operational services and residential property
management services. The Company is headquartered in Shanghai for
its business operations and its services cover the West Taiwan Strait
Economic Zone, the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, the Bohai
Rim Economic Zone, the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area and the Central Western Region.

The Group had a large contracted property management portfolio
encompassing 62 cities across 19 provinces, municipalities and
autonomous regions in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") as
at 31 December 2023, including Anhui, Beijing, Chongging, Fujian,
Guangdong, Hebei, Henan, Hunan, Jiangsu, Jiangxi, Liaoning,
Shandong, Shanxi, Shaanxi, Shanghai, Sichuan, Tianjin, Yunnan and
Zhejiang. The Group’s commercial property management services
segment and residential property management services segment were
awarded the “Outstanding Intelligent Commercial Operator in 2023"
and 2023 Top 100 Property Management Companies in China” by
winshang.com and China Index Academy, respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 262 and 192 contracted
projects and projects under management (including both commercial
and residential), respectively, with a total contracted gross floor area
("GFA") of approximately 48.1 million square meters (“sq.m.”) and a
total GFA under management of approximately 29.9 million sq.m.
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Executive Directors
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Mr. Zheng Quanlou

Ms. Ku Weihong

Non-executive Director
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kwan Kwong Cho
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Lun (Chairman)
Mr. Ding Zuyu
Mr. Wang Yongping

AUDITOR

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO HONG KONG LAWS
Chiu & Partners

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND
HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

5/F, SCE Tower

No. 2, Lane 1688, Shenchang Road
Honggiao Business District, Shanghai
China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 2801, Hysan Place
500 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong
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CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.
China Construction Bank Corporation

Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: ir_cm@sce-icm.com

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 606

COMPANY WEBSITE

WWW.Sce-icm.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Y BiEE E

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

BERME

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—BHLEE

Increase/
2023 2022 (decrease)
—R== —E-= #n/Crd)
RMB’000 RMB’'000 (%)
AR%¥TR ARBEFT
Revenue gz 1,247,682 1,182,371 5.5
Gross profit EM 409,739 429,958 4.7)
Gross profit margin RS 32.8% 36.4% (3.6 percentage
points)
(B.6EDEH)
Profit attributable to owners of BRRHA AEGER
the parent 257,048 208,069 23.5
Earnings per share BRREF
— Basic and diluted — ARG E#E RMB12.9 cents RMB10.0 cents
AR®1295 AR%100%5 29.0
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL R REE
POSITION
31 December 31 December Increase/
2023 2022 (decrease)
—E_=F —E-
+=-—A=+—-H +=—A=+—H 0, CRid)
RMB’000 RMB'000 (%)
AR TR ARETFT
Total assets BEME 3,396,339 3,184,944 6.6
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITERE R 1,157,372 2,227,290 (48.0)
Total liabilities =N (719,886) (596,984) 20.6
Total equity R 2,676,453 2,587,960 3.4

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the results
of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

BENRE:

RARAREAEBRHE_ZT_=F+_H
=T HIEFENESE -
Wong Lun, Chairman
=R, /5 hung
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YEAR IN REVIEW 2023

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group achieved revenue
of approximately RMB1,247.7 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 5.5%; gross profit margin was 32.8%; and
profit attributable to owners of the parent amounted to
approximately RMB257.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 23.5%. Basic earnings per share amounted to
approximately RMB12.9 cents.

Annual Report 2023
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) does not
recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2023.

In respect of commercial property management and operational
services, the Group consecutively completed the opening of three
shopping malls in 2023, namely Beijing West Chang’an SCE Funworld,
Tangshan SCE Funworld and Shantou SCE Funworld. Specifically, as
the first innovative outlet city transit-oriented development (“TOD")
project of SCE CM, Beijing West Chang’an SCE Funworld successfully
completed its opening with the number of visitors exceeding 200,000
on the opening day. In addition, Tangshan SCE Funworld was the first
project of SCE CM that was not developed by the China SCE Group,
which introduced over 80% of the first shop brands with more than
150,000 visitors on the opening day, bringing a further upgrade on
the city’s commercial prosperity. Furthermore, Shantou SCE Funworld,
the second commercial project of the Group in Guangdong, attracted
over 80% of the first shop brands and more than 250,000 visitors on
the opening day. Such outstanding performance represented a
commercial highlight in eastern Guangdong. As at 31 December
2023, the total number of commercial properties under management
of the Group was 19, which included 13 SCE Funworlds and six office
buildings.

The Group has embraced the latest market trends, targeted consumer
preferences with accuracy, and created the best city shopping
experience by organising exclusively customised events. In 2023, the
Group connected various SCE Funworlds and launched a variety of
diverse events, such as the SCE Funworld’s “Trendy Unboxing” event,
during the Mid-Autumn Festival and National Day period which
resulted in an increase of more than 50% year-on-year in the number
of visitors, representing a new high in city consumption. During the
three-day period around New Year's Eve, the number of visitors had a
year-on-year increase of 100% at the marketing activities of SCE
Funworld’'s “Modern New Year's Eve”. In addition, in order to create
a holiday atmosphere, the Group enhanced the linkage among
merchants, internationally renowned brands, celebrity concerts and
intangible cultural heritage, and utilised city marketing to bring a
whole new experience to consumers, thereby establishing emotional
connection with consumers. Moreover, we created customised
marketing content with both traditional humanistic characteristics and
fashionable elements to gain a more dynamic momentum in
consumption for city commercial development.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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In 2023, SCE CM continued to uphold “Digital Intelligence
Empowerment” as its major strategic guideline, through applying
advanced digital technology to refined operations, in order to improve
business quality and efficiency. The Group conducted a
comprehensive upgrade on the online digital mall version 3.0,
expanding services such as “Pay with Points” and “SCE Shopping
Card” to all SCE Funworlds, providing consumers with a better
consumption experience and improvement on brand performance.
Moreover, The Group upgraded online sales marketing platforms to
link with offline business, with “Local Services” content section
introduced, and accurately redirected to proper applications.
According to available data, the membership application homepage
received more than 7.6 million visits annually, while the number of
marketing search exposure of the digital marketing platform and the
number of usages of cross-marketing of electronic coupons in
transactions have exceeded 70 million and 420,000, respectively. In
addition, the Group had in-depth connections with third-party
platforms and recorded a single recruitment of more than 100,000
new members. Meanwhile, the Group further deepened the operation
of private domain traffic for members. The “Private Domain
Members” for the year who were able to be contacted at any time
accounted for more than 13%. As at 31 December 2023, the total
number of members of the SCE Funworld applications exceeded 3
million, and the accumulative membership growth was approximately
40% year-on-year.

In view of the sluggish development of the industry over the past few
years, in order to diversify business risks and reduce the current
reliance on a single business in the property management industry,
the Group successfully acquired Beijing West Chang’an SCE Funworld.
The consideration for this acquisition was approximately RMB1,090
million. The Board believes that the discount for this acquisition was
considerably attractive. Taking into account that the occupancy rate
of the shopping mall was almost 100% at the end of December this
year, and that the tenants of the shopping mall currently include 200
shops, who had already entered into lease agreements for a term
ranging from one to 15 years, the Board was confident in the
prospects of the shopping mall. Leveraging the existing resources and
property management expertise of the Group, the Board held a firm
belief that the acquisition would bring long-term and stable rental
income to the Group and enhance the Group's profitability.
Furthermore, expanding into shopping mall operations would help
the Group reduce the operating risks of reliance on a single business
and avoid potential risks arising from the development of any new
unrelated businesses. When the operation of that shopping mall
matures, the Group will identify other acquisition targets to further
expand new business.

Annual Report 2023
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHE

In terms of residential property management services, the Group is
committed to uncovering service potential and developing diversified
value-added services. The Group adheres to its principle of “We Build
to Inspire”, and creates a hierarchical service system of “Caring but
not Disturbing” based on product positioning and the diversified
needs of property owners. Through the enhancement of standardised
services and the improvement of information construction, the Group
has established a “Warm, Healthy and Happy” living ecosystem, and
committed to taking the lead in building a harmonious community. At
the same time, the Group has promoted the integration of sentiments
into service details, successively launched and gradually improved
various service models such as “ Life Butler Service”, “Hotel Service”
and “One-stop Service” in order to provide residents and developers
with a more satisfactory service experience. Meanwhile, a variety of
business operations and exquisite residence services were developed
vigorously. Of which, the revenue in exquisite residence services
increased significantly by 551% from approximately RMB5.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB33.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2023, to further expand our
business forms and extend service scenarios, create value for residents
and developers. Furthermore, the Group has relied on its own
financial advantages, brand and service management capabilities to
further enhance the scale of management, create a new service value
chain, and comprehensively enhance the sense of happiness in living.

OUTLOOK

The opening of various SCE Funworlds has demonstrated the strength
in tenant sourcing by using the brand and professional operation of
SCE CM, which is the result of the Group’s commitment in the
“Scaling up with Quality Development” as well as a milestone for SCE
CM'’s "Quiality Delivery”. In 2024, the Group will usher in the opening
of more high-quality projects, such as Huagiao SCE Funworld and
Fuzhou SCE Funworld. For city TOD projects, the Group will conduct a
comprehensive upgrade in project positioning, commercial content
and scene experience. In particular, Huagiao SCE Funworld will be the
second innovative outlet project under management of SCE CM. The
Group will continue to develop benchmark projects with more brands
and more cost-effective commercial content to further enhance our
differentiated competitiveness and influence in the industry.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

TREEERRBERERARF

EEEVHEERRBIE  NEBRIRE
ZRG B BEREZTEOEERG A&
EREAEEECHNET MEREEER
ERERTEMEREFZ TR THEIRLL
M EI N RRBER - BBFEELCRE
FREREFEEENTSE  AEBEENA
B f2F - SLEINFRETEERE AR
RAMEMLEASIEE - HRK - NEE
FEBIERERARSMAE - LB HERIES
EE[EEERARE] - DEEXRSE ] R[—
IR | ERBER - BRAERPRERER
REFRENRGER RANKXIRERZE
LEEBRERERLE  Hf  EERBHUK
GREE_E-_—_F+_A=+—HILFE
MOARESI0BITRIE EFASS1% EEHES
T =FF+ A=+ —HLEFENHARE
0.332187L © #E— R EEBF L RIEHIRK
Ha REFPRERGAIGEER LWEREAR
FNESEDR mEENINKREEERE
E-SRATERE TERBEEENE
A EERABREEERK-

REE

ZREFPHRERBOAEZR BRTHES
BRAMTIEREREINEENESEE
RAEETHETMEEERELERE] W
MR TRFHREE SEE2 LB INERE -
T _NF - AEEBOREZELEE N
FIZE » UNTERG AP BE tE SR AN A8 I A BA SR
YERWMATODIEE - AEEEAIER TAL -
PMEANRMBESER FETE2EAL 55
EEBTBERRERPBEIEEENE =
EAIFRFIER #EUS REENS HEE
LR EERNRITERITER - #E—PigmA
EHMEELBFEN  RBRATEFE S

Annual Report 2023
TEC=FFR



In 2023, the Group remained steadfast in its commitment to its
original business vision, persistently generating operational value for
merchants. Guided by the strategic pillars of “Regional Focus,
Collaborative Symbiosis, and Digital Empowerment”, the Group
maintained a focus on refined operations, cultivating a consumer-
preferred brand and highly cost-effective commercial content. The
Group consistently executed its strategic imperative of “Scaling up
with Quality Development”, thereby offering enriched, trendsetting
consumption experiences across multiple cities and consumers. As the
industry landscape continues to evolve amidst shifting consumption
patterns, the essence of business competition has progressively shifted
from “Scale Management” to “Quality Management”. Looking ahead,
the Group is poised to seize upon prevailing market trends, embedding
itself within emerging consumer paradigms, and intensifying efforts
towards departmental store within shopping mall management,
dedicating to enhance rate of return of investment projects. Through
benchmarking against excellent players in the industry, the Group
builds and enhances its differentiated operational capabilities while
maintaining a steadfast commitment to high-quality project delivery.
The Group strives to establish benchmark projects and augments the
Group's competitiveness and influence within the industry.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all the staff, shareholders, customers and partners of the
Group.

Wong Lun
Chairman

Hong Kong, China
27 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEEN=RECY S &

OVERVIEW

The Group is a service provider focusing on property management
services with operations in the West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone, the
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, the Bohai Rim Economic Zone,
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and the Central
Western Region. As at 31 December 2023, there were 39 contracted
commercial properties with a total contracted GFA of approximately
5.0 million sg.m. and 19 commercial properties under management
with a total GFA under management of approximately 2.0 million
sg.m..

The Group also provides property management services to residential
properties. As at 31 December 2023, there were 223 contracted
residential projects with a total contracted GFA of approximately 43.1
million sq.m. and 173 residential projects under management with a
total GFA under management of approximately 27.9 million sq.m..

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”), the Group
conducted business activities in the following major business
segments, namely (i) commercial property management and
operational services; and (ii) residential property management services.

HE

REEAE—RUVMEETERBE AETENRY
REN XBEMIRAFLCER  R=A
KOERE - REGEER - BERANEERF
mEE RN E-_=F+-_AF=+—H"
BEX XM R39E - @é#ﬁ%;@ﬁ?iﬁ
RS00BF A K EEMEMER/I9E

HEEREMELNR2008F 7K -

REBNTMTEMERERDETERE - R
B =F+ZA=+—H BEHEEE
B R2231E  BEAREEMBENR43108TF
FKEEFEEEA173E BAEEEER
B#HA2,7908F 5K -

EEl=

BHEZZE-_=F+-A=+—ALFE(HF
W) AEERTIEZXBS I - BIGOE
EMETENEERE  iVEEZMEETE
RRISHEITETSES -

During the Year, the Group’s revenue by business segment is as F R NEBIZREE D IS HHRALLT :
follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—BHLEE
2023 2022
—EBEC=fF g
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T
Commercial property management EEYMEER NBEERBE
and operational services 415,909 395,812
Residential property management services (£ =% % H# R 831,773 786,559
Total st 1,247,682 1,182,371

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DN

Commercial property management and operational services EEYNETERELCRS
During the Year, the Group’s commercial property management and F R KEBFEVEETE N ELRED S
operational services segment recorded total revenue of approximately ~ BIRBUW A4 A ARE 41598 7T  [A] 1 0

RMB415.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase of #J5.1% : EBEELMEEL 2008 F 5K [
approximately 5.1%; GFA under management of approximately 2.0 IR #419.1% : £ B HE £191@ - R L%
million sq.m., representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 12 1{E : 2 4R EMBHS00E F H K Rt
19.1%; the number of projects under management of 19 projects,  HEHUK D #90.2% °

representing a year-on-year increase of two projects; and contracted

GFA of approximately 5.0 million sq.m., representing a year-on-year

slight decrease of approximately 0.2%.

During the Year, the contracted GFA, GFA under management and ilﬁ CAEERWEISNEEMEERR
revenue under the Group's commercial property management and EREHENBENRERE EERER
operational services segment by geographical area are as follows: E&H&)\Eﬂéﬁiﬁlﬂ? :

Year ended 31 December

HE+-R=+-HLEFE

2023 2022
ZBC-=F S
GFA GFA
Contracted under Contracted under
GFA Management Revenue GFA Management Revenue
£H EE 4 EE
BEER BERR 0N BERE BEmE WA
sq.m. sg.m. RMB sg.m. sq.m. RMB

Fak SR ARET FA Frk ARET

(in thousands) (in thousands)
CS ) (A F3t)

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone &= A& ER 2,098 698 148,032 2,098 698 168,191
West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone K7 =48 & B 879 571 141,197 891 583 133,245
Bohai Rim Economic Zone BHEEER 739 379 92,102 739 197 54,357
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao BERKER

Greater Bay Area 611 266 12,980 611 1M 19,013
Central Western Region kil 623 112 21,598 623 112 21,006
Total @ 4,950 2,026 415,909 4,962 1,701 395,812
Annual Report 2023 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited 15
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DN

Certain information of the Group’s commercial properties under R-ZE-_=ZFK-_ZT-—"F+-_A=+—1"
management as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 is set out below: AEEEERMEMES TEHEINNAT :
Occupancy Rate GFA under Management
ki HEEEAR
As at 31 December
Mt=A=t-8
Project Opening Date Property Type Location Geographic Region 2023 2022 2023 2022
L HEAM NERY g BE SBIZE CT-_f BRIz CECCF
% % sq.m. sq.m.
FHK  FhK
Xiamen SCE Building January 2007 Office building Xiamen West Taiwan Strait 88.8 90.5 50,309 50,309
Economic Zone
ERREAERTE S BYE B BRERGER
Beijing CBD SCE Funworld September 2009 Shopping street Beijing Bohai Rim Economic Zone 87.8 88.5 54,484 54,484
LR CBD H A U ZZZNFNA Bng R RHEEEE
Quanzhou SCE Funworld May 2014 Shopping mall Quanzhou West Taiwan Strait 92.6 89.1 180,929 180,929
Economic Zone
FMPE LR “Z-MERA BNES M BRERFGER
Gala Fun December 2014 Shopping street Quanzhou \West Taiwan Strait N/A 75.0 N/A 11,729
Economic Zone
FEYS “Z-RE+ZR BYE M BRERGER TER TER
Shanghai SCE Plaza June 2017 Office building Shanghai Yangtze River Delta 100.0 100.0 218,471 218,471
Phase One Economic Zone
FEhEEs—H i Sl BYE g R=BEER
Shanghai SCE Plaza July 2018 Office building Shanghai Yangtze River Delta 70.0 756 126,525 126,525
Phase Two Economic Zone
HERRESZ ZZ-\EtA BYE i R-BEER
Quanzhou SCE Plaza August 2018 Office building Quanzhou West Taiwan Strait 86.2 87.0 45,972 45,972
Office Building Economic Zone
FMPRESETE —Z-\EN\A BYE M BRERGER
Shishi Fortune Center September 2018 Office building Quanzhou West Taiwan Strait 79.7 69.9 33,380 33,380
Economic Zone
BRAERL —2-\FNA EES M ERAREEE
Nan'an SCE Funworld December 2018 Shopping mall Quanzhou West Taiwan Strait 99.4 97.1 72,618 72,618
Economic Zone
BRPELRA ZZ-\ETZA 0 BYES M BRERFGER
Tianyue October 2020 Office building Shanghai Yangtze River Delta 80.7 752 52,499 52,499
Economic Zone
PN/ “ECTELA XS i REALEE

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DN

Occupancy Rate GFA under Management
HEE HEREER
As at 31 December
Wt=A=+-H
Project Opening Date Property Type Location Geographic Region 2023 2022 2023 2022
L HEAM NERY g e ZBIZE T--f BRIz CECCf
% % sq.m. sq.m.

$EK ok

Shuitou SCE Funworld December 2020 Shopping mall Quanzhou West Taiwan Strait 86.0 23 105,290 105,290
Economic Zone

KRR B R ZZROTETCR ENES M BRERGER

Xianyou SCE Funworld December 2020 Shopping mall Putian West Taiwan Strait 92.5 911 82,678 82,678
Economic Zone

fleh Bt 5553 ZEZEF+ZR 0 BYES B BRERLEE

Taizhou SCE Funworld December 2021 Shopping mall Taizhou Yangtze River Delta 90.8 84.2 199,625 199,625
Economic Zone

FMREE A ZEZ-F1ZR 0 BYES M R-AKEE

Heyuan SCE Funworld December 2021 Shopping mall Heyuan Guangdong-Hong Kong- 75.5 80.8 111,084 111,084
Macao Greater Bay Area

R R “E-%1ZA EnE%s R BERAER

Pingdingshan SCE Funworld December 2021 Shopping mall Pingdingshan  Central Western Region 99.2 973 111,142 11,142

TR Akt R ZZZ-F1Z4 B0ES FIEW FEBHE

Zhangjiagang SCE Funworld December 2021 Shopping mall Suzhou Yangze River Delta 97.2 99.5 100,825 100,825
Economic Zone

RHRETHL R ZZZ-F1ZR BYES M R-ARKEE

Gaomi SCE Funworld December 2022 Shopping mall Weifang Bohai Rim Economic Zone 96.9 926 143,634 143,634

BB R ZERICETCA B0Es o) REGEER

Tangshan SCE Funworld March 2023 Shopping mall Tangshan Bohai Rim Economic Zone 922 N/A 78,048 N/A

ki) “ZT-=%ZR BnE% El RHERER @R TER

Bejjing West Chang'an SCE March 2023 Shopping mall Beijing Bohai Rim Economic Zone 99.5 N/A 103,453 N/A

Funworld

FRERZR KSR —T--%=R w5 R RHGEER TEm TER

Shantou SCE Funworld December 2023 Shopping mall Shantou Guangdong-Hong Kong- 92.6 N/A 154,710 N/A
Macao Greater Bay Area

SFER B R ZEZ=F1ZA B0ES B BERNER ek TR

Total 90.2 888 2025676 1,701,194

@t
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BEENWR DN

In 2023, the commercial property sector presented a dynamic
landscape characterised by both opportunities and challenges. In
response to evolving new market trends and consumption, the Group
takes a proactive approach to studying the market, consumers, and
the projects it manages. This involves identifying the market
positioning and product content advantages necessary for the future
growth of each project, as well as conducting in-depth analyses of
operational challenges to ensure effective business management.
Operational issues within the project were diagnosed and resolved,
with the principle of “Classified Management” implemented in the
projects. For instance, projects in the incubation phase should
persevere in identifying operational breakthroughs and strengthening
the product base. Projects in the market stabilisation phase should
focus on refining commercial content and enhancing merchant
performance through professional operations. Projects in the
preparation stage should precisely define market positioning and
consumer awareness, establishing a distinctive label and setting
industry standards.

In adherence to the urban commercial vision of “A Funworld Makes
Every City Wonderful”, the Group consistently strives to deliver
tailored commercial content that aligns with the varying city tiers and
needs of customers across different levels. Remaining attuned to
emerging trends, the Group introduces highly adaptable business
content and diversified industry portfolios. Through this strategic
approach, the Group successfully updates the local consumption
concept and positions its shopping malls as top-tier destinations
within the city.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The year 2023 marked the inaugural launch of the Group’s latest
innovative production line. This innovative outlet-based Beijing West
Chang’an SCE Funworld was positioned as the “24-hour Non-closing
Beijing West New Outlet”. It signifies the Group’s proactive
adaptation to emerging consumer trends, showcasing a novel
business model amalgamating “Shopping Mall Content Selection”
and “Outlet Retail Selection” set as a benchmark for industry peers.
This achievement underscores the depth of expertise within the
Group’s management team, ensuring sustained delivery of high-
quality services and fostering a culture of ongoing innovation amidst
market challenges. Additionally, the inauguration of Shantou SCE
Funworld as the region’s premier commercial complex, alongside the
opening of the Group’s second shopping mall in Guangdong, sets a
robust foundation for future business ventures of the Group in
Guangdong. Furthermore, the launch of Tangshan SCE Funworld
represents a pivotal step in the Group’s business cooperation model,
further enhancing its brand influence within the industry.

As at the end of 2023, the total brand annual adjustment of SCE
Funworld amounted to 30%. Expanding its reach into high-end
beauty and luxury watches, the Group continued its strategic pursuit
of "First Store Matrix + High-traffic Internet Celebrities + Exclusive
and High-quality” this year to elevate consumption content, cultivate
a robust brand lineup, and enhance project differentiation
competitiveness. Notably, Quanzhou SCE Funworld achieved a
significant milestone in its brand revitalisation efforts by introducing
international affordable luxury brands. This move signifies a pivotal
step towards embracing international affordable luxury and reinforces
its positioning as the premier shopping destination in Greater
Quanzhou. Guided by the strategic concept of “Collaborative
Symbiosis”, the Group reaffirmed its commitment to its core business
principles. It established a “Co-creation” mechanism and introduced a
“Commodity Hierarchical Management Model” to seamlessly connect
renowned domestic and foreign brands, curate its own supplier brand
library, and facilitate more efficient resource integration in
collaboration with merchants to boost up the financial performance
of the Group. Currently, the Group has over 2,000 strategic
cooperation brands, embodying its ethos of “Altruistic and Win-win”
business philosophy and fostering symbiotic relationships with
partners to achieve mutual success.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DN

Residential Property Management Services EENEEE RS

During the Year, the Group’s residential property management FR ' AEBEEVEETERS D BERE
services segment recorded total revenue of approximately RMB831.8 WA A ARKES318E L RiER ’]
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 5.7%; 5.7% : £ EEREE#2,7908 F 5 KX B
GFA under management was approximately 27.9 million sq.m., &% 16.2% : EEBEE & 173 - [ L1
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 16.2%; the 12418 : 4 EZE®MBEH4,3108 F 5K -
number of projects under management was 173 projects, RHEHRL40.1% -

representing an increase of 24 projects; and contracted GFA was

approximately 43.1 million sq.m., representing a year-on-year slight

decrease of approximately 0.1%.

During the Year, the contracted GFA, GFA under management and F R AEERWE S DOEEWEETER
revenue under the Group's residential property management services 9 2B A RE@ME - EEREEABE LK
segment by geographical area are as follows: ABRHROT -

Year ended 31 December

HEt-A=t-HLEE

2023 2022

—E-=F - Sk

GFA GFA

Contracted under Contracted under
GFA Management Revenue GFA Management Revenue

=4 rE &0 EE
BEEE BEHE ON BEEE BEEE WA
sg.m. sg.m. RMB sg.m. sg.m. RMB
FEHK S AR®T FhHK FAHK AR

(in thousands) (in thousands)

(A F35t) (A F3H)
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone “AIEER 8,963 5,169 158,317 8,998 4,529 176,061
West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone /ﬂw‘@ BEE 16,167 13,149 375,851 16,167 11,595 325,075
Bohai Rim Economic Zone REEEER 6,281 3,968 133,749 6,281 3,532 135,968
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao BERAER
Greater Bay Area 4,244 1,651 56,701 4,244 1,003 56,143
Central Western Region R E 7,489 3,966 107,155 7,489 3,353 93,312
Total h 43,144 27,903 831,773 43,179 24,012 786,559
20 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENwmE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW 57 75 [0l g
Revenue U &=

Revenue increased by 5.5% from approximately RMB1,182.4 million WHEHZ-ZZEZZFHHARE 11.824 1B T1%
in 2022 to approximately RMB1,247.7 million in 2023. This was due  f155% &2 = - =FMH AR 1247718
to the combined effect of increase in the GFA under management 7T ° Itk J5 B PA 72 & 22 S5 T8 F& 48 o0 J% 38 (B AR 7%
and the decrease in the revenue recorded from the provision of value- WX AJH D EI4R & R EFTE »

added services.

A breakdown of the Group's revenue by service category for the years ANEBER A B FEEIZREERI &5 U AR
indicated is set out below: 4T

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—-HLEE

2023 2022
—EC-=E “E-F
Revenue  Percentage Revenue Percentage
PN BAL O Aol
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ABTR ANEFT
Commercial property management  BENEEER
and operational services EEmB
Basic commercial property EXWENEERRE
management services 262,482 21.0 242,762 20.5
Pre-opening management services H RS 2 RS 15,129 1.2 45,044 3.8
Other value-added services H 38 AR 7% 138,298 11.1 108,006 9.2
Subtotal U 415,909 333 395,812 335
Residential property management  IEMEEBRE
services
Basic residential property ERIENEERRH
management services 620,965 49.8 529,074 448
Value-added services to FEETRERS
non-property owners 105,484 8.5 195,574 16.5
Community value-added services R E RS 105,324 8.4 61,911 5.2
Subtotal Ui 831,773 66.7 786,559 66.5
Total Ky 1,247,682 100.0 1,182,371 100.0
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BEENWR DN

Basic Commercial Property Management Services

The Group’s basic commercial property management services mainly
include cleaning, security, repair and maintenance, tenant assistance,
marketing and promotion services provided to property developers,
property owners and tenants. The Group's revenue from basic
commercial property management services increased by
approximately 8.1% from approximately RMB242.8 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB262.5 million in 2023, accounting for
approximately 21.0% of its total revenue. This was due to the
increase in GFA under management.

Pre-opening Management Services

The Group's pre-opening management services mainly include market
research and positioning, preliminary consultation and planning,
architectural design consultation, tenant acquisition and opening
preparation services provided to property developers prior to the
opening of commercial properties. The Group’s revenue from pre-
opening management services decreased significantly by
approximately 66.4% from approximately RMB45.0 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB15.1 million in 2023, accounting for approximately
1.2% of its total revenue. This was due to the temporary suspension
of land acquisition by the China SCE Group starting from 2022. The
number of shopping malls for which the Group provided pre-opening
management services decreased significantly from seven in 2022 to
three in 2023.

Other Value-added Services

The Group’s other value-added services mainly include tenant
management, rental collection, parking lot management, advertising
space and other common area management services provided after
the opening of commercial properties. The Group's revenue from
other value-added services increased by approximately 28.0% from
approximately RMB108.0 million in 2022 to approximately RMB138.3
million in 2023, accounting for approximately 11.1% of its total
revenue. This was due to the increase in GFA under management and
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the operations in 2022.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Basic Residential Property Management Services

The Group's basic residential property management services mainly
include cleaning, security, landscaping and repair and maintenance
services provided to property owners, property owners’ committees or
property developers. The Group’s revenue from basic residential
property management services increased by approximately 17.4%
from approximately RMB529.1 million in 2022 to approximately
RMB621.0 million in 2023, accounting for approximately 49.8% of its
total revenue. This was due to the increase in GFA under
management.

Value-added Services to Non-property Owners

The Group’s value-added services to non-property owner mainly
include the provision of pre-sale management services to property
developers during pre-sale activities, such as cleaning, security and
repair and maintenance services for pre-sale display units and sales
offices, pre-delivery inspection services and car park sales services for
car parks that remained unsold after the pre-sale period. The Group’s
revenue from value-added services to non-property owners decreased
significantly by approximately 46.1% from approximately RMB195.6
million in 2022 to approximately RMB105.5 million in 2023,
accounting for approximately 8.5% of its total revenue. This was due
to the significant decrease in the revenue from the provision of sales
office management services and pre-delivery inspection services.

Community Value-added Services

The Group’s community value-added services mainly include
housekeeping and cleaning services, residential property agency
services, exquisite residence services, car park management, clubhouse
operation and common area management value-added services. The
Group’s revenue from community value-added services increased
significantly by approximately 70.1% from approximately RMB61.9
million in 2022 to approximately RMB105.3 million in 2023,
accounting for approximately 8.4% of its total revenue. This was due
to the significant increase in the revenue from the provision of
exquisite residence services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&k D

A breakdown of the Group’s revenue by customer category for the ANEBEREBFEZREFSHERE 5 U AR
years indicated is set out below: AT

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—-RHLEE

2023 2022
—EC-=E “E-F
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
A BO LN B
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®T ARET
Commercial property management ~ HEYMEEERELRE
and operational services
China SCE Group FEEE 44,047 35 68,651 5.8
Joint ventures or associates of FESENGERER
China SCE Group Benan 2,324 0.2 2,389 0.2
Independent third party BUE=H 369,538 29.6 324,772 275
Subtotal et 415,909 333 395,812 335
Residential property management ~ IZMEXEERE
services
China SCE Group hEEE 108,476 8.7 189,110 16.0
Joint ventures or associates of REEEMGEREY
China SCE Group™ S /NETL 11,137 0.9 22,952 1.9
Independent third party BuUE=F 712,160 57.1 574,497 48.6
Subtotal N 831,773 66.7 786,559 66.5
Total et 1,247,682 100.0 1,182,371 100.0
Note: B 3E

(1) Includes joint ventures or associates of the China SCE Group and other (1) BEFAHREENALOCESHEQALAER
entities controlled by family of Mr. Wong Lun (“Wong Family”). EERK(ERRED EHEOE bRz -

Revenue from independent third parties is the largest source of HRRBILHE = H KA ZAEE M & AU
revenue for the Group. The Group's revenue from independent third AR - REB R ARIBLE = H WA H
parties increased by approximately 20.3% from approximately Z—Z=—F#H AR 8993187 EF4720.3%
RMB899.3 million in 2022 to approximately RMB1,081.7 million in ZZZT = =FHARKE 108178 T E4E
2023, accounting for approximately 86.7% of the Group's total B ABL86.7% °

revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased by approximately 4.7% from approximately
RMB430.0 million in 2022 to approximately RMB409.7 million in
2023.

The overall gross profit margin decreased from approximately 36.4%
in 2022 to approximately 32.8% in 2023. The decrease in gross profit
margin was mainly due to the decrease in the revenue recorded from
the provision of value-added services which had higher gross profit
margins.

A breakdown of the Group's gross profit and gross profit margin by
business segment for the years indicated are as follows:

EEEFWEDN

EF

EFBR_ZE__FHHARE4300ETTRHD
WAT%ZE—E - =FHNHAREEA4097ETT ©

BEETMNEHE T - —FHH364% I E
CEC=FH328%  c EMXRFLTER
AR E EF R AL E R WA D ATEL -

AEEREBFREREGDBEDHNENR
ENXBAMT

Year ended 31 December

BZt-A=1+-HLEE

2023 2022

—EC-=F “E-F
Gross Profit Gross Profit
Gross Profit Margin  Gross Profit Margin
EF EF=E E7 EME
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %

ARBTR AR
Commercial property management BENEEERECRY 146,534 35.2 154,122 389
and operational services

Residential property management services FENEERRHG 263,205 31.6 275,836 35.1
Total FCE 409,739 32.8 429,958 36.4

Gross profit margin of the commercial property management and
operational services segment decreased from approximately 38.9% in
2022 to approximately 35.2% in 2023. The decrease in gross profit
margin was mainly due to the significant decrease in the revenue
recorded from the provision of pre-opening management services of
commercial properties which had higher gross profit margins.

The gross profit margin of the residential property management
services segment decreased from approximately 35.1% in 2022 to
approximately 31.6% in 2023. The decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly due to the decrease in the revenue recorded from the
provision of value-added services which had higher gross profit
margins.
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BEENWR DN

Other Income and Gains

The Group’s other income and gains mainly comprised bank and
other interest income, foreign exchange gain, gain on bargain
purchase, government subsidies and forfeiture income on deposits
received.

Other income and gains increased significantly by approximately
208.4% from approximately RMB46.4 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB143.0 million in 2023. The increase in other
income and gains was mainly due to the significant increase in interest
income from the loan to China SCE Group, and a gain on bargain
purchase resulting from the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Mega Time Developments Limited (the “Target Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Target Group”).

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses mainly comprised salaries and
wages of administrative staff, entertainment expenses, office
expenses, travel and transportation expenses, depreciation and
amortisation and others.

Administrative expenses decreased slightly by approximately 0.9%
from approximately RMB194.7 million in 2022 to approximately
RMB193.0 million in 2023.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by approximately 28.0% from
approximately RMB67.8 million in 2022 to approximately RMB86.8
million in 2023. Income tax expense as a percentage of profit before
taxation slightly increased from 24.2% in 2022 to 24.8% in 2023.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

Profit attributable to owners of the parent increased by approximately
23.5% from approximately RMB208.1 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB257.0 million in 2023. Basic earnings per share
amounted to approximately RMB12.9 cents in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trade Receivables

The Group's trade receivables were mainly derived from amounts to
be received for the provision of commercial property management
and operational services and residential property management
services. Trade receivables increased significantly by approximately
51.0% from approximately RMB181.8 million as at 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB274.4 million as at 31 December 2023,
mainly due to the business expansion and the decrease in collection
rate as a result of macroeconomic factors.

Amount Due From a Related Party

The Group’s amount due from a related party was a loan advanced to
China SCE Group at an interest rate of 7.0% per annum. The loan
will be repaid on or before 31 December 2024.

Investment Properties

The Group’s investment properties mainly represented the carrying
amount of an outlet-based shopping mall located in Beijing, which
was acquired during the Year.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

The Group's prepayments, deposits and other receivables mainly
include input value-added taxes, prepaid utility fees, share issue
expenses and utility charge prepaid on behalf of tenants and
residents. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables increased
significantly by approximately 217.0% from approximately RMB65.9
million as at 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB208.8 million
as at 31 December 2023, mainly resulted from the input value-added
taxes prepaid to a local government as a result of the acquisition of
an outlet-based shopping mall during the Year.
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Trade Payables

The Group's trade payables mainly refer to the amounts payable for
goods or services (such as materials, utilities, cleaning and services)
purchased from suppliers and subcontractors in the ordinary course of
business. Trade payables increased significantly by approximately
57.7% from approximately RMB75.1 million as at 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB118.4 million as at 31 December 2023, mainly
resulted from the business expansion, and the portion attributable to
tenants remained unpaid at year end under a model using pre-agreed
sharing ratios of sales as rental income.

Other Payables and Accruals

The Group's other payables and accruals mainly include (i) deposits
from tenants, residents and subcontractors, (i) accrued expenses and
utility charge received in advance from tenants or residents, (iii)
others, mainly including value-added tax payable, fees payable to
owners under community value-added service arrangements, and
community repair and maintenance provision funds. Other payables
and accruals increased by approximately 13.0% from approximately
RMB271.0 million as at 31 December 2022 to approximately
RMB306.1 million as at 31 December 2023. This was mainly due to
the business expansion.

Contract Liabilities

The Group's contract liabilities mainly represent prepayments for
management fee paid by the customers of the Group’s commercial
property management and operational services and residential
property management services. Contract liabilities increased by
approximately 28.1% from approximately RMB197.8 million as at 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB253.3 million as at 31
December 2023, mainly due to the increase in customers’ demand for
the Group's residential property management services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's cash and bank balances were
denominated in different currencies as set out below:

EEEFWEDN

FH>
IE
5
o
my
>l
m;

Bk

R-ZE_=F+_"A=+—H AEEKNR
& RIBITHERERTIAUNT TR EEETE -

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
—ZE_-= —EF-—

+t=A=+—-H tZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T T ARBTTT

Renminbi AR 1,150,187 2,220,441

Hong Kong dollars BT 5,116 4,737

US dollars ETT 2,069 2,112

Total cash and bank balances B& MIRITFERER 1,157,372 2,227,290
The Group placed certain deposits in a bank in the PRC to secure AE£BER T - —F#HETHERTFTREARR
certain bills issued from a bank in the PRC for the bidding of fTIERBEARNBITELNETEE - AU

commercial land parcels for future development of the Group in
2022. As at 31 December 2023, the amount of pledged deposits was
nil (31 December 2022: RMB1.0 billion).

Borrowings and Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not incur any borrowings (31
December 2022: Nil). As at 31 December 2023, none of the Group's
assets were restricted or pledged (31 December 2022: The amount of
pledged deposits was approximately RMB1.0 billion).

The gearing ratio was calculated by dividing the net amount of
interest-bearing borrowings by total equity. As at 31 December 2023,
the gearing ratio was nil (31 December 2022: Nil).
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Exchange Rate Fluctuation Exposures

The Group’s businesses are located in the PRC and all of the revenue
and a substantial amount of operating expenses of the Group are
denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2023, except for certain
bank deposits which were denominated in foreign currencies,
exchange rate changes of RMB against foreign currencies will not
have material adverse effect on the results of operations of the Group.

No foreign currency hedging arrangement was made as at 31

December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil). The Group will closely
monitor its exposure to fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2022: Nil).

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the capital commitments of the Group were
as follows:

E % B AL

AEBERNFBEETES  AREZHBUEM
BRI RERMTHUAAREFE - RZF
T=FTZA=+—8B BRAAINEFHENSE
TRITEFIN - ARBHEMINEHE KT
BT EHARBENRE XEEREATHEE

RZBEZ=ZF+=-A=+—8 A£BTE
EHEMINEE AL (ZEZ_F+=A
=+—0 &) AEEHEETYERINE
P R B R B o

B BE
RZEZ=F+-A=+—8 K&EBEITE
FREAZEEBE(ZE-__F+=-_A=1+—
A& e

HHE

RZB_=ZF+_A=+—H XEENE
ARAEPENT -

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
—E—= —EF-—
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-A
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREF T
Acquisition of office equipment g7 /NS 13,516 16,975
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 4,878 employees
(31 December 2022: 5,178 employees). During the Year, the total
cost of employees was approximately RMB549.6 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2022: approximately RMB573.8 million). The
Company recognises the importance of gender diversity and recruits
employees at all levels based on merits. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group had 3,091 male employees (31 December 2022: 3,200 male
employees) and 1,787 female employees (31 December 2022: 1,978
female employees). The Group shall further strengthen the gender
diversity in the workforce in the future where appropriate. The Group
provides employees with competitive remuneration and benefits. The
Group reviews the employee remuneration plan at least annually to
ensure that it maintains market competitiveness and allows the
employees to receive fair and equal rewards. The remuneration and
promotion decision are also based on considering the employees’
assessment results, experience, skills and personal characteristics. The
Group has also launched its management trainee programme for
positions in selected functional areas in order to build pipeline for
succession.

The employees of the Group employed in Hong Kong and the PRC
are participated in the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme and the
central pension scheme operated by the local government,
respectively. These schemes are defined contribution schemes to
which a certain proportion of the employees’ payroll is contributed
monthly. The contributions are vested with the employees when
contributed and no contribution would be forfeited by the Group to
reduce existing levels of contribution if the employee resigned.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group by band
and the respective number of persons for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out below:

EE NERE TR E R

BE-_Z-_=F+_-_A=+—HILtFEAE
EefEEENFENESE M EEEAZIT

Number of

Persons

Remuneration Bands HNEE AE
HK$500,001 to HK$1,500,000 500,001 & 7T 2 1,500,000 & 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 & 7T = 2,500,000 /& 7T 1

Further details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements,
respectively.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group actively fulfils its social responsibilities of protecting the
environment and plays an exemplary role by undertaking the mission
of promoting social environmental protection activities. The Group
gives due consideration to environmental philosophy in property
management, and incorporates environmentally friendly practices into
its daily course of business to save energy and reduce emissions,
performing its commitments and obligations of protecting the
environment in all aspects and contributing to creating a green and
harmonious society. Such environmental initiatives include but are not
limited to noise control, water and energy conservation, handling
construction waste properly as well as using environmentally friendly
materials.

Please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Group published by the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s business is mainly operated by its subsidiaries
incorporated or established in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC and the Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and is a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Therefore, the Group should comply with relevant laws and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, British Virgin Islands, the PRC and
Hong Kong. The Group will seek professional legal opinions from its
legal department and legal advisers when necessary to ensure that
the Group’s transactions and business activities are in conformity with
all applicable laws and regulations.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group always adheres to the principle that “People Are The Most

Important Resources” and the policy of “Human-Based

Management”. The Group recognises value of its employees, and
pays much attention to their development, bringing their potentials
into play and encouraging them to learn and grow, with a view to
stimulating employees’ personal growth through corporate
development and promoting corporate progress through employee
development, thus achieving win-win situation for the Group and its

employees.

The Group maintains a solid relationship with its existing and
prospective customers, which plays a vital role in the development
and success of the Group. The Group pays close attention to how the
number of visitors affects the operation of tenants. In order to
enhance the customers’ satisfaction of the shopping malls operated
by the Group, the Group has developed CRM Membership and Sales
System, which covers membership promotion and registration,
membership level, membership benefits and other aspects of the
membership program, enhancing the Group’s ability to improve and
maintain members’ loyalty, and eventually increase the number of
visitors. The Group will also communicate with tenants regularly in
order to ensure the continuing improvement on the service quality of
mall management.
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The Group also establishes long-term collaboration with
subcontractors, while maximising its efforts to ensure its adherence to
the objective of providing customers with premium property
management services. The Group selects qualified subcontractors
through tender process in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations, and conducts thorough due diligence review over such
subcontractors. Successful tenderers are selected based on a variety of
factors, including costs, quality of services performed, manpower
distribution, safety measures and standards, equipment and facilities
and the industrial experience of managers.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Reference is made to the joint announcement of the Company and
China SCE Holdings dated 6 November 2023 and the circular of the
Company dated 4 December 2023. On 6 November 2023, China SCE
Assets Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”) (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of China SCE Holdings) and Lofty Idea Enterprises Limited
(the “Purchaser”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which (i) the Purchaser has agreed to acquire, and the Vendor has
agreed to sell, the shares, representing the entire issued share capital
of the Target Company; and (ii) the Vendor has agreed to procure the
sale of debt owed by a member of the Target Group, for the total
consideration of approximately RMB1,090 million. On 21 December
2023, the sale and purchase agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company. Upon completion of the
sale and purchase agreement, each member of the Target Group has
become a subsidiary of the Company and the principal asset of the
Target Group, which is an outlet-based shopping mall complex (the
“Property”), has been held for development.

The Property is erected on a parcel of land located at No. 8, Xincheng
East Street, Mentougou District, Beijing, the PRC covering a site area
of approximately 26,900 square meters which has five above ground
storey and one basement level under ground covering a total GFA of
approximately 78,500 square meters, and its underlying land use
rights are valid until 11 March 2059 and are for commercial use.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Use of Net Proceeds from
Initial Public Offering” below, as at the date of approval of this annual
report, the Group did not have any concrete future plan for material
investments or capital assets.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The Company’s ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”) were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 2 July 2021 (the
“Listing Date”). The listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) constituted a spin-off from China SCE
Holdings. In connection with the Listing, the Company issued
575,000,000 Shares (including the Shares issued from the full exercise
of the over-allotment option) with an offer price of HK$3.7 per share.
The Company raised a total net proceeds (including the net proceeds
from the full exercise of the over-allotment option) of approximately
HK$2,037.5 million (the “Net Proceeds”).

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 4 December 2023,
the Board has resolved to reallocate the unutilised Net Proceeds of
HK$1,018.8 million originally allocated for “Strategic Acquisitions and
Investments in Other Property Management Companies and Service
Providers” to “Consideration for the Acquisition of the Target
Company”. As a result, the intended use of the Net Proceeds after
the above reallocation is as follows: (i) approximately 50%
(or approximately HK$1,018.8 million) will be used for acquisition of
the Target Company (the “Acquisition”), which principally holds a
property located in Beijing and for commercial use, in order to
expand the Group's business and diversify the types of services;
(i) approximately 25% (or approximately HK$509.4 million) will be
used for investment in technology to improve service quality, customer
experience and engagement and enhance operational efficiency;
(iii) approximately 10% (or approximately HK$203.7 million) will be
used to expand businesses along the value chain and diversify the
types of value- added services; (iv) approximately 5% (or
approximately HK$101.9 million) will be used to attract, develop and
retain talents to support the Group’'s development; and (v)
approximately 10% (or approximately HK$203.7 million) will be used
for general business purposes and as working capital.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&k D

The following table sets forth the status of use of Net Proceeds from  THIEFIA QB & X AR E 15 HEFEHE

the Company’s initial public offering as at 31 December 2023: NERBRLR(BE_ZE_=F+_A=+—
H) :
Intended Actual
Use of Use of Proceeds
Net Proceeds Net Proceeds Unused  Expected Timeline

Fr&%E Fr&%E
Intended Use FEH R REAH
as Stated in the Prospectus BRERMARERSZ RER® ERAR FETE  BHREEX

HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEBTL BEBTL BEBTL

(i) Consideration for the Acquisition () ZWEHRE 1,018.8 1,018.8 - NA
TEfA
(i) Investment in technology (i) ®ER 509.4 379 4715 On or before 31 December 2025
—EZRFFZA=+—A
FART
(ii)) Expand businesses along the (i) BEEGEHLER 203.7 407 163.0  On or before 31 December 2025
value chain and diversify the types T 5T BREERERER ZZ-RFE+ZA=T-H
of value-added services ED S|
(iv) Attract, develop and retain talents (v) W5l BFERMBEBAL 101.9 101.9 - NA
TEfA
(v)  General business purposes and as V) —REBRERBE 2037 2037 - NA
working capital 2EES TER
2,037.5 1,403.0 634.5

The Net Proceeds was used as intended following the Listing and up FIEREBEFER EMELRBE T =_=F
to 31 December 2023 as set out above and the unutilised portionis TZA=+—AB2XRNALEBEREER &k
expected to be applied for the intended use and according to the REIRAIEHTERAK & LA L TEHRF K E
expected timeline as set out above. RAR#EERE -
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENSREEBEAEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wong Lun (Z1&) (“Mr. Wong"), aged 36, was appointed as a director
("Director”) of the Board on 20 August 2019, and was re-designated
as the executive Director and chairman of the Board on 6 January
2021. He was appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) since 10
June 2021, and is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company established in the PRC, Hong Kong and the BVI. He is
primarily responsible for strategic planning, implementing policies and
guidelines, making major decisions and the overall operations of the
Group. He joined the Group in September 2010 as an assistant to
general manager of commercial management business of the Group,
and became the general manager of Shanghai China SCE Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. in November 2013, where he is mainly
responsible for its strategic planning and daily operations. Mr. Wong
has over 10 years of experience in the property development and
property management industries. He has been appointed as an
executive director of the China SCE Group since March 2017, and has
been promoted to the vice president of the China SCE Group since
April 2021, where he is mainly responsible for investors relations and
commercial management. Mr. Wong graduated from the School of
Engineering of University of Warwick with a Bachelor’s degree of
Science in Engineering and Business Studies in 2010. Mr. Wong holds
an Executive Master of Business Administration degree from China
Europe International Business School.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEBAEERE

Niu Wei (41&) (“Mr. Niu”), aged 61, was appointed as an executive
Director on 6 January 2021. He is also the chief executive officer and
is primarily responsible for the overall operation and management of
the commercial property management business of the Group, and
also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company established in
the PRC. He joined the Group in July 2019 as the president and was
mainly responsible for the overall operation and management. Prior to
joining the Group, from June 2016 to July 2018, he worked at New
World Department Stores China Limited (“New World Department
Stores”), a company principally engaged in chain department store
business in the PRC and listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 825), where he was appointed as the chief
executive officer in March 2017 and was mainly responsible for its
overall operational management and business expansion in the PRC.
From October 2014 to May 2016, he served as a vice president and
chief operating officer at Intime Retail (Group) Company Limited, a
company principally engaged in the operation and management of
domestic department stores and shopping centers, the shares of
which were previously listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and was privatized, where he was mainly responsible for its overall
operational management of commercial business and business
development. From April 2014 to October 2014, he served as a senior
assistant to president at Wanda Group Share Co., Ltd, a company
principally engaged in commercial property business, where he was
mainly responsible for the overall management of its department
store business. From June 1996 to March 2014, he served as a
regional general manager of Central and Southwest China at New
World Department Stores, where he was mainly responsible its
regional management and business development. Mr. Niu graduated
and obtained a Diploma in Law from Nanjing University, and a Master
degree in Business Administration from Fudan University.
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Sun Qiang (#&3) (“Mr. Sun”), aged 42, was appointed as an executive
Director on 6 January 2021. He was appointed as a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) since 10 June 2021 and is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC. He is primarily
responsible for the overall management of the residential property
management business of the Group. He joined the Group in May
2017 and was promoted as vice president in August 2020. Prior to
joining the Group, from May 2015 to May 2017, he served as a
Ltd, an
information and communication technology solution provider, where

human resources director at Huawei Zhongduan Co.,

he was responsible for its human resources. From September 2013 to
April 2015, he served as a manager of consulting department at
PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting (Shenzhen) Holdings Limited, a
consulting firm, where he was responsible for its consulting business.
From April 2010 to August 2013, he served as a senior manager of
human resources department at Vishay Components (Huizhou) Co.,
Ltd.,
manufacturer, where he was responsible for its human resources. Mr.

a discrete semiconductor and passive electronic device

Sun obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting from Hohai University
in 2003, and a Master's degree in Business Administration from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in 2012.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEBAEERE

Zheng Quanlou (Ef24€) (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 52, was appointed as
an executive Director on 6 January 2021. He is primarily responsible
for implementing strategies in respect of the commercial property
management and operational services business and commercial
design services business of the Group. He joined the Group in January
2006 as a project manager and was mainly responsible for project
design and planning matters. Mr. Zheng has over 20 years of
experience in the property development and property management
industries. Mr. Zheng joined the China SCE Group in 1998 as a project
manager. He was promoted to general manager of design
management department of the China SCE Group in January 2008
and was mainly responsible for its design management and daily
management. He served as an assistant president of the China SCE
Group from January 2014 to January 2016 and was promoted to a
vice president in January 2016, primarily responsible for its operation
plan and design management. He was further promoted to the
executive president of the China SCE Group in August 2018 and is
primarily responsible for its operation plan, design management,
construction management and cost management. Mr. Zheng
graduated from Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University with a
major in Civil Engineering in 2009. He obtained a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from Xiamen University in 2021.
registered as a cost engineer by Fujian Provincial Department of
Personnel in August 1999. He was also appraised as a senior engineer

He was

by Xiamen Engineering Technology Senior Position Appraisal
Committee in December 2023.

Ku Weihong (E#4L) (“Ms. Ku"), aged 55, was appointed as an executive
Director on 6 January 2021. She is primarily responsible for overseeing
the legal affairs and human resources. She joined the Group in
November 2010 as the director of legal department and was mainly
responsible for legal affairs and property management. Ms. Ku joined
the China SCE Group in November 2010, and served various positions
including director of legal department from November 2010 to
December 2010, general manager of auditing and legal department
from January 2011 to October 2011, general manager of executive
president office from November 2011 to January 2014, and assistant
president since January 2014, where she was mainly responsible for
its legal affairs and human resources matters. From July 2000 to
September 2010, she served as director of legal department at
Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited, a property developer listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1238), where
she was mainly responsible for its legal affairs. Ms. Ku obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Economic Law in 1990 and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration in 2017, both from Peking University.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Huang Youquan (Z & #) ("Mr. Huang”), aged 55, was appointed
as the non-executive Director on 6 January 2021. He was appointed
as a member of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) since 10 June 2021. He is primarily responsible for
providing guidance for the overall operation of the Group. Mr. Huang
joined the China SCE Group in January 2010 as a vice president, and
was promoted as an executive president in August 2018. He has been
serving as an executive director of China SCE Holdings since May
2011, and has been primarily responsible for its financial and treasury
management. Prior to joining the China SCE Group, from February
2006 to December 2009, he served as general manager at Kato SCE
(Xiamen) Construction Machinery Co., Ltd, where he was mainly
responsible for its overall operational management. From August
2003 to February 2006, he served as a finance director at South China
Heavy Industry (Xiamen) Co., Ltd., where he was mainly responsible
for its financial and treasury management. Mr. Huang obtained a
Bachelor’s degree of Science in Mathematics from Xiamen University
in 1991.
Administration program at Xiamen University. Mr. Huang is a member

He also completed an Executive Master of Business

of the Fujian Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEBAEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ding Zuyu ( T # £) (“Mr. Ding”), aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 June 2021. He was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee since 10 June 2021. Mr. Ding is responsible for providing
independent advice on the operations and management of the Board.
Mr. Ding has been serving as an executive director and chief executive
officer of E-House (China) Enterprise Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2048),
since March 2018 where he has been primarily responsible for
overseeing the management and strategic development of the group.
He has been the president of the real estate data and consulting
services division of E-House Enterprise (China) Group Co., Ltd. since
July 2006 and its chief executive officer since August 2016. Mr. Ding
has been an independent non-executive director of Powerlong Real
Estate Holdings Limited, a property developer listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1238), since December
2014, and an independent non-executive director of Greentown
Management Holdings Company Limited, a project management
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
9979), since July 2020.

Wang Yongping (E & ¥) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 55, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 10 June 2021. He was
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee since 10 June 2021. Mr. Wang is responsible for providing
independent advice on the operations and management of the Board.
Since December 2019, Mr. Wang has been serving as an independent
director at Easyhome New Retail Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000785). Since November
2021, Mr. Wang has been serving as an independent non-executive
director of MINISO Group Holding Limited, a company listed on New
York Stock Exchange (stock code: MNSO) and a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9896). Since May
2023, Mr. Wang has been serving as an independent director at
Winner Technology Co., Inc., a company listed on ChiNext of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300609). Mr. Wang has been
serving as the president of China Commercial Real Estate Association
since August 2016 and a vice president of China Business Economics
Association since April 2018. He was qualified to serve as a mentor of
the master of business administration center at the school of
economics and management of Tongji University.
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Pang Hon Chung (¥ & &) (“Mr. Pang”), aged 50, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 10 June 2021. He was
appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee since 10 June 2021. Mr. Pang is responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management of
the Board. Mr. Pang has over 20 years of professional accounting
experience and considerable experience in special assurance and
advisory assignments in relation to corporate restructurings and fund
raising exercises. He also has extensive experience in corporate audits
and consulting of pre-listing and listed companies, and medium to
large private entities. Mr. Pang had worked at Ernst & Young for over
eight years and subsequently joined ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited in
March 2010, and he has been a partner of the firm since January
2014. Since June 2018, Mr. Pang has been serving as an independent
non-executive director at Tian Yuan Group Holdings Limited, a
company principally engaged in cargo uploading and related ancillary
value-added port services and listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 6119). Mr. Pang has been a Certified Public
Accountant recognized by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") since April 2001. He has also been a
member of the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors since
August 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Xu Liping (#REES¥) (“Ms. Xu"), aged 54, joined the Group in September
2019 and has been serving as the general manager of operation
management department since then. Ms. Xu is primarily responsible
for overseeing the commercial operation management business. Prior
to joining the Group, from September 1994 to February 2019, Ms. Xu
successively served as the general manager of regional commercial
business, store general manager and general manager of southwest
region at New World Department Stores, where she was mainly
responsible for its overall operational management and project
development prior to her departure. Ms. Xu obtained a Diploma in
Industrial Enterprise Management from Hubei Radio & TV University in
the PRC in July 1990 and completed the advanced training courses in
high-end retail provided by China Europe International Business
School in the PRC in August 2018.

Annual Report 2023
TEC=FFR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGNEEBAERER

wEL(TZRE]D 505 RZTZ—FRX
ATBEREZERBIYFATEST BH_F
TFRATHEREZERFMZESR
BERZERTIRE ZALAANESTELE
LREBRHUBYER ZEERBEBBE T
FHEXSTER YEARECXSEARE
BEEHNERRELEATIETAEEEE
o HME LA R EWARRIARAHE
REBERNECEENNBEANTARAALEEL
B o ZRAE QN LOKEFENE T ERER
NE EER-_ZT-—TF=-AMARELE
SRMMEBAAERAR BT —MOF—A
ERSZRBANEGBA - BT N\FXA
B Z2EE-—BHEERREEZERARAR
(—HKEXBUFEVRFLABEEREED
RIS A E] - BB AP AR BT (AR A (5%
6119)) MBI FATEF -ZREA_FTT
—FNAERBERMAERATEXRES
fhe B -_Z—HWFENAR RTERBEEEA

BRI AEEE -

mRREEAR

BB ([1R&L]) 54 RZEE—AFN
AMAREE Qi —HETELEER
RE-GKRITTEAEEEHELEXR-
RIMAXREERF  R—ANAEFAAE-F
—NF-A HRLIEHFEREEER
FEAE R I R T AR AR 1R - PIJE AR - BE{ERT
EEBUATEERESALE TERAEME
BEMEBLEEERERME - HRLLR
—NNTFELAESTRBALERERKE
TREREEXE UWERZF—-NFNA
EEFEFRERIHERN T EER
RIE ©

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
TEEEEERBERERAR

43



44

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEAEER

Kwan Kwong Cho (B8 ¥ 48) (“Mr. Kwan"), aged 37, joined the Group
in January 2021 and has been serving as the deputy finance director
and company secretary since then. Mr. Kwan is primarily responsible
for financial and company secretarial matters of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Kwan served as an audit manager at one of
the international CPA firms. Mr. Kwan obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in October 2011. He has been a Certified Public Accountant of the
HKICPA since January 2015, and obtained the practising status in
2020. Mr. Kwan has been an Associate Chartered Accountant of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since
January 2022.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Kwan Kwong Cho (B8 ¥ %8), a member of senior management of the
Group, is the deputy finance director and company secretary of the
Company. The biography of Mr. Kwan is set forth above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has been committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance so as to enhance the operational efficiency of
the Company. The Company believes that such commitment is
beneficial to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

During the Year, the Company and the Board had been in compliance
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") effective during the Year contained in Part 2 of
Appendix C1 (formerly known as Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
C3 (formerly known as Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct for securities transactions by directors.

The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all
the Directors confirmed that they have strictly complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the Year.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The members of the Board of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Lun (Chairman)
Mr. Niu Wei

Mr. Sun Qiang

Mr. Zheng Quanlou

Ms. Ku Weihong

Non-executive Director
Mr. Huang Youquan

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ding Zuyu

Mr. Wang Yongping

Mr. Pang Hon Chung
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEAES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Biography of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report. There is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships between
Board members.

Mr. Pang Hon Chung, one of the independent non-executive
Directors, has considerable experience in accounting and financial
management, which is in line with the requirement of Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules which states that “at least one of the independent
non-executive directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise”.

In accordance with the provision C.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors in respect
of any possible legal action against them.

In accordance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination
Committee shall have a policy concerning diversity of Board members.
In formulating its nomination policy, the Company has created
measurable targets in the following areas, including expertise,
experience, knowledge, professional skills, education background,
independence, age, etc. In doing so, the Company can ensure its
Directors reach the eligible level in terms of their expertise, industrial
experience, education background, independence, age and other
factors, which enable them to make corresponding contributions to
the Board whenever necessary and practicable. The Company and the
Nomination Committee periodically review the nomination policy and
are open to adopt further measurable objectives in the future based
on the business needs of the Company and to keep pace with the
prevailing regulatory requirements and good corporate governance
practice. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Nomination
Committee” of this corporate governance report regarding details of
the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) adopted by
the Board and progress on achieving the measurable objectives to
implement the Board Diversity Policy.

In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, for each financial
year, the company secretary of an issuer must take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Company confirmed that the company secretary
of the Company, Mr. Kwan Kwong Cho, had participated in proper
training programmes for not less than 15 hours to ensure his expertise
is in line with all the requirements as applicable to him.
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In accordance with the provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year ended 31
December 2023, all the Directors have complied with the requirement
of provision C.1.4 of the CG Code through attending trainings and/or
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to director’s
duties and responsibilities.

Name of Directors

/\\/A-A-\\ =+
M= E/ﬁ#ﬁ%

REBETRHECIAGRE MEEFEERSER
BEERR ZREEFEMBRTEE &
E_T_=FF+_A=+—BLFEE A
EEEEBHEEIR SMERARTE
BREFHRENBETARNENARTA TR
FECIAGRTE -

Trainings on Corporate
Governance, Regulatory
Development and
Other Relevant Topics
TRER EERER

EEnE H 4th 46 BA = RE T F
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Wong Lun L v
Mr. Niu Wei FREE v
Mr. Sun Qiang BagskE v
Mr. Zheng Quanlou ey Solas 4
Ms. Ku Weihong EfT izt v
Non-executive Director FHITEE

Mr. Huang Yougquan =WELEE v
Independent non-executive Directors BYFBITEE

Mr. Ding Zuyu THELE v
Mr. Wang Yongping FoFERAE 4
Mr. Pang Hon Chung TEBEAE v

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board is responsible to all shareholders for supervising and
overseeing all major matters of the Company, including the
formulation and approval of overall management and operation
strategies, reviewing the internal control and risk management
systems, reviewing financial performance, considering dividend policy
and monitoring the performance of the senior management, so as to
achieve high efficiency in relevant business of the Company. The
senior management is responsible for the daily management and
specific operation of the Group.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

Pursuant to the provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the board of issuers
should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the Company has held six board meetings. It is
considered that the Directors were well acknowledged of the
operation of the Group for the year under review. The attendance of
each Director for the board meetings and general meetings of the
Company is contained in the following table:

EEHEERLHE

BIETFRIECSIERE  BTANESSRE
THHE ZEFeeRREFEAFRZIMR
RKNBEFEE-—R - BE_FT=-_=F+=A
—+—RHIEFE  ARRHBANKRESE -
BMEESNESHASERNLEFTANE
EERANME - SEFHNEBEFEARA
EEE YR RREARAEBERENTIRE :

Number of Number of
Attendances/ Attendances/
Number of Number of

Board Meetings General Meetings
HERE HERE,
EXE2RAE RRAESBRY

Executive Directors: HITESE:
Mr. Wong Lun ERiE
Mr. Niu Wei FREE
Mr. Sun Qiang Ro® e
Mr. Zheng Quanlou B2 IEEA
Ms. Ku Weihong EEEAT 2 &
Non-executive Director: FHITESE :
Mr. Huang Yougquan =W LA
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFPTESE:
Mr. Ding Zuyu THELE
Mr. Wang Yongping FoFERAE
Mr. Pang Hon Chung EAEN S e

! Except for chairman of the Company, Mr. Wong Lun, all executive Directors
and the non-executive Director were exempted from attending the board
meeting held on 29 August 2023 in which the composition, duties and
responsibilities of the executive Directors were discussed.
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6/6 172
5/5! 172
5/5 0/2
5/5 0/2
5/5! 172
5/5 172
6/6 0/2
6/6 0/2
6/6 2/2

! REZEZ=FNAZ+NLBEBHANESTSH
FHRmEARRTESNAKN B ESE S B E
B BARREFEEMAEN  HpHITES
NIEMITERIFRE o
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year ended 31
December 2023, Mr. Wong Lun and Mr. Niu Wei performed their
duties as the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company
respectively.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have been instrumental in
ensuring independent views and input are available to the Board. The
Board has received the written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, confirming that he has met the
independence requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent under these independence requirements.

The independent non-executive Directors play an important role in
applying their independent analysis and professional judgments to
provide a professional and fair view to the decisions of the Board. This
is not only beneficial to the warranty of the scientific element of the
decision, but also enhancing the protection of interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

The Nomination Committee and the Board are committed to review
and assess the Directors’ independence annually in order to ensure
that independent views and input of the independent non-executive
Directors are made available to the Board. Factors taken into account
in such independence review include, and are not limited to, the
following:

(1)  required character, integrity, perspectives, skills, expertise and
experience to fulfill their roles;

(2)  time commitment and attention to the Company’s affairs;
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(3)  firm commitment to their independent roles and to the Board;

(4) declaration of conflicts of interest (if any) in their roles as
independent non-executive Directors;

(5) no involvement in the daily management of the Company nor in
any relationship or circumstances which would affect the
exercise of their independent judgement; and

(6) further reappointment of an independent non-executive
Director (including any long-serving independent non-executive
Director, where applicable) is subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by the shareholders.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors’ Service Contracts” in
the "Report of the Directors” of this annual report for the term of
appointment of independent non-executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
its Remuneration Committee on 10 June 2021. Under Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules, the remuneration committee of issuers must appoint
an independent non-executive director as the chairman, and the
majority of the members shall be independent non-executive directors.
The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Sun Qiang (an executive
Director) and Mr. Ding Zuyu (an independent non-executive Director)
and is chaired by Mr. Pang Hon Chung (an independent non-executive
Director).
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The prime duties of the Remuneration Committee are:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

o to assess performance of executive Directors and approve the
terms of the service contracts of the executive Directors;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; and

. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to discuss the 2022 management bonus and 2023 salary
under the service contracts for executive Directors. Details of the
attendance by members of the Remuneration Committee are set out
as below:

iE\l/ﬂFYAiﬁ[:

FHEZEENEIERER

s HARAEBEFRSABEEAENDERH
B 2R N 2R 18 - KBRS IE AR it A% B
EHRFHIETHFHMER  nEZRGIRD
B

o HERMTEENRREMERTESR
A R

e MNMEZFSEZMINTEERS
ABEWMEMEFSE &

B

o BFRTEFNFHREFSRLESR

CEFR FMZEEEHT —REz &
WATEE _T__FEERAR-_FT_=
FRGERFTHER - SKERFTHEZEES
eEMNENLEBRAT :

Number of

Attendance/Total

Number of Meeting

HERE SR8

Mr. Pang Hon Chung TEBEA 11

Mr. Sun Qiang Rem S 11

Mr. Ding Zuyu THEXRSE 11

NOMINATION COMMITTEE RB2ELZE®

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established ~REBEFARE - AARR T —F A+

the Nomination Committee on 10 June 2021. Under Rule 3.27A of
the Listing Rules, the majority of the nomination committee of issuers
must be independent non-executive directors, and the chairman of
the board or an independent non-executive director must be
appointed as the chairman of this committee. The Nomination
Committee comprises independent non-executive Directors Mr. Ding
Zuyu and Mr. Wang Yongping and is chaired by Mr. Wong Lun,
chairman of the Board and an executive Director.
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The prime duties of the Nomination Committee are:

o to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board based on, amongst others, the Board Diversity Policy
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

o to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors,
succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and
chief executive officer and the policy concerning the diversity of
Board members.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to discuss the composition of the Board and the terms of
reference, the diversity policies for the Board, and other issues. Details
of the attendance by members of the Nomination Committee are set
out as below:

RAZE

s

ST ERER

‘D]]U

ZELOEFRIEFTGHRE  AS

PR (B IEFRRE - MR AT - EEE‘JEE@
BREARARFRBMBEEESS/ELN
BENR T &R

VEAEREERIETEENAL
WEREFEZ TEBER R HEAME R
BREABATHEEFLARURES

@?ET/\ =)

APZEIFRITESRE LI R

REEEAREFEAURES (LR
REIBRAMNATE) BAHBIRE
EENESTARENEBEENES
IR -

B

EEE'EW }E% EEEE‘%T //\EEI%J’/{;—J-

MEFGHMEMN  BERE - 2T EBERK
HiEBE EXERNRERZEESZNER
HEERIT

Number of
Attendance/Total
Number of Meeting
HERE ERAE

Mr. Wong Lun ERkE
Mr. Ding Zuyu THELRE
Mr. Wang Yongping FoRFEAE
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The Company and the Nomination Committee periodically review the

nomination policy and monitor the progress on achieving the

following measurable objectives (the “Measurable Objectives”) which

have been set for implementing diversity on the composition of Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, under the Board Diversity
Policy, the Board has adopted and the Company has fully achieved
the following Measurable Objectives:

(a)

To ensure at least two members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualification;

To ensure at least 33% of the members of the Board have more
than 10 years of experience in real estate development or
property management;

To ensure the appropriate proportion of the independent non-
executive Directors to the executive Directors in order to
maintain the independence of the Board. In particular, at least
33% of the members of the Board shall be independent non-
executive Directors;

To ensure at least 60% of the members of the Board shall have
attained Bachelor’s degree or higher level of education;

To ensure the age distribution of the members of the Board is
such that the Board comprised of people from at least three

decades; and

To ensure at least one member of the Board shall be female.
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In terms of gender diversity, while there has already been one female
director on the Board as at 31 December 2023, the Company and the
Nomination Committee recognise the importance and benefits of
gender diversity at the Board level and are committed to continue to
identify female candidates and ensure at least one member of the
Board shall be female.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 3,091 male employees (31
December 2022: 3,200 male employees) and 1,787 female employees
(31 December 2022: 1,978 female employees) and the male-to-
female ratio in the workforce, including the senior management, was
approximately 1:0.58 (31 December 2022: 1:0.62), which is regarded
by the Board as satisfactory and in line with the industry which the
Group operates its businesses in.

The Company will continue to take gender diversity into consideration
during recruitment and increase the female proportion at all levels
over time with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity, such that
there is a pipeline of female senior management and potential
successors to the Board in the future.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
the Audit Committee on 10 June 2021. Under Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules, the audit committee of issuers must comprise only non-
executive directors. The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Huang
Youqguan (a non-executive Director) and Mr. Wang Yongping (an
independent non-executive Director) and is chaired by Mr. Pang Hon
Chung (an independent non-executive Director).
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The prime duties of the Audit Committee are:

o responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and other terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

o to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, interim report and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and

o oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and review the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held three
meetings to review the 2022 annual report and the 2023 interim
report of the Company, and make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment of external auditor to fill the casual vacancy of the
predecessor auditor. Details of the attendance by members of the
Audit Committee are set out as below:
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Number of

Attendances/Total

Number of Meetings

HERE SR8

Mr. Pang Hon Chung TEBEAE 3/3
Mr. Huang Youquan =LA 3/3
Mr. Wang Yongping FoRFEAE 3/3
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year under review, the fees paid to the auditor of the
Company, Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited (“Prism”), in
respect of the audit services provided to the Company amounted to
approximately RMB1.6 million. No non-audit services were provided
by Prism for the year under review.

For the year under review, the fees paid to Ernst & Young, who
resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from 29
December 2023, in respect of the non-audit services provided to the
Company amounted to approximately RMB1.0 million. Non-audit
services mainly consisted of advisory and other services. No audit
services were provided by Ernst & Young for the year under review.

The Audit Committee is responsible to recommend to the Board on
matters related to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the auditor. The Audit Committee recommended the re-appointment
of Prism as the external auditor of the Group for the year ending
31 December 2024, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, and
confirm that the financial statements give a true view of the financial
position and results of the Group as at the date and for the year of
the date ended, and are prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement
of the external auditor of the Company, Prism, about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 84 to 91 of this annual
report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is fully responsible for maintaining proper and effective
internal controls and for regularly reviewing the operational efficiency
of the financial, operational, compliance, risk controls, human
resources and other aspects of the system in order to safeguard the
independence of the respective duties and powers of the Group
which in turn can protect the investment of shareholders and the
assets of the Company.

The Internal Audit and Compliance Department of the Company,
being the Company’s internal audit function, is responsible for regular
review and audit of the finance and operation of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the purpose of ensuring the internal controls are in
place and functioning properly as intended. For weaknesses of
internal controls and accounting procedures of the Group which the
external auditor have identified and reported to the Company, the
Company would pay full attention to the recommendations made by
the external auditor and make appropriate improvements.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
their effectiveness and concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group were adequate and effective
during the Year.

The Company has the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. In practice,
employees of the Group who become aware of any events and/or
matters which he/she considers potentially inside information, will
report to the designated personnel of the Company who, if
considered appropriate, will pass such information to the Board for
the purpose of considering and deciding whether or not such
information constitutes inside information and disclosure of which
shall be made immediately.

The aforementioned risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
COMMUNICATIONS POLICY

Establishing a good relationship with investors plays a vital role in
enhancing the operational efficiency of the Company and in
protecting interests of the shareholders. The Company insists a
transparent, honest and timely disclosure of related information on
the business development of the Company through various channels
to ensure that the shareholders and investors have an adequate
understanding of the operations of the Company.

The Company’s website at www.sce-icm.com provides information
such as e-mail address, correspondence address, telephone numbers,
etc. for making inquiries to the Company in order to maintain
effective communication with its shareholders and investors. In
addition, interim and annual reports, circulars and notices of the
Company will be issued to shareholders in compliance with the Listing
Rules and the same will also be published on the website of the
Company and that of the Stock Exchange.

The Company's annual general meeting of shareholders is a good
opportunity for communication between the Board and shareholders
of the Company. Notice of annual general meeting and related
documents will be issued to the shareholders pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, and will be published on the
website of the Stock Exchange and that of the Company.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the shareholders’
communications policy and is satisfied that it is effective for the Board
to understand the views and opinion of the shareholders through the
available channels.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1. Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

1.1 The following procedures for shareholders (the
“Shareholders”, each a “Shareholder”) of the Company
to convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “"EGM")
of the Company are prepared in accordance with Article
58 of the articles of association of the Company:

(1) One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”)
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right, by
written requisition (the “Requisition”), to require an
EGM to be called by the Directors for the transaction
of any business specified therein.

(2)  Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company via
email at the email address of the Company at
ir_cm@sce-icm.com.

(3) The EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such Requisition.

(4)  If the Board fail to proceed to convene such meeting
within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of such
Requisition, the Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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2. Procedures for raising enquiries

2.1 Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
details of which are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

2.2 Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect
of the Company via email at the email address of the
Company at ir_cm@sce-icm.com.

2.3 Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions
together with their detailed contact information for the
prompt response from the Company if it deems
appropriate.

3. Procedures and contact details for putting
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

3.1 To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of
his/her/its proposal (the “Proposal”) with his/her/its
detailed contact information via email at the email address
of the Company at ir_cm@sce-icm.com.

3.2 The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will
be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar
and upon confirmation by the branch share registrar that
the request is made by a Shareholder and such request is
proper and in order, the Board will determine in its sole
discretion whether the Proposal may be included in the
agenda for the general meeting to be set out in the notice
of meeting.

3.3 The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than 21 clear days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general

meeting;

(2)  Notice of not less than 14 clear days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an EGM.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

No change to the constitutional document of the Company was made
during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in commercial property management
and operational services and residential property management services
in the PRC during the year. Details of the principal activities of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the subsections headed “Business Review"”, “Financial
Review”, “Environmental Policies and Performance”, “Compliance
with Relevant Laws and Regulations” and “Key Relationships with
Employees, Customers and Suppliers” in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement — Outlook” of this annual report , which
form part of the contents of the business review of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023 as contained in this Report of the
Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 92 to 202.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Any declaration of dividends will depend upon a number of factors
including our earnings and financial condition, operating
requirements, capital requirements and any other conditions that our
Directors may deem relevant and will be subject to the approval of
our shareholders. There is no assurance that dividends of any amount
will be declared or distributed in any given year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements and the Company’s
prospectus dated 21 June 2021, is set out on pages 203 to 204. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes 13 and
14 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company'’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, certain related
party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2023 constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, save as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Material Acquisitions and Disposals of
Subsidiaries” above, the Group had the following connected
transaction that is not exempt from the annual reporting requirement
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Loan to a subsidiary of China SCE Holdings

The Group’s amount due from a related party was a loan advanced to
the China SCE Group. On 24 November 2022, Shanghai China SCE
Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (the “Lender”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan agreement (the
“Loan Agreement”) with Shanghai Zhongjun Property Co., Ltd. (the
“Borrower”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of China SCE
Holdings, pursuant to which the Lender has agreed to advance to the
Borrower a loan (the “Loan”) for a fixed term commencing from the
date of drawdown and ending on 31 December 2024 in the principal
amount of up to RMB900.0 million at an interest rate of 7.0% per
annum for the purpose of replenishing the working capital of the China
SCE Group. The Loan is secured by completed properties of the China
SCE Group in the PRC with an aggregated gross floor area of
approximately 207,480 sg.m. As at 31 December 2023, the balance of
the Loan was approximately RMB640.2 million. The Board considered
that by entering into the Loan Agreement, the Group could produce
extra income with its idle cash with potentially higher returns than
other available options. The additional short to medium term capital
under the Loan also allows the China SCE Group to accelerate the
process of construction and delivery of its properties, which will in turn
benefit the long-term development of the Group when it is engaged to
provide property management services for such properties upon their
delivery. For further details, please refer to the announcement dated 24
November 2022 and the circular dated 12 December 2022 of the
Company.
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The following transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023,
which are subject to the reporting and annual review requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

1. Car Parking Lots and Public Area Leasing

On 17 June 2021, the Company entered into a master car
parking lots and public area leasing agreement (the “Master Car
Parking Lots and Public Area Leasing Agreement”) with China
SCE Holdings, a controlling shareholder, pursuant to which the
Group will lease from the China SCE Group and its joint
ventures and associates certain car parking lots and public areas
situated in commercial properties owned by the China SCE
Group and managed by the Group (the “Car Parking Lots and
Public Area Leasing”). The Master Car Parking Lots and Public
Area Leasing Agreement has a term commencing from the
Listing Date until 31 December 2023.

Under such arrangement, the Group will pay certain rental to
the China SCE Group which will constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Group, while the income
generated from end users, being independent third parties, will
not constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company.

The amount of rental to be paid by the Group under the Master
Car Parking Lots and Public Area Leasing Agreement shall be
determined on an arm’s length basis with reference to, among
others, (i) the prevailing market rental fee of the car parking lots
and public area situated in comparable locations and
comparable properties; (i) the occupancy rate of car parking
lots leased by the Group from the China SCE Group; and (iii) the
number of the car parking lots and the GFA of the public area
leased.

The annual cap of the annual fee payable by the Group under
the Master Car Parking Lots and Public Area Leasing Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is RMB21.0 million, and
the actual transaction amount for the year ended 31 December
2023 was approximately RMB12.9 million.
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Carpark Sales Services

On 17 June 2021, the Company entered into a master carpark
sales services agreement (the “Master Carpark Sales Services
Agreement”) with China SCE Holdings, a controlling
shareholder, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
marketing and sales services for unsold car parking spaces of
the China SCE Group and its joint ventures and associates (the
“Carpark Sales Services”). The Master Carpark Sales Services
Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing Date until
31 December 2023.

A fee representing a fixed amount for each car parking space
sold with the support of the Carpark Sales Services shall be
charged for the Carpark Sales Services, which shall be
determined after arm’s length negotiations with reference to
the location, condition and salability of the relevant unsold car
parking spaces as well as the anticipated operational costs
including labor costs.

The annual cap of the annual fee payable by the China SCE
Group and its joint ventures and associates under the Master
Carpark Sales Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2023 is RMB48.2 million, and the actual transaction
amount for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB2.1 million.

Commercial Property Management and
Operational Services

On 17 June 2021, the Company entered into a master
commercial property management and operational services
agreement (the “Master Commercial Property Management and
Operational Services Agreement”) with Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung,
a controlling shareholder, pursuant to which the Group agreed
to provide to Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung and his associates, mainly
including but not limited to the China SCE Group and its joint
ventures and associates, commercial property management and
operational services, including but not limited to (i) commercial
operational services at the pre-opening stage including (a)
market research and positioning, (b) advice on architectural
design and (c) tenant sourcing and opening preparation services;
and (ii) commercial operational and property management
services during the operation stage, such as tenant coaching,
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basic security and cleaning, repair and maintenance services for
tenants as well as marketing and promotion services, tenant
management and rent collection services (the “Commercial
Property Management and Operational Services”). The Master
Commercial Property Management and Operational Services
Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing Date until
31 December 2023.

The fees to be charged for the Commercial Property
Management and Operational Services shall be determined after
arm’s length negotiations with reference to (i) the size, location
and neighborhood profile of the commercial properties; (i) the
scope of the services to be provided; (iii) the anticipated
operational costs (including but not limited to labor costs, cost
of materials and administrative costs); (iv) the rates generally
offered by the Group to independent third parties in respect of
comparable services; and (v) fees for similar services and types
of projects in the market.

The annual cap of the annual fee payable by Mr. Wong Chiu
Yeung and his associates under the Master Commercial Property
Management and Operational Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is RMB642.1 million, and the actual
transaction amount for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB46.4 million.

Residential Property Management Services

On 17 June 2021, the Company entered into a master
residential property management services agreement (the
“Master Residential Property Management Services
Agreement”) with China SCE Holdings, a controlling
shareholder, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide to
the China SCE Group and its joint ventures and associates
residential property management services, including but not
limited to (i) property management services for unsold
residential properties units, (ii) pre-delivery services including (a)
display units and property sales office management services,
and (b) cleaning, gardening and security services; and (iii) pre-
delivery inspection (the “Residential Property Management
Services"). The Master Residential Property Management
Services Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing
Date until 31 December 2023.
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The fees to be charged for the Residential Property
Management Services shall be determined after arm’s length
negotiations with reference to (i) the prevailing market price for
the relevant services (taking into account the location, size and
condition of the property, the scope of services and the
anticipated operational costs including but not limited to labor
costs, administrative costs and cost of materials); (ii) historical
transaction amounts; and (iii) the prices charged or would have
been charged by the Group for providing comparable services
to independent third parties.

The annual cap of the annual fee payable by the China SCE
Group and its joint ventures and associates under the Master
Residential Property Management Services Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 is RMB312.4 million, and the
actual transaction amount for the year ended 31 December
2023 was approximately RMB117.5 million.

Given the expiry of the terms of the Master Car Parking Lots and Public
Area Leasing Agreement, the Master Carpark Sales Services Agreement,
the Master Commercial Property Management and Operational Services
Agreement and the Master Residential Property Management Services
Agreement as mentioned above (collectively known as the “2021-2023
CCT Agreements”) on 31 December 2023, on 6 December 2023, the
Company has entered into new master agreements to renew the
2021-2023 CCT Agreements. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 6 December 2023 and the circular of the Company
dated 8 January 2024 for further details.

CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the Master Car Parking Lots and
Public Area Leasing Agreement, the Master Carpark Sales Services
Agreement, the Master Commercial Property Management and
Operational Services Agreement and the Master Residential Property
Management Services Agreement as mentioned above (collectively
known as the “Agreements”), and confirmed the Agreements have
been entered into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a

whole.
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CONFIRMATIONS FROM THE COMPANY’S
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Group has
engaged its auditor to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
issued by the HKICPA. The auditor has issued an unqualified

letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the

Rules”

aforesaid continuing connected transactions conducted by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and confirming that nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe the continuing
connected transactions disclosed in this report:

(@  have not been approved by the Board;
(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of

goods or services by the Group;

()  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d)  have exceeded the relevant annual caps.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company repurchased a total of 140,000,000 shares of the
Company at an aggregate consideration of HKD207,833,530 on the

Stock Exchange.

Particulars of the shares repurchased during the year are as follows:

ESEHE

EE BERShEARARR LT
°E 75

INNETHS ﬁxﬁﬁw@ﬁﬁagzm 833,530/8 7T
B& [0 & 3£ 140,000,000 AN A BIA% D -

REABEBROBERMAT :

Number of Highest Lowest Total
Month in which shares price paid price paid consideration
shares were Date of repurchased per share per share paid
repurchased cancellation (shares) (HKD) (HKD) (HKD)
BOROHE SRESER SRBEER IXNEBEE
BERDA G xR (B%) (&) (B7) (&)
January 2023 6 February 2023 60,000,000 1.96 1.89 114,785,650
“E-=%—-fA Z—ZT-=%-"AKH
August 2023 21 September 2023 7,170,000 1.12 1.08 7,939,750
“E-=FN\A ZE=FhAA-+—H
September 2023 21 September 2023 72,830,000 1.19 1.15 85,108,130
“E=FAA ZE=FhAA-+—H
Total 140,000,000 207,833,530

BB

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company or its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB1,614,641,000.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately RMB10,000.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the combined revenue
from the Group's five largest customers accounted for 13.4% (2022:
23.7%) of the Group's total revenue and the revenue amount from
the Group’s single largest customer, the China SCE Group, accounted
for 12.2% (2022: 21.8%) of the Group’s total revenue. Other than
the China SCE Group, its joint ventures or associates and Wong
Family, the Group’s customers during the year ended 31 December
2023 were all independent third parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, combined purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the
Group's total purchases.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the
Company) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Lun
Mr. Niu Wei
Mr. Sun Qiang
Mr. Zheng Quanlou
Ms. Ku Weihong

Non-executive Director
Mr. Huang Youquan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ding Zuyu
Mr. Wang Yongping
Mr. Pang Hon Chung
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In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association,
at each annual general meeting, one third of the directors for the
time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third) will retire from office
by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. The
directors to retire in every year will be those who have been longest in
office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who became or were last re-elected directors on the same
day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. There are no provisions relating to
retirement of directors upon reaching any age limit.

Mr. Sun Qiang, Ms. Ku Weihong and Mr. Ding Zuyu will retire as
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from all the three
independent non-executive Directors and as at the date of this report
still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 37 to 44 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Wong Lun, Mr. Niu Wei, Mr. Sun Qiang, Mr. Zheng
Quanlou and Ms. Ku Weihong, being executive Directors, has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 6 January 2021. Mr. Huang Youquan, being a non-
executive Director, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 6 January 2021.
Each of their service contracts is renewable automatically upon the
expiry of the then current term of appointment, subject to termination
by either party giving not less than three months’ written notice.
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The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of Mr. Ding
Zuyu, Mr. Wang Yongping and Mr. Pang Hon Chung, being
independent non-executive Directors, for an initial term of three years
commencing from 10 June 2021, which is renewable automatically
thereafter and subject to termination by either party giving not less
than three months’ written notice and the retirement by rotation
requirement in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company and the Listing Rules.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND DIRECTORS!
REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee oversees the overall remuneration
policy and structure of the Group. The Group provides employees
with competitive remuneration and benefits. The remuneration policy
is reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and
contribution of the employees and the industry remuneration level.

The authority of the Board to determine directors’ fees are subject to
shareholders’ approval at general meetings. The emoluments payable
to the Directors are determined by the Company’s Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions set out in note 32 to the financial statements
and the transactions specified in the paragraphs headed “Connected
Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions” in this section,
no Director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, the holding company of the Company, or any of the
Company'’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party at the end
of the year or at any time during the year under review.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report, there was or is permitted indemnity provision (within the
meaning in Section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company being in
force.

The Company has maintained directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for certain
legal actions brought against its directors and officers arising out of
corporate activities.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code, are as follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest

EEg

HE

—lk\

E R HY IR (B 15 XX

RERAQBNAKSEAR - BEFHOBE
XX (E&EREBBRRGRDIF 469 1K) £EE
TEC=F+ A=t -HLEFEAREE
A@EARGRER

RAEER ARAFREREEZENSREE
ABRIREE S A B EIEF M 5| £ 2R R KA

BEEENSNEBABEER -
#%&\E%‘?ﬁﬁ%/\é\bﬁﬂ%ﬁ :
MR 10 Mo (8 7 78 A 3 o MO
AL

=

RZTE-_=F+-_A=+—H BFZ=ELKARQ

AERTBRABRARASEBEEE(EE
REZREEHRAIEXVED) O - R
DREEET  BEARARBREBERESFK
HEGRIIEINRGFENELMPELIR
EREST R ZABAMA R A MBI
/KE\ZZDT-

() REQXIARDGREBEAROGHNER

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding

Number of
Ordinary Shares

EEHE EEME ZEREE Batt
Mr. Niu Wei Interest in a controlled corporation 75,452,716 M 3.90%
FEEE ZEEHEE R
Mr. Sun Qiang Interest in a controlled corporation 20,120,724 @ 1.04%
Rog S A B HE i
Ms. Ku Weihong Interest in a controlled corporation 50,301,811® 2.60%

BRIt A E S
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Notes:

These 75,452,716 Shares were registered in the name of Graceful
Solar Limited (“Graceful Solar”). Mr. Niu Wei held 100% of the issued
share capital of Graceful Solar and was deemed to be interested in
the 75,452,716 Shares held by Graceful Solar under the SFO.

These 20,120,724 Shares were registered in the name of Surplus Star
International Limited (“Surplus Star”). Mr. Sun Qiang held 100% of
the issued share capital of Surplus Star and was deemed to be
interested in the 20,120,724 Shares held by Surplus Star under the
SFO.

These 50,301,811 Shares were registered in the name of Golden Skill
Investments Limited (“Golden Skill”). Ms. Ku Weihong held 80% of
the issued share capital of Golden Skill and was deemed to be
interested in the 50,301,811 Shares held by Golden Skill under the
SFO.

575,452,716 BEAR 5 LATERS B IR A 7] ([ HE
Bl ZEER -FREEFAREGNE
HEBEITRA  AURIEFESRBEE K
Bl 3% 1% & ¥ A HE 5+ B 175,452,716 R
B e

5220,120, 72488 A E BB BR A
A(RE)ZBRER KREERER
ENE2HEETRA  ARBREES R
HEKNWEARBEERZEHEN
20,120,724 & 15 -

#50301 8 BEBRMH NS EREFRA
A2 BETR BEFHALLHES
LEM80% B FHITRA - FAURIEEF
LHEKIGERABESCERERN
50,301,811 B %15 °

(i) Long Positions in the Share Options of (i) AMEBEIEERENGT S
Associated Corporations
Approximate
Name of Associated Number of Percentage of
Name of Director Corporation Nature of Interest Ordinary Shares Shareholding
BEERZ BAER
E=EB B LB 28 ERME EEREE BOL
Mr. Zheng Quanlou China SCE Holdings Beneficial owner 30,000,000 0.71%
BrEgis ERIERR EREBA (Note) (Ff )
Ms. Ku Weihong China SCE Holdings Beneficial owner 30,000,000 0.71%
B L ERIERR EREEA (Note) (Pfi &)
Mr. Huang Youquan China SCE Holdings Beneficial owner 16,000,000 0.38%
UL E H R R EREEA (Note) (Pfi &)
Note: Such interests are in the form of share options of China SCE Holdings Mot ZEm AP BIEROBR O ERERX
which have not yet been exercised as at 31 December 2023. BEMR-ZE-=F+=-A=+—8¥%
RITHE ©
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the [ FXFHEEIN R_ZET-_=F+ = A

Directors and chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant

to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company £

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND OTHER FTERELEMALTRED X
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN ~ #HFEgF \ )
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the RZ-ZZE-_=F+=-A=+—H  FAL(XR
persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) in  AEEH T ETHABKRIN FEARR B D K&
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the  1BRI% 0 P HEA LSRR AR AR IEE 5 M HA
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 & 15 5 336 5B 7 & M) & 50 i A A 2 S

of the SFO are as follows: = UENE
Long positions: HE:
Approximate
Number of Percentage of
Name Nature of Interest Ordinary Shares Shareholding
£ ERtE ZHERYE #HMAEREIH
Happy Scene Global Limited Beneficial owner 1,248,490,946 64.52%
(“Happy Scene”)®
BEIRIKER ARG ([E#5])D EmERA
Affluent Way International Limited Interest in a 1,248,490,946 64.52%
(" Affluent Way")™® controlled corporation
BEEBERERAR ([HE])O TP EB R
China SCE Holdings™ Interest in a 1,248,490,946 64.52%
controlled corporation
R R AR ™ T EE R
Newup Holdings Limited Interest in a 1,248,490,946 64.52%
(“Newup")@ controlled corporation
AERERAB(HAD® REEEEE
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung® Interest in a 1,248,490,946 64.52%
controlled corporation
HHlGLE® TP EB R
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ESEWE

Number of

Approximate
Percentage of

Name Nature of Interest Ordinary Shares Shareholding
£ sty ZHEREE #MAgERESH
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited® A concert party to an agreement 462,856,000 23.92%
to buy shares described in
s.317(1)a)
FEET (BB BRAF 25.317(1)(a) 1§ Fr il B8 B A% 19 1 2%
) —EITE) AL
Other® 41,144,000 2.13%
Hw
Sub-total 504,000,000 26.05%
INEF
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited® Interest in a controlled corporation 504,000,000 26.05%
FIRES (IR BR AR 2P LB
BOC Hong Kong (BVI) Limited® Interest in a controlled corporation 504,000,000 26.05%
BOC Hong Kong (BVI) Limited® A E R
BOC Hong Kong (Group) Limited® Interest in a controlled corporation 504,000,000 26.05%
FIREE(EE)BRAAC 2P LB
Bank of China Limited® Interest in a controlled corporation 504,000,000 26.05%
FEIRITRR D BBR A RO YA E
Central Huijin Investment Ltd.® Interest in a controlled corporation 504,000,000 26.05%
FRECREBREETAFO 2P LB
CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited® A concert party to an agreement 462,856,000 23.92%
to buy shares described in
s.317(1)a)
BEKERITERAA® 5.317(1)(a) (T BE B IR D 1 3%
B —EITE) AL
Other® 41,144,000 2.13%
Hw
Sub-total 504,000,000 26.05%
INEF
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Approximate

Number of Percentage of
Name Nature of Interest Ordinary Shares Shareholding
=1 BEME EBEREE BMOBEREIHK
Guangzhou Yue Xiu Holdings Limited®” Interest in a controlled corporation 504,000,000 26.05%
BMBEEBRGOBRAR OO R EE S
HSBC Holdings plc®+® Interest in a controlled corporation 504,000,000 26.05%
ELERARA RO REAERER
Luso International Banking Limited® A concert party to an agreement 41,144,000 2.13%
to buy shares described in
s.317(1)a)
BPIBEBRIRITIRDBR AR 55 5.317(1)(a) 15 P 3t B B AR 19 10 3%
B—BITB$AL
Other® 462,856,000 23.92%
Hip®
Sub-total 504,000,000 26.05%
NEE
Nanyang Commercial Bank (China) A concert party to an agreement 41,144,000 2.13%
Limited Shenzhen Branch® to buy shares described in
s.317(1)a)
MARERIT(PE)ARAT 55.317(1)a) 6 Fr it i B D 3%
RN IT B—BITB$AL
Other® 462,856,000 23.92%
Hip®
Sub-total 504,000,000 26.05%
It
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Number of

Approximate
Percentage of

Name Nature of Interest Ordinary Shares Shareholding
£ sty ZHEREE #MAgERESH
The Bank of East Asia, Limited® A concert party to an agreement 462,856,000 23.92%
to buy shares described in
s.317(1)(a)
REIRITAERAA® Fs.317(N) ) & AT L EE B IR 17 1 i
) —EITE) AL
Other® 41,144,000 2.13%
Hip®
Sub-total 504,000,000 26.05%
INEF
Ever World Global Limited Person having a security interest 744,490,946 38.47%
in shares
BEFREAER AT PR EEREREZ 2 AL
Mr. Yang Chunjin® Interest in a controlled corporation 744,490,946 38.47%
BEBLEE® S EE R
Mr. Chow Wai Shing Daniel® Other 504,000,000 26.05%
BEKLE Hft
Mr. Gardner Aaron Luke® Other 504,000,000 26.05%
Gardner Aaron Luke® HAith
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Happy Scene is wholly controlled by Affluent Way, which is in turn wholly
controlled by China SCE Holdings. By virtue of the SFO, Affluent Way and
China SCE Holdings are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Happy
Scene.

China SCE Holdings is controlled as to 39.31% by Newup, and 5.45% by
each of East Waves Investments Limited (“East Waves”) and Keen Century
Investments Limited (“Keen Century”). Each of Newup, East Waves and Keen
Century is wholly controlled by Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung. By virtue of the SFO,
Newup and Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung are deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by China SCE Holdings.

Reference is made to the joint announcement of the Company and China
SCE Holdings dated 19 December 2023. China SCE Holdings had defaulted
on payment of an instalment of principal and interest which had fallen due
under its syndicated loan agreement entered into on 22 March 2021. This
constituted a cross default and gave rise to an event of default under a
facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) dated 4 July 2023 entered into
by China SCE Holdings as borrower coordinated by The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited with, among others, a syndicate of
banks (the “Banks”) as the original lenders, pursuant to which the liabilities
and obligations of China SCE Holdings are secured by, among other things,
charges over 504,000,000 shares in the Company originally held by Happy
Scene (the “Charged Shares”) in favour of the security agents of the Banks.
Following the event of default, the Banks have taken enforcement action
over the Charged Shares.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited acts as the
common security agent in the two security agreements in relation to the
Facility Agreement such that the interests of the security agent in the other
security agreement, in which the substantial shareholder is not a party to, are
attributable to the substantial shareholder.

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited is wholly controlled by BOC Hong Kong
(Holdings) Limited, which is in turn controlled as to 66.06% by BOC Hong
Kong (BVI) Limited. BOC Hong Kong (BVI) Limited is wholly controlled by
BOC Hong Kong (Group) Limited, which is in turn wholly controlled by Bank
of China Limited. Bank of China Limited is controlled as to 64.03% by
Central Huijin Investment Ltd.. By virtue of the SFO, BOC Hong Kong
(Holdings) Limited, BOC Hong Kong (BVI) Limited, BOC Hong Kong (Group)
Limited, Bank of China Limited and Central Huijin Investment Ltd. are
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited.
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Hang Seng Bank Limited is controlled as to 62.14% by The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited is wholly controlled by HSBC Asia Holdings
Limited, which is in turn wholly controlled by HSBC Holdings plc. By virtue of
the SFO, HSBC Holdings plc and HSBC Asia Holdings Limited are deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited; HSBC Holdings plc, HSBC Asia Holdings Limited and
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited are deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Hang Seng Bank Limited.

Chong Hing Bank Limited is wholly controlled by Yuexiu Financial Holdings
Limited, which is in turn wholly controlled by Yuexiu Enterprises (Holdings)
Limited. Yuexiu Enterprises (Holdings) Limited is in turn wholly controlled by
Guangzhou Yue Xiu Holdings Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Guangzhou Yue
Xiu Holdings Limited, Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited and Yuexiu
Enterprises (Holdings) Limited are deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Chong Hing Bank Limited.

Ever World Global Limited is wholly controlled by Mr. Yang Chunjin. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Yang Chunijin is deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Ever World Global Limited.

Mr. Chow Wai Shing Daniel of FTI Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited and
Mr. Aaron Luke Gardner of FTI Consulting (BVI) Limited were appointed as
the joint and several receivers of the Charged Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person, other

than a Director or chief executive of the Company, whose interests

are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”

above, had registered an interest or short position in the Shares and

underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed "Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions In Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate granted to
any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, nor
were there any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transaction
and Continuing Connected Transactions” above, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business between the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries nor contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business whether or not for provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries subsisted during or at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company, which
were not contract of service with any Director or any person engaged
in full time employment of the Company, were entered into or existed
during the year.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations under
Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Please refer to the section headed “Chairman’s Statement —
Outlook” for an indication of the likely future development in the
Group's business.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS” INFORMATION

There is no information required to be set out in this annual report
pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.
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AUDITOR = Z1RM

With effect from 29 December 2023, Ernst & Young resigned asthe H-ZE-_=F+=-A =+ ABER  ©XK
auditor of the Company, and the Board resolved to appoint Prism as & EF BT B E A D B2 SR — 8% >
the external auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy EFEEHAZELSBEBHARQBNITIZ
following the resignation of Ernst & Young and to hold office until &l * NIEF T K @A =EATE B %E PR
the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company. B Z=fh THEEARAF TERBEEAFEAS
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29 #FRE It - E—HFHBBFLHAQRBHA
December 2023 for further details. —E_=HE+ZAZ+tNABANRE -

Prism will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditor ~FE&HEHBNREREREBFEAE LRTARD
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general R Al & FHSIEE —ERBEEH LT

meeting. H AR RIZEE -

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD REEEE

Wong Lun R

Chairman FE

Hong Kong BE

27 March 2024 —EZME=A=++tH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

18 M % BLAD

G
TR

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SCE
Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 92
to 202, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 were audited by another auditor who expressed
an unqualified opinion on those statements on 30 March 2023.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VR TR

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matter

HEETER

Expected credit losses (“ECLs") of trade receivables

EZRUSEZBHERER([BHEEER])

The Group has trade receivables mainly from the commercial
operational and property management services. The gross
carrying value of trade receivables as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB280.7 million and provision for impairment
of approximately RMB6.3 million.

BESEBEIERARERELRYEEERK ZEZ R
RE-R-TE_=F+_A=+—H BHREFE LK
HESMARE2807TEE T IR REREBEOARYE63
BE-

Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management to assess the ECLs for the trade receivables, with
reference to the groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and service type)
and forecast economic conditions. To support management’s
assessment of the ECLs, the Group engaged an external valuer
to perform assessment on the ECLs of the trade receivables at
the end of the reporting period.

ERENHEIRUREZRMEEEREFE(FEHEANML
kAl Y2EEBREARAUNTRZEF DM (AEF R
B R BRI HE R R IERIEEAR - BB E R B ETEME
EEE BESECZBINGHEMRRSHERKNES
FEMGRIR Z FREE E B ETTRIA -

The accounting policies and disclosures for the assessment of
the ECLs of the trade receivables are included in notes 2.4, 3
and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRWRBZEREESEENTIENETHRREREED
BREEGEVEHRERNE24-3%19°

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

TREEERRBIERERAA

BHREEESREERERLTZERR
(REASHETME A BRAA)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMREBERPNAEEEHEBERETSEE

Our procedures included the assessment of the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls which govern the debt
collection and estimate of ECLs. We evaluated the
objectivity, independence and competency of the
valuer engaged by the Group. We also involved an
independent valuation specialists to assist us to assess
the methodologies and assumptions adopted
including both historical and forward-looking
information in the assessment for estimating the ECLs
of the trade receivables.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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To the shareholders of

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Fung Shing Bun, Spencer.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fung Shing Bun, Spencer

Practising Certificate Number: P07451

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Htb 2 H Wz &

Year ended 31 December 2023 Eizﬁ_?::iﬂ’:ﬁ =+—HIEFE

meElEmk

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses

Finance cost

Share of profit of a joint venture

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income that
may be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable
to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT

Basic and diluted

i 25
RO
EH

H A A e W as
HENREHMAX

TTHRFAX
% E M

FEfE—RAERFRF

Bk % A 3
HIA R 2

FRER
HttZ2mEUBA

Notes

B

5

AR ERENMENIRER

BmAOHMBE KA

BEBINREOEN Z8

FREMBEBA

FRAEEBALE

TS B F -
BAREEA

IR AE S

T BIEEEREWRALLR

BARHEEA

TR AE S

BAREBERESZFAA
it 5 R AR

EAXNEE

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

TREEERRBERERARA

12

2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
AR®T R

1,247,682
(837,943)

409,739

142,982
(9.818)
(193,022)

(122)
333

350,092
(86,846)

263,246

12,317

12,317

275,563

257,048

6,198
263,246

269,365
6,198

275,563

RMB A R #
12.9 cents &

2022
RMB’000
ARETT

1,182,371
(752,413)

429,958
46,357
(1,032)
(194,745)

(372)
271

280,437
(67,825)

212,612

19,784

19,784

232,396

208,069

4,543
212,612

227,853
4,543

232,396

RMB A R #
10.0 cents 73
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
ma BRI R

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

2023 2022
:g: = —_=__
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Nz AR TR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property and equipment L EYNEL 13 32,204 34,464
Investment properties "EYHE 14 1,026,077 341
Goodwill [EES 16 - 748
Intangible asset | EE 17 400 653
Prepayments SEENE ¢ 20 6,096 8,379
Amount due from a related party JiE W BA B 75 5RIR 32(a) - 644,445
Investment in a joint venture R—REEBLENIRE 18 2,259 1,926
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBE BE 24 58,921 27,414
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 1,125,957 718,370
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade receivables E%F’EH&%’\E 19 274,428 181,784
Prepayments, deposits and other TEfT 5K ?Zi%&
receivables Eﬁtf Wk 20 202,729 57,500
Amount due from a related party JrE Uk B B 5 7k0B 32(@a) 635,853 =
Pledged deposits B AER 21 - 1,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents BehBRESEEY 21 1,157,372 1,227,290
Total current assets MBEERE 2,270,382 2,466,574
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B NI 22 118,377 75,058
Other payables and accruals HMEARIERETER 23 306,139 270,965
Contract liabilities EHEE 23 253,312 197,808
Tax payable FEfIFR IR 41,958 52,325
Total current liabilities mE B ERE 719,786 596,156
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEETFE 1,550,596 1,870,418
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBAERE
LIABILITIES 2,676,553 2,588,788
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 - 665
Deferred tax liabilities FIERBAE 24 100 163
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERLE 100 828
Net assets BEFE 2,676,453 2,587,960
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
e TR R

31 December 2023 —E - =F+=-H=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= —E-
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T ARBEFT
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BATHEE ABGEER
of the parent
Issued capital BEITRA 25 16,024 17,292
Reserves e 26 2,639,721 2,556,158
2,655,745 2,573,450
Non-controlling interests FEERER 20,708 14,510
Total equity T AR 2,676,453 2,587,960
Wong Lun Niu Wei
Zfm 42
Director Director
EFE EFE

94 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
PEREEEEREERERLAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEERBBR

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-—E-=F+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAREARE
Share Statutory Non-
Issued  premium Capital Merger surplus  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
B&f i &x & iEEs# EX RE FER Bi

Bx iR 1] e il &l &N &t B 5
RVBO00  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTRL ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETZ ARWTZ ARRTR ARETR ARETR

(note 25) (note 26(b))  (note 26(a))
(HfsE2s) (Mt 26(0) (¥t 26(a))
At 1 January 2023 R-F-=%-A-H 17292 1,800,443 460 13,716 28,231 (27,099) 744401 2,573,450 14510 2,587,960
Profitfor the year Emgd - - - - - - 257048 257,048 6198 263246
Other comprehensiveincome ~ FRE 2K :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BAEBNERH
translation of foreign EiER
operations - - - - - 12317 - 12317 - 12317
Total comprehensive income M2 FEMALE
for the year - - - - - 12317 257,048 269,365 6,198 275,563
Transfer to statutory surplus ~~ BEEETRBERE
Teserve - - - - 1,209 - (1,209 - - -
Share-based payment WRHAERMER
expenses 53 - 1,693 - - - - - 1,693 - 1,693
Repurchase and cancellation 18 R S8 7
of shares note 25) (Hfzk25) (1268)  (187,495) - - - - - (188763) - (188763)
At 31 December 2023 RZZZ=Z%
+ZA=1-A 16,024 1,614,641* 460* 13,716* 25446%  (14,782)*  1,000,240* 2,655,745 20,708 2,676,453
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

nVT\

Year ended 31 December 2023 &

SEREDE

pay

E-E_=FE+_f=1+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SUNGEE N
Share Statutory Non-
Issued premium Capital Merger surplus— Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BEfT Tt B5 & EEES i3] "2 R B
A B i i G FlE it 2 3 @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETR ARETR
(note 25) (note 26(b))  (note 26(a))
(h3t25) (Kistaol)  (Hiet2e(a)
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—%-f-H 17292 1,887,319 460 13,716 23117 (46,383) 53745 2432533 997 2,442,500
Profitfor the year Enad| - - - - - - 208069 208069 4563 212612
Other comprehensive income A2 ERA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BRI
translation of foreign EXER
operations - - - - - 19,784 - 19,784 - 19,784
Total comprehensive income ~ ERZARALE
for the year = = - - - 19,784 208,069 227853 4543 232,39
Transfer tostatutory surplus ~— EREETRARE
Teserve - - - - 1,120 - (1,120) - - -
Share-based payment WRHAERMER
e1penses X - 1614 - - - - - 1,614 - 1,614
2021 final dividend ZZC-ERERS - (885%0) - - - - - (88,550) - (88550)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-Zf
+-A=1-H 17292 1,800,443* 460* 13,716* 24,237 (27,099 744401% 2573450 14510 2,587,960
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERERERREREEMBERRRNEGEE

96

RMB2,639,721,000 (2022: RMB2,556,158,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
GmEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE—_ZE - =F+-_A=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—Z=-= —E=-=
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5 ARETT ARETE
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHMBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 75 B g A 350,092 280,437
Adjustments for: THE
Finance cost % E R 6 122 372
Interest income F B U A 5 (85,516) (32,882)
Depreciation of property and equipment 1% K & T & 7 15,708 13,198
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 7 3,973 4,437
Depreciation of investment properties WEYERTE 7 264 343
Amortisation of an intangible asset B AEEE 7 253 253
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 WG IERE 7 1,242 3,929
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of & U B3 EsE /5 SR BB,
amount due from a related party CRE#EE) 7 (406) 4,731
Impairment of goodwill AR E 7 748 =
Gain on bargain purchase =B U e 5 (44,051) =
Gain on disposal of items of property HEMERZMEEE
and equipment, net Wz 55 5 (5) @)
Gain on termination of leases HER W= 5 - (188)
Share-based payment expenses PARR 7 B E R A X 7 1,693 1,614
Share of profit of a joint venture B —RE &R EET (333) (271)
243,784 275,966
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e W R IE N (92,551) (113,951)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, A 5RIE - B REAM
deposits and other receivables JE W R IR A (35 hn) 8,580 (18,267)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B 5P sRIEE MmO ) 33,473 (1,742)
Increase in other payables and accruals b & < 3008 & JE 5+ & 1 A0 21,974 18,933
Increase in contract liabilities EHEEE 51,548 5,371
Cash generated from operations REEEMERE 266,808 166,310
Interest received B W F B 45,015 14,676
Interest paid EFE (122) (372)
Income tax paid BFTSH (96,288) (71,616)
Net cash flows from operating activities A& EETEIR & REFHE 215,413 108,998
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
nﬂ§ ﬂagﬁhﬂbgaiﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T —_=F +-_A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property and
equipment

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property and equipment

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due
from related parties

Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with

original maturity over three months
Decrease/(increase) in pledged time
deposits

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Repurchase and cancellation of shares
Decrease in amounts due to
related parties
Lease payments
Dividend paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
the consolidated statement of
financial position

Less: Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity over three months
when acquired

&
i

U
aw

JFE Y2 B Rk 73 SRIRORL A (3 0)

IR
=
#
il

El
&

Gii|
=

&b

F

E:

-3

RERBAEEEYERIM

=

EEHMBRERE
EMELREBERB
BB AR

EMERRZEEE
1S 30R

BEAZR=EAZ
IEHHT?W\/W A /(iij][l)

BREHREFEFRD, (5 0)

BESMARESREFRE

EERBERERE

i NOT SHAR 19
1 BaHsE 5 SRR R

Bt
=)

BEPMARTS REFR
RERBESEURL FE

MNREMEEEEY

KRBT EFHE

REERREEEY

T EMBARRKMAI 2

ReMEEEFEY

BARIHE
ZR =88 2 REEM
EHIER

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the 4R AR & RERFTRAY

consolidated statement of cash flows

RBehREeEEY
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Notes

B 5E

27

25

21

2023
—=— =

RMB’000
ARBT R

(17,799)
(1,085,676)

383

8,998

10,000

1,000,000
(84,094)

(188,763)

(4,102)

(192,865)

(61,546)
264,790

1,628

204,872

1,157,372

(952,500)

204,872

2022

—_—

RMB’000
ARBEFT

(12,497)

721
(649,176)
(962,500)

(1,000,000)
(2,623,452)

(47,060)
(4,366)
(88,550)
(139,976)

(2,654,430)
2,899,610

19,610

264,790

1,227,290

(962,500)

264,790
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NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 20 August 2019. The registered office
address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
addresses of the principal place of business of the Company in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong are
5/F, SCE Tower, No. 2, Lane 1688, Shenchang Road, Honggiao
Business District, Shanghai, China and Room 2801, Hysan Place,

Cayman Islands. The

500 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, respectively.
The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 2 July 2021.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) were involved in the provision of property
management services and commercial operational services in
the PRC during the year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Happy Scene
Global Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”), is the immediate holding company of the
Company, and China SCE Group Holdings Limited (together
with its subsidiaries but excluding the Group, the “China SCE
Group”), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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31 December 2023 —_E-_=9F+_HA=+—H
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ = /jﬁﬁ#&%élq—j

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

ARRIZEEMBRARANR T =%
TTA=t—HRZHBET:

December 2023 are as follows:

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration registered attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
B3/ R BET
A% XM LER/ZEMRA AQFAEGREESL TEEER
Direct Indirect
HE Gk
Lofty Idea Enterprises Limited BVI Us$100 100% - Investment holding
BELEERAF KBRS 100 =70 RERR
Mega Time Developments Limited BVI Us$100 - 100%  Investment holding
ERZEREARAA EEREAHS 100%7T REER
Shine Sino Limited BVI Us$100 100% - Investment holding
BERRNA KBRS 100 =70 RERR
Cheer Fantasy Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Investment holding
HEREARR & 100 7T REER
First Bright Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 100%  Investment holding
BEEEERA B 100 7T RERR
Superior Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Investment holding
hEEERRAA BB 100 7T REER
Nan'an Meilin China SCE Commercial PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd *#
MRENPREEERBRA R B/ E A AR 5,000,000 7T NEER
Shanghai China SCE Hongshen PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Property management
Commercial Management Co., Ltd *#
IEPRIREHEERRBERAFA  E/ PEA AR 10,000,000 7T NEER
Xiamen China SCE Commercial PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd
(“Xiamen China SCE") **
EFTRARERERAA hE/ B A% 100,000,000 & NEER

(TEFRE)) =

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2023 are as follows: (Continued)

e R ERRM A

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H
1. BFEER@®@
EBEHBARNER (&)

ARBAZETEMBRAANR_-_ZT_=F
TZA=1T—HZHFRBAT : (&)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration registered attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
B3/ R BT
A% XM LER/ZEMRA AQAEGREESL TEEER
Direct Indirect
E# Gk
Quanzhou Taicheng Commercial Property  PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd *#
SMNEREENEEBERAR hE/ RN A% 10,000,000 7T NEER
Beijing World City Property Management ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 = 100%  Property management
Co., Ltd ("Beijing World City") **
ERERBYEERERLA hE/ RN AK#50,000,000 7T NEER
([t s ]) +
Quanzhou World City Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 = 58%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd
("QZ World City") *#
FMERBNFERBRAF HE/ B AR 10,000,000 7T NEER
(TR g ]) *
Xiamen Cippon Tai Wo Property PRC/Chinese Mainland HK$1,500,000 - 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd
("Xiamen Cippon Tai Wo") *#
EFERENYEEBERAR PE/HEAL 1,500,000 7T nEER
([EPttF5=A0])
Fujian Cippon Tai Wo Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd *#
REEARNYEERRRDR hE/ BN AR #10,000,000 7T NEER
Cippon Tai Wo (Shanghai) Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 = 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd
("Cippon Tai Wo (Shanghai)") **
tAEM (LB NEEBBERAF HE/ B ARH5,000,000 7T NEER

(Tt (L)) =
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nﬂicnljﬁ&ﬁﬂi%%Mﬁ

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2023 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued
ordinary/
registered

Name and business share capital
R/ R BRT
A% EXY LER EMRE
Shanggiu Anshu Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB500,000
Management Co., Ltd *#
BEmRENEERERAA HE /R E R AR 500,000 7T
Shanghai China SCE Commercial PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB12,200,000
Management Co., Ltd
("Shanghai China SCE") *
LETEREXERERAA hE/ BRI ARH 12,200,000 7
([ EghER])™
Beijing Taiteng Real Estate Co., Ltd."* PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB600,000,000
EREREXERAA R/ E A AR #600,000,000 7T
* Registered as domestic limited liability companies under PRC law.

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

g The English names of these companies represent the best effort made
by management of the Company to directly translate their Chinese

names as they did not register any official English name.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the

Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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Percentage of equity

attributable

to the Company
AARELRER DL
Direct Indirect
HE %
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

ARBAZTEMBRARAN_-_ZT_=%
TZA=t—HAZFRBAT : (&)

Principal activities

TEEK

Property management

NEEHE

Commercial operational

services

Property investment

NERE

RIBFBEDEREMOBEARERAFA] -

RBEHEDEREMOIEBERE -

ERINEA QB ER
HIBFEFANFEEXBRAKTEE
EFEN—KED
A B 8 2

cEERA
ANFEeSTRIEENITR -

LR AW AREMERERREE
%’AEZ%X%%TJEE$ AES
AZERRM P X EBHEEEMS

Al EEZRB

3 fis 1) 1
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000") except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

Annual Report 2023
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31 December 2023 —_E-_=9F+_HA=+—H
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

2.2

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the
related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling
interest and the exchange reserve; and recognises the fair value
of any investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in
profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative

Information

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 12
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs that

are applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

HKFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard
for insurance contracts covering recognition and
measurement, presentation and disclosure. HKFRS 17
replaces HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. The standard
applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-
life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the
type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain
guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary
participation features. A few scope exceptions apply. The
overall objective of the standard is to provide an
accounting model for insurance contracts that is more
useful and consistent for insurers, covering all relevant
accounting aspects. The core of the standard is the
general model, supplemented by:

o a specific adaptation for contracts with direct
participation features (the variable fee approach);
and

o a simplified approach (the premium allocation
approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

As the Group did not have contracts within the scope of
HKFRS 17, the new standard had no impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 17 include changes to simplify
certain requirements in the standard and make financial
performance easier to explain. The amendments also
provide additional reliefs to reduce the effort required for
the transition to HKFRS 17. In addition, the amendments
defer the effective date of HKFRS 17 to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier
application permitted. As a result of the deferral, the
HKICPA issued the amendments to HKFRS 4 Extension of
the Temporary Exemption from HKFRS 9 to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS
39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023. The amendments had no impact
on the Group's financial statements as the Group did not
have contracts within the scope of HKFRS 17.

Amendment to HKFRS 17 is a transition option relating to
comparative information about financial assets presented
on initial application of HKFRS 17, which helps to avoid
temporary accounting mismatches between financial
assets and insurance contract liabilities, and improve the
usefulness of comparative information for users of
financial statements. An entity that chooses to apply the
transition option set out in this amendment shall apply it
on initial application of HKFRS 17. The amendments had
no impact on the Group’s financial statements as the
Group did not have contracts within the scope of HKFRS
17.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed the
material accounting policy information in note 2.4 to the
financial statements. The amendments did not have any
impact on the measurement, recognition or presentation
of any items in the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined as
monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject
to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify
how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. Since the Group’s approach
and policy align with the amendments, the amendments
had no impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the
scope of the initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so
that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group has
determined the temporary differences arising from right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately, which have
been reflected in the reconciliation disclosed in note 24 to
the financial statements. However, they did not have any
material impact on the overall deferred tax balances
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the related deferred tax balances qualified for
offsetting under HKAS 12.

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary
exception from the recognition and disclosure of deferred
taxes arising from the implementation of the Pillar Two
model rules published by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development. The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected entities
to help users of the financial statements better understand
the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes, including
the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar Two income
taxes separately in the periods when Pillar Two legislation
is effective and the disclosure of known or reasonably
estimable information of their exposure to Pillar Two
income taxes in periods in which the legislation is enacted
or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The Group
has applied the amendments retrospectively. Since the
Group did not fall within the scope of the Pillar Two
model rules, the amendments did not have any impact to
the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements. The Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSs, if

applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’®

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
Classification of Liabilities

as Current or Non-current

(the “2020 Amendments”)'#
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

(the “2022 Amendments”)"*

Supplier Finance Arrangements’

Lack of Exchangeability’

* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 A consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be

applicable to the Group is described below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the
HKICPA. However, the amendments are available for adoption
now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
(i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by
a right to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist
at the end of the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right
to defer settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that only if a
conversion option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for
as an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments to further clarify that,
among covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability as current
or non-current. Additional disclosures are required for non-
current liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with
future covenants within 12 months after the reporting period.
The amendments shall be applied retrospectively with early
application permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022
Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the amendments and whether existing loan
agreements may require revision. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the characteristics
of supplier finance arrangements and require additional
disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure requirements in
the amendments are intended to assist users of financial
statements in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure
to liquidity risk. Earlier application of the amendments is
permitted. The amendments provide certain transition reliefs
regarding comparative information, quantitative information as
at the beginning of the annual reporting period and interim
disclosures. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess
whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and
how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement
date when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of financial
statements to understand the impact of a currency not being
exchangeable. Earlier application of the amendments is
permitted. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot
restate comparative information. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or to the
cumulative amount of translation differences accumulated in a
separate component of equity, where appropriate, at the date
of initial application. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.
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The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of a joint venture is included in profit or
loss. In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment
in the joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of the joint venture is included as
part of the Group’s investment in a joint venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Business combinations other than those under common control
are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the

end of each of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for non-financial asset is required, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

TREEERRBERERARA

AEBEERSEREARERSFTHRES
B RPN R FR T DA BT T RE R BB (B & 18
ETFEEKAEERD o LRIt E T
% Bl o] B S 5 - 25 R R
EEE (BRI TRESENGETE
B 52D LR R E ERER
B-EREDENEEISBEABRIETF
I B2 IE A E R RORE B 18 M EE T
BEREE (FOBREMITE # ) - LR
BEEERENEEARAG ABZE B
FEEREHSBEAR  EHBERT
BEEEREOBEZEHEENEES
ST R B BR

ATALHR SRR - i

@ BRALTR—BALTHRZALTRE
MR EKE » M AL :

() FEAHAREEOEGIERK
(] 42 51| 7

(i) HAKEEESANTEN:
B

iy BAAEEXAEETRAHN
TEEBABN—HKE

Annual Report 2023
T FR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RANE

31 December 2023 —_E-_=9F+_HA=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved) 2.4 ERKEHIE

Related parties (Continued) B (&
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) ZATRFE TIEM—IBIEML
conditions applies: HEEE

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZERHEASEBRER—£E
group; B ERA]

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —"REBRS—EB (&5
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow —ERBNERA - MEAF
subsidiary of the other entity); k[ KB AR B E A

Al EERE

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (iiy ZERBEANEEHRER—F=
same third party; THEERE

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (ivy —REBRE=FHaEt
other entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ ME—BEBRZE=H

o)k /NG

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the ) ZEBDARAEEIAEE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an HAERESENNRMRL
entity related to the Group; BB R B FIET &l

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZEREMA @@ PTIA TSI
person identified in (a); HEEH

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (i) R@OFTHEIALTHEERZA
over the entity or is a member of the key ﬁi?ﬁ%’&ﬂi% ZER (S
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent ZERSERR]) E ZERA
of the entity); and B —HKE ;

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZEBIHTE SB[
part, provides key management personnel services RERRIMAEESAEE
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. WERFRBEEZEEAS -
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Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

20% to 33%
20% to 33%

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including right-
of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation on leasehold properties is provided to write off the
cost of the properties over the shorter of the estimated useful
lives and the lease terms of 3 years using the straight-line
method.

Depreciation on shopping mall is provided to write off the cost
of the property over the estimated useful lives of 35 years using
the straight-line method.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible asset (other than goodwiill)

Intangible asset acquired separately is measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful life of an intangible asset is assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. An intangible asset with a finite life is
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an intangible asset
recognised in profit or loss in the period is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant intangible asset.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The customer
relationship has a finite useful life and is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected useful life, taking into
account the prior experience of the renewal pattern of property
management contracts, which is 5 years.

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets, included in
“property and equipment” or “investment properties” line
items on the face of the statement of financial position,

representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful life of the underlying assets.
Buildings 3 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, and subsequently measured at cost
model, in accordance with the Group’s policy for
“investment properties”.
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Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group's current portion of lease liabilities is included
in other payables and accruals whereas the non-current
portion of lease liabilities is separately disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office and staff
quarters (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.
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Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of underlying assets to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is
classified as a finance lease or operating lease with reference to
the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the head
lease is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the on-
balance sheet recognition exemption, the Group classifies the
sublease as an operating lease.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are all classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group'’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
assets.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to

impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

3 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage2 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 —  Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, amounts due
to related parties and lease liabilities.

After initial recognition, they are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly
liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Annual Report 2023

,.vT\ jffi#ﬁ%:zﬁﬁ

31 December 2023 —_E-_=9F+_HA=+—H

HWEABEEHFEPRFAERTCEXE

SHETEEM BREUEARKER
INEBITEMT TREASHEFETHH

B RIMEREE -

EMRYEBEARK  BRBENTR
RIERRRBTEEMELAFZNS
B RAERE A R ROIR(E o BB
ENMNEREBRESRETABREARE
PR

FIEHeRmi SRR R - BERD
ASMER IR B B R TS R 8 a8 PA SN
MEMEEBRASERNEETER -

BN EEERABNRBHAREE
BERBSRMNTREGERNEE  RER
BEHMERECHEMIELD FCHEMH
BE(RBE) AREBARE KL
EBRRERNZEREME -

BT TR LR A B BRI 3RS B 45 RS
BERABENHERMERENBRE
MEREE 2 MROFTA B i Z AT RS -

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

TERBEERRBERERAF

135



136

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

B B TR R M 5

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

TREEERRBERERARA

BEFaHWE

\

BEPANRENE mR IR S &
ERPRER  HeBERRASEEAS
PRIZEE mk RIS M A REFHK

go

D

EANTHRERKRNEZELER KB
R AAKEREEERIIRTE
EEMBRESNERE AEKERE
WA ETEALEZOR BEEAE
REERE T HERZEREFR M
BERANRANREERIAARLREEKN
Wes B El - H)RARER o

AT EEATPREBE—FNE
ﬁ%ui RFEFEFPHERRE M
BEMD - BlaEREESENRE
B UYEAAKEREPZENE R
RN EBRER ST RROITIRERL
B-fManteEantsBRRHBEE—
FHEABRENZNRMERS - ARE
Mmﬂﬁmem@%T B IR A =R

ENENABEMEENNERX - BT
AN R B o v B S AR TS BV TR R A

\UH>

N

—FHATHEN  XHEBTERE
ABREFONTEERBTEMBREE

AIFE 1SN AIITRETNETIAFE -

Annual Report 2023
T FR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Property management services

The Group charges property management fees in respect of the
property management services on a lump sum basis.

On a lump sum basis, the Group is entitled to retain the full
amount of received property management fees. From the
property management fees, the Group shall bear expenses
associated with, among others, staff, cleaning, garbage
disposal, gardening and landscaping, security and general
overheads covering the common areas. During the term of the
contract, if the amount of property management fees the
Group collected is not sufficient to cover all the expenses
incurred, the Group is not entitled to request the property
owners to pay the shortfall.

Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group recognises
revenue as the full amount of property management fees the
Group charged the property owners and property developers.

These services are performed by an indeterminate number of
acts over a specified period of time. Accordingly, revenue is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the specified period
unless there is evidence that some other methods better
represents the stage of completion, and the cost of services is
recognised as incurred in connection with performing such
services.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly include
pre-delivery inspection services, pre-sale management services,
such as cleaning, security and maintenance services for pre-sale
display units and sales offices, and marketing and sales services
to promote sales of car parking spaces owned by non-property
owners. Revenue from provision of value-added services to non-
property owners other than the marketing and sales services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis
because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group.

In respect of provision of marketing and sales services to
promote sales of car parking spaces owned by non-property
owners, the Group charged a fixed service fee for each car
parking space sold with the support of the Group’s marketing
and sales services. Revenue is recognised at the point in time
when the services are rendered which is the time when the non-
property owners transfer the car parking spaces to their
customers.

Community value-added services

Community value-added services mainly include daily value-
added services provided to property owners and residents.
Revenue from community value-added services is recognised
when the related services are rendered and the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Community value-added services (Continued)

Community value-added services also include residential
property agency services provided to individual customers by
referring them to residential units owned by property developers
based on their specific requirements, assisting them to negotiate
for a favourable price and providing them with relevant
administrative services. Revenue from residential property
agency services is recognised at the point in time when the
services are rendered which is the time when the property
developers transfer the control of the residential units to the
customers.

Commercial operational services

The Group enters into commercial operational service contracts
with property developers or owners of office buildings and
shopping malls, pursuant to which the Group provides the
following services:

o market research and positioning, providing advice on
design, tenant sourcing and opening preparation services
to property owners during the preparation stage;

o commercial operational services during the operation
stage, including tenant management and rental collection
services; and

o on-going advisory services to provide guidance on
development and implementation of business operational
policies, including tenancy and brand portfolio
management, pricing policies, optimisation of business
processes and establishing service standards and staff
functionality and code of conducts.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Commercial operational services (Continued)

Revenue in respect of the provision of market research and
positioning services, providing advice on design, tenant sourcing
and opening preparation services was recognised at the point in
time when services have been provided and the Group has a
present right to payment for the services.

For commercial operational services during the operational
stage, the Group charges a service fee for business tenant
management and rent collection according to the terms in the
relevant contracts, which is generally a certain proportion of the
monthly rent and the revenue is recognised over time in the
period in which the services are rendered.

In respect of on-going advisory services to provide guidance on
development and implementation of business operational
policies, revenue is recognised when the related services are
rendered and the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Other income
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract, (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

The Group has offered restricted share awards for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. Further details of which are given in
note 28 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.
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Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. Where employees
leave the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer’s
contributions, the amount of forfeited contributions cannot be
used to reduce the contributions payable by the Group.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a central
pension scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) operated by the local
government, which is a defined contribution scheme. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages of
their payroll costs to the Pension Scheme. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the Pension Scheme is to pay the
ongoing contributions under the Pension Scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the equity holders of relevant entities comprising
the Group in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the memorandum and articles of association of relevant
entities comprising the Group grant their directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.
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Items included in the financial information of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates, i.e., the
functional currency. These financial statements are presented in
RMB while the Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong
dollars. In the opinion of the Company’s directors, as the
Group's operations are mainly in the PRC, the use of RMB as
the presentation currency is more appropriate for the
presentation of the Group’s results and financial position.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
prevailing at the end of each of the financial periods. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
subsidiaries operating outside the PRC are currencies other than
RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve, except to the extent that the differences are attributable
to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of the Company and certain subsidiaries
operating outside the PRC are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of Hong Kong entities which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are disclosed below:

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As a
result of the fact that certain matters relating to the income
taxes have not been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective
estimates and judgements based on currently enacted tax laws,
regulations and other related policies are required in
determining the provision for income taxes to be made. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on the
income tax and tax provisions in the period in which the
differences realise.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., customer type and service type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 19 to the financial
statements.
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Depreciation and impairment assessment of shopping mall

Shopping mall is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful lives. The determination of the useful lives involves
management’s estimation. The Group assesses annually the useful
lives of the shopping mall and if the expectation differs from the
original estimate, such a difference may impact the depreciation in
the year and the estimate will be changed in the future period.

The Group determines whether the shopping mall is impaired
whenever there is indication of impairment presented. The
impairment loss for shopping mall is recognised for the amount
by which the fair value lower than its carrying amount, in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. The fair value
of shopping mall has been determined based on valuations
performed by independent professionally qualified valuers. As at
31 December 2023, there were no changes on the estimated
useful lives after performing annual assessment. No depreciation
and impairment loss of the shopping mall is recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property
management services, value-added services and commercial
operational services. Information reported to the Group's chief
operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and performance assessment, focuses on the operating results
of the Group as a whole as the Group’s resources are integrated
and no discrete operating segment information is available.
Accordingly, no operating segment information is presented.

No geographical information is presented as the Group's
revenue from the external customers is derived solely from its
operations in Chinese Mainland for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 and the non-current assets of the
Group were substantially located in Chinese Mainland as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERRME

31 December 2023 —E - =F+=-H=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from the China SCE Group contributed 12% (2022:
22%) of the Group's revenue during the year. Other than the
revenue from the China SCE Group, no revenue derived from
sales to a single customer or a group of customers under
common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group's
revenue during the year (2022: Nil).

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:

KE2pEbER #)
TEEFEHR

RER - REPEEBENREERASE
BUWEHN12% (ZE-—F : 22%) - %
REPBEEBEHREIN  BERRRE
— RPN ARZEFN AR ELD
HEWSMAEBRRFERNRIZH10%
FNE(ZE=ZZF - &) -

REBEKZESFTWOT -

2023 2022
—=E=-= —F==
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTRT ARETT
Types of goods or services Eme iR EE
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFA RS K
Property management services MEERRE 883,447 771,836
Value-added services HER 349,106 365,491
Commercial operational services EESERNE S 15,129 45,044
1,247,682 1,182,371

(a) Disaggregated revenue information:

Year ended 31 December 2023

(a) WEZEDIFEHR :

—EC=H+-A=T-HLEFE

Property Commercial
management Value-added operational
services services services Total
MEEE MEEE
FR % BERY R @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTR AR®BTRn AR®TxR
Timing of revenue recognition 425 2 # 5
Services transferred over time IR ER R Y IR TS 883,447 313,881 - 1,197,328
Services transferred at a point R E— 2
in time BEN RS - 35,225 15,129 50,354
Total revenue from contracts EPaRKAE
with customers 883,447 349,106 15,129 1,247,682

150 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RANE

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& - A KRS @
(Continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information: () W=D HFEHR (8
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2022 TECF+ZA=t+—HALEE
Property Commercial
management  Value-added  operational
services services services Total
MEER BEEE
AR 2 ERS R Ry

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARETT ARETRH

Timing of revenue recognition 435 52 49 5 3

Services transferred over time 1B ER 82 R ) BR 7% 771,836 329,662 2357 1,103,855
Services transferred at a point ~ FA K — B [E1 2

in time BEN RS - 35,829 42,687 78,516
Total revenue from contracts B F A RS &5

with customers 771,836 365,491 45,044 1,182,371
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TREINAREHBARANTR
recognised in the current reporting period that were HEHYEAGHNEENKES
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the (o

reporting period:

2023 2022
—E=-= s
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTET

Revenue recognised that was included ~ R FR&E BB AR L AED

in contract liabilities at beginning B R W=

of the reporting period 197,808 192,437
Value-added services include residential property agency HERESEASEREARP
services provided by the Group to individual customers by RETEMERERD  BEFP
referring the customers to residential units owned by ENEMERENEBENEEE
property developers and providing them with price il WARERHERKABY R
negotiation assistance and administrative services. The TEART - NEEIRE S T8
Group charged the customers at mutually agreed service REERNEPUR #HE_-ZF
fees. During the years ended 31 December 2022, the T+ -_A=+—HLFE"
property agency services income earned was related to FTRRER 8 ¥ 2 R AR 75 U A B2 e
residential units sold by the China SCE Group. BREEHENFTFEEMER -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Property management services and value-added
services

The Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals
to the right to invoice which correspond directly with the
value of performance completed. The Group has applied
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 to its revenue from
property management contracts for not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations under the Group’s
existing contracts as these contracts do not have a fixed
term.

Commercial operational services

The Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals
to the rights to invoices which corresponds directly with
the value to the customers of the Group’s performance to
date. The amounts of unsatisfied performance obligations
are expected to be recognised in one to four years as at
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

The amount of transaction prices for commercial
operational services allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at the end of the year are as follows:

Amounts expected to be
recognised as revenue:
Within one year —F R
After one year —F1&

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

TREEERRBERERARA

BHER /KGN SR

BRAKREBORTNERSL
LN

VR EE RS RS ERE

AEBREENRRAILERNEN
MEeREERLE FRAER) A
EXKBEANEEEZMER X
SECKEEMBHREEAES
MR TRENEAERARYEE
Eanmlis ARZEFAOL
EREFH SUTEREARHE
ABANEATHRGBRENEET -

BARELER%

AEBEIREERHALBEZNER
MEEERKES  BEEZEER
AEBLZSRBENNEFEEBER
BEHRB -BE_ZT_=#1+_A
= t+t—HBER=ZZE=ZZ=ZF+=A
=t+—H RKBETTHWEHEMLE
HR — M F R o

RERDPETHR TEORECRE
T BB RIETT) HO 7 5658 & IR 7%

RHEWRSEUT :
2023 2022
—E-=F —=FE}-=
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTE

40,566 75,613
154,717 128,538
195,283 204,151

Annual Report 2023
T FR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RANE

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Y&z EId A KW E @)
(Continued)
Other income and gains H At g A R W 2

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains is as follows: REEEAMPARK S AT -

2023 2022

—E-= - ——
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TRT AREKTE
Bank interest income SRITR B U A 40,065 32,882
Interest income from a related party 2R B BB 7 m ) S 45,451 -
Gain on bargain purchase (note 27) mEREN Y (FeE27) 44,051 =

HE W R R B W F R

and equipment, net 5 7

Gain on disposal of items of property

Forfeiture income on deposits received B Wiz & 18 B A 480 1,091
Government grants YRR 12,212 9,125
Foreign exchange gain, net BE 3 Mo VR 124 1,926
Gain on termination of leases HER W - 188
Others HAh 594 1,138
142,982 46,357
FINANCE COST 6. MBEHN

2023 2022

—E—-= —E=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T
Interests on lease liabilities (note 15(c)) HEBEBENFE (HFFE15() 122 372
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

AEBBRE AN E MR GEA) T3

Cost of services provided*

B e f AR F R A AN

Depreciation of property and MERZETE
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE

Depreciation of investment REMEFE >
properties**

Amortisation of an intangible asset A EEH

Gain on bargain purchase ZBNEN S

Gain on disposal of property and equipment, i & ¥ 3 K 5% {5 )

net W F 58

Gain on termination of leases HEL W=

Lease payments not included in the RTAHEA R ER
measurement of lease liabilities MERR

Auditor’s remuneration ZHEB &

Employee benefit expense (including EERAFAX
directors’ remuneration (note 8)):
Salaries, bonuses and benefits in kind e EAREDEA

Share-based payment expenses PARR 12 A EL i /0 15 3B 2

Pension scheme contributions RIREFT SR

Impairment of trade receivables*** B 5 W IRR(E **~

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) JE U5 R B 7 TR BRI (E
of amount due from a related party*** CRERER) ***

Impairment of goodwill*** BB E

Foreign exchange gain, net B 5 e SR

* Cost of services provided included an aggregate amount of

RMB443,708,000 (2022: RMB445,023,000) which comprised
employee benefit expense, depreciation of investment properties and
lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
during the year. These amounts comprised the respective expense
items disclosed above.

*k The depreciation of investment properties amounting to RMB264,000
(2022: RMB343,000) was included in the cost of services provided
during the year.

**%  |mpairment of trade receivables amounting to RMB1,242,000 (2022:
RMB3,929,000), reversal of impairment of amount due from a related
party amounting to RMB406,000 (2022: Impairment of
RMB4,731,000) and impairment of goodwill amounting to
RMB748,000 (2022: Nil) were included in the administrative expenses
provided during the year.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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(BRESHH (L)) :

XIF :
2023 2022
—E-= —EoF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR® T ARETTT
837,943 752,413
13 15,708 13,198
13, 15(c) 3,973 4,437
14, 15(c) 264 343
17 253 253
27 (44,051) -
(5) @)
15(c) - (188)
15(c) 13,558 11,185
1,580 1,900
466,167 471,359
1,693 1,614
81,700 100,822
549,560 573,795
19 1,242 3,929
32(a) (406) 4,731
16 748 -
(124) (1,926)

* %

ERERBEOKAESERTEANES
AR #443,708,0007T (Z T = — 4 :
AR 445,023,000 7T) AlEERAFHAS -
BEMENERRGTARE u&ﬂ/ﬁ\E
FAEEEFENHENRE %ES
%ﬁ@%tﬁcﬁm&%maﬁ%%ﬁilﬁa

ARB264,000TT (ZE-—F: AR%
343,000 7T) BV 1% & W) E T E ThEt ARG
A B R AR B o

ARM1,242,000C (ZEZZF : AR
#%3,929,0007T) M & 5 & WK IERE
AR ® 406,000 (Z B = —4F : BEA
R % 4,731,000 7T) & & 42 B8 Bt 75 3K IR
BRSO R AR 748,000 (ZF - —4:
)R EREDF ARFEFATHRAX
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RANE

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEHM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the BIE ETARA - BB R FHEHI55383(1)
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong @ 0 OROBEURAR (HEESE
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure MmBR) ROIE2MBO B BENEEH
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as BT
follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F T
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTET

Fees e 807 771
Other emoluments: HiM < :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & « B K EWREF) 5,172 4,928
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 1,885 1,796
Pension scheme contributions RIKSETEIHER 298 325
Share-based payment expense (note) AR (7 BERE SR A () 1,683 1,604
9,845 9,424
Note: Share-based payment expenses were related to the restricted shares MisE : UMD AERNFREATER =T =F
issued and granted to certain directors and employees of the FZAZHEAERBETARAETES
Company on 2 March 2020, further details of this transaction are set REENZREIRNER LR FHH#
out in note 28. —HHBEHRMIE28 -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERRME

31 December 2023 —E - =F+=-H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

8. EFHMw
(a) BIUFHITESE

Salaries,
allowances Pension  Share-based
and benefits Discretionary scheme payment Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions expenses remuneration
e EHR BAheH ARDAER
wE  ENEN  BERA "% HEREX  FHAER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARET:
2023 —g-=f
Independent non-executive B FFH{TES :
directors:
Mr. Ding Zuyu TH2%E 269 - - - - 269
Mr. Wang Yongping TxFErk 269 - - - - 269
Mr. Pang Hon Chung YEREE 269 - - - - 269
807 - - - - 807
2022 t St
Independent non-executive  BUFEHITEE
directors:
Mr. Ding Zuyu THEEE 257 - - - - 257
Mr. Wang Yongping FFEEE 257 - - - - 257
Mr. Pang Hon Chung YEREE 257 - - - - 257
7 - - - - A
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RANE

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EE=#Ma
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) HITEERIFHITES
directors
Salaries,

allowances Pension  Share-based
and benefits  Discretionary scheme payment Total
in kind bonuses contributions expenses remuneration

e BER BREE URBAER
BNERN s #®  HEREX HagE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETLE ARETR ARBTT ARETR

2023 —BC-=F
Executive directors: HOES:
Mr. Wong Lun EREE - - - 64 64
Mr. Niu Wei LREEE 1,293 539 - 952 2,784
Mr. Sun Qiang Yt 1,293 268 175 254 1,990
Mr. Zheng Quanlou g2Ehs 1,293 539 63 64 1,959
Ms. Ku Weihong EfI Lt 1,293 539 60 285 2177
5172 1,885 298 1,619 8,974
Non-executive director: FHITES:
Mr. Huang Youguan HERE - - - 64 64
5172 1,885 298 1,683 9,038
2022 —B-CF
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Wong Lun EfRtE - - - 60 60
Mr. Niu Wei HEEE 1,232 513 50 908 2,703
Mr. Sun Qiang g A 1,232 257 143 242 1,874
Mr. Zheng Quanlou HrErE 1,232 513 65 61 1,871
Ms. Ku Weihong EEILT 1,232 513 67 2 2,084
4928 1,796 325 1,543 8,592
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Huang Youguan EELAE - - - 61 61
4,928 1,796 325 1,604 8,653
There was no arrangement under which a director waived REA BEEFHNEXREN
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year BEEMEFHOLHE (2T ==
(2022: Nil). ") -
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CRE e

an\

31 December 2023 —E - =F+=-H=+—H

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2022: four) directors,
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the

respectively, details of whose

remuneration of the remaining highest paid non-director
employee during the year are as follows:

e 2MLEMET
TE4L
ERE 8

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Discretionary bonuses )15
Pension scheme contributions

The number of non-director highest paid employee whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

RER AERESFHNEED
F2EE(ZT_—F:0%)
B RAM T8 NFER

M BEHR

IR
BEEF

BRTIERRFMIEEFTEENFHFHFBD

T

2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
AR TR

1,278
497
89

1,864

FMENATHEANIFESKR

BARBIT

2023

—E-=
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 78 7T % 2,000,000 % 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T & 2,500,000 7 7T 1
1

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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2022
RMB'000
ARBT T

1,350

81

1,431

= Hr B

2022

=
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10. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which the
Group's subsidiaries are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the
rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the BVI, the
entities within the Group incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI are not subject to any income tax. No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made during the year as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2022: Nil).

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Chinese Mainland are
subject to the PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") at a rate of
25% for the years. Certain subsidiaries of the Group in Chinese
Mainland satisfied the Inclusive Tax Deduction and Exemption
Policies for Micro and Small Enterprises. For a small low-profit
enterprise, the portion of annual taxable income which does not
exceed RMB3,000,000 shall be calculated at a reduced rate of
25% as taxable income and be subject to CIT at a rate of 20%.

e R ERRM A

31 December 2023 —_E-_=9F+_HA=+—H

10. FRIER X

AEEAERAEENE QR FMREE
FRERL TS Rl AR [ E £ 30R B H A 7
REREEMMNABH - RERSHS
REBEZBEENHRNRER ~&H
RASHES R EBEXES MK
EROABNTMAAMEH - FRLET
REBNEHEE BRAAEERZSF
R ER BB EET(ERBEF - (=
T fE) o

FAREERFEAMEZN B A
THiR25% BB R MP E D EMBH
(TEEFBERL) o AREERF E A A
ETHERARFE/NMIbELTEMER
WRBR - g EMAEME - FF
FERRTEFTIS 58 T H8 1B A K % 3,000,000
TR E D IR 25% 5t A E R T 15
B WK 20% BT R BN SIS

2023 2022
—Z=-= ===
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARETE
Current charge for the year: FRENHEARY :
PRC corporate income tax FE S EFTIS R 83,264 86,791
Under/(over)-provision in prior years: BEFETR/(HBRE)BHE -
Chinese Mainland AR A 2,657 (652)
85,921 86,139
Deferred (note 24) PEIE (BT5E24) 925 (18,314)
Total tax charge for the year FRBIBRAZ A5 86,846 67,825
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CRE e

31 December 2023 —E - =F+=-H=+—H

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and most of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
income tax expense at the effective income tax rate is as

follows:

Profit before tax

Tax charge at the PRC statutory income
tax rate

Lower tax rate for specific provinces or
enacted by local authority

Adjustments in respect of current tax
of previous period

Income not subject to tax

Expense not deductible for tax

Tax losses utilised from previous periods

Tax losses not recognised

Tax charge at the Group’s effective
tax rate

TREEERRBERERARA

BR 75 A1 A

BHRBIAEMBEREFTHEE

BIA

B RE & 10 33 75 BRI AT 32 A9

BERR

AEBEHRENE RSN

BERTUA
AR

PRBERENREREE
AR HE R E B IR S 18

BAKREERBEAEDN

PBIAS

ARQaE R E XIS K E AT M ATE A
VAR B A TE R 5T E M BR B AT A B
AOHIERS BB EGTENTIE
A BRI T ¢
2023 2022
—EC-=HF —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBET T
350,092 280,437
87,523 70,109
(2,346) (3,203)
2,657 (652)
(11,096) (68)
5,475 2,585
(58) (946)
4,691 =
86,846 67,825
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDENDS

The board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). No
interim dividend was declared in respect of the current year
(2022: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
of RMB257,048,000 (2022: RMB208,069,000), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,998,945,000 (2022:
2,075,000,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potential
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

Report 2023

FER

11.

12.

e R ERRM A

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H
A% B
EEeTERENEE_ZE =1+

A=+t —BLEFENRERE (=ZF
ToF R AFREYETIRTHRK

B(Z&=Z=Z: &) -
S reElERKkEREA A
(G B IR & T

FTEBRERRTNEEENES R AR
REZFEAEGRN AR
257,048,000 c (Z B - —F: AR¥
208,069,0007T) * LA R & A #EITH
1,998,945,000 N FH E BB EE (=
= — — 4 :2,075,000,000) °

HE-Z-_=FR=-ZF--F+=A
=+—BLEFE SREARFNCES
PN EL B (E DRI AR - IHERA
EERBE-ZTE-_=FR=-FT=_=

T A=t BLEFERALESEITE
T8 L imhx o

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

TERBEERRBERERAA

161



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

31 December 2023 —E - =F+=-H=+—H

13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME KK
Right-of-use
assets Owned assets
EREEE BREE
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Subtotal Total
HE-
BEHER
BF WARB L] g st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR ARET:R

31 December 2023 “B-=F+ZA=+-H
At 1 January 2023: W=E-=#-f—-8:
Cost KR 17,073 55,190 3,400 58,590 75,663
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (12,472) (26,019) (2,708) (28,727) (41,199)
Net carrying amount REFE 4,601 29,171 692 29,863 34,464
At 1 January 2023, net of W-ZE-=F—f—-A8"
accumulated depreciation MR 25TE 4,601 29,171 692 29,863 34,464
Additions NE - 17,791 8 17,799 17,799
Disposal HE - (330) (48) (378) (378)
Depreciation provided ENERNE
during the year (note 7) (FrzE7) (3.973) (15,381) (327) (15,708) (19,681)
At 31 December 2023, netof ~ RZZZ=%
accumulated depreciation +=-A=+—-8"
MR 25HE 628 31,251 325 31,576 32,204
At 31 December 2023: RZZZ=F
+-A=t+—-H8:
Cost KR 17,0713 72,186 3,336 75,522 92,595
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (16,445) (40,935) (3,011) (43,946) (60,391)
Net carrying amount REFE 628 31,251 325 31,576 32,204
162 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RANE

13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

13. W R R )

Right-of-use
assets Owned assets
EREEE BEEE
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Subtotal Total
FER
AERER
BT NG B Nt it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETr ARETr ARETR ARET:
31 December 2022 “B--#+-R=+t-H
At 1 January 2022: RZEZZf—-f—H:
Cost KA 21,731 43,853 3,680 47,533 69,264
Accumulated depreciation 2EIE (8,035) (13,361) (2,894) (16,255) (24,290)
Net carrying amount EmFE 13,696 30,492 786 31,278 44,974
At 1 January 2022, net of RZZEZ=5—-F—H"
accumulated depreciation MR 25E 13,696 30,492 786 31,278 44,974
Additions NE 1,651 12,258 239 12,497 14,148
Disposal HE - (714) - (714) (714)
Termination Kk (6,309) = = = (6,309)
Depreciation provided FRFRNE
during the year (note 7) (MEET7) (4,437) (12,865) (333) (13,198) (17,635)
At 31 December 2022, netof ~ RZZE==
accumulated depreciation +=-A=+-8"
R EIE 4,601 29,171 692 29,863 34,464
At 31 December 2022: R-E-—
+-F=t+-8:
Cost KA 17,073 55,190 3,400 58,590 75,663
Accumulated deprediation 25tHE (12,472) (26,019) (2,708) (28,727) (41,199)
Net carrying amount EmFaE 4,601 29,171 692 29,863 34,464
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an\

B B TR R M 5

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

Right-of-use Shopping
assets mall Total
EREEE BYIES #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTFT AREFTRT AR®TT
Carrying amount at .

1 January 2022 —A—HBERAE 684 - 634
Depreciation for the year (note 7) F R E (H=E7) (343) = (343)
Carrying amount at R=ZZE=Z=F+=A

31 December 2022 and =T—HRZZZ=%

1 January 2023 —A—HBERARE 341 - 341
Acquisition of subsidiaries UK B A (Fi=E27)

(note 27) - 1,026,000 1,026,000
Depreciation for the year (note 7) F R E (HzE7) (264) = (264)
Carrying amount at R=ZE=_=F

31 December 2023 +TZA=+—REKEE 77 1,026,000 1,026,077

The Group's investment properties included leasehold interests
in properties held for rental purposes and are situated in
Chinese Mainland. Based on valuation performed by
management, the estimated fair values of the investment
properties approximated to RMB67,000 (2022: RMB343,000) as
at 31 December 2023.

The Group's investment properties also included shopping mall
in Chinese Mainland. Based on valuation performed by Hong
Kong Jincheng Surveyors Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers, the estimated fair values of the investment
properties was RMB1,026,000,000 as at 31 December 2023.

In the opinion of the management of the Group, the fair value
of the shopping mall as at the date of acquisition approximates
the fair value as at 31 December 2023 since the time horizon is
short.
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AEEMREYMERERFIELHEAR
WENBERED AR P A -
BEEEBETHNEE RZTZ=F
TZA=T—HBNKREMEMGTALE
HEBAREE700IL (ZE__F: A
R #343,0007T) °

NEE IR E Y INEIE R B At
MIFE% o BIBB L EXESERHEME
BRI ETERARETHMEE R
T+ A=+—HANKREYE
EEr A ER AR 1,026,000,000 7T °

AEEEEERE ARFHEHBEER
& Wuﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ%ﬂ@@fa@%’]ﬁ
—E =+ _HA=+—HHARE-"
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties is using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).

Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique used and

the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable input

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R ERRM A

31 December 2023 —_E-_=9F+_HA=+—H

14. IREYZE (#)

i

D[REER

AEEREMEN R BRAERDTA
BERGABBETE(E=ZER) -

RER F—EBARE_EH ML E
ERAREFEERE  FZEBRAIET
AEARBEBH (T —F &) -

REDMEGEMANGBERTREES
ABEBEHINMT

Weighted average
As at 31 December

hniEFI5E
fhE T ERTABRBARE R+=HA=+-—H
2023 2022
—E-=F —EFE-=
Retail Income approach Adopted unit rate (per square foot) RMB107 RMB75
eSS WATE KRERMNEE(EFFHER) AR®107t  AR%®757%T
Direct comparison Price per square meter
approach RMB13,070 N/A
HELBUA BFTAKER AR®
13,070 T i

Under the income approach, fair value is estimated on the rental
value per square foot. A significant increase/decrease in the
adopted unit rate would result in a significant increase/decrease
in the fair value of the investment properties.

Under the direct comparison approach, fair value is estimated
by referring to comparable sales transactions as available in the
market. The key input was the price per square meter. A
significant increase/decrease in the price per square meter
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value
of the investment properties.
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BREEERLEE  AAEDNAZEMS
EAHER HETHEE - BF T KE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/T\ jﬁﬁ#&%‘% Bﬁ

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

The Group has lease contracts for properties used in operations. AEBEHREARRNEENMERESL -
Leases of properties generally have lease terms of three years. MEHEE—MRBERAE=F -
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FRAEEE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
included in property and equipment and investment
properties and the movements during the year are
disclosed in notes 13 and 14 respectively, to the financial
statements.

(b) Lease liabilities (b)
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (of which the

current portion is included under other payables and
accruals) and the movements during the year are as

follows:

Carrying amount as at 1 January R—HA—BERAEE

Addition NE

Accretion of interest recognised FABRBHT EE R
during the year

Payments R

Termination &k

Carrying amount as at 31 December RTZHA=1T—BERAE

Analysed into: DI
Current portion ENE
Non-current portion EMBNEL D

166 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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REEFAMERZEUNREE
MERGERESEEREERRSF
A B9 B o Bl 4% 58 50 B 75 i 3% Bt
F13% 140

HEAE

HEBE(E ﬁﬁ(\ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ%’\ﬁ&
ErERETNEHEAER
D)HREERFERNEEHNT :

2023 2022
—E-=F —EFE-—

RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%TF T ARET T

4,767 13,979

- 1,651

122 372
(4,224) (4,738)
- (6,497)

665 4,767

665 4,102

- 665

665 4,767
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31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

LEASES (continued) 15. HE @)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEREEAN (2
(b) Lease liabilities (Continued) (b) HEEEE)
2023 2022
—=E-= —F==
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Analysed into: DT
Within one year —FR 665 4,102
In the second year F-FE - 665
665 4,767
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEAEMNIBMA DN EERE
35 to the financial statements. EIRFMIFESS ©
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (0 REZEREHESHEMNSEN
leases are as follows: T
2023 2022
—E-=F T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6) HEBENFE (iEe6) 122 372
Depreciation charge of right-of-use CREEENER (MFE7)
assets (note 7) 3,973 4,437
Depreciation charge of investment BEMENERZ (HE7)
properties (note 7) 264 343
Expense relating to short-term leases HEHEERENRX
(note 7) (Ptz%7) 13,558 11,185
Gain on termination of leases (note 7) MG 1EUWzs (FiE7) - (188)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIEE RN A S HE 17,917 16,149
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 29(c) (d) HEERS R AT ENMER
to the financial statements. T FE29(c) °
Report 2023 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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NOTES 10 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\/T\ ﬁ%#&%@ﬁﬁ

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

AEERBLEHERHFHBERKREY

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting

of various commercial properties in Chinese Mainland under x* (fisE14) - BIEEHRBE A A T E
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally FEYE HERR—RERKBEP XM
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for RBEEE - WRERIBEEZRTRESHH

Bt AEEBRFARERNES KA
BARES602,000 T (ZTE-—F: A
E#4,242,0007T) ©

periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group
during the year was RMB8,602,000 (2022: RMB4,242,000).

AEBRARRBERIZ LIRS H A7
BIHEEHENRITRERBEE R

The undiscounted lease payments receivables by the Group in
future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its

tenants are as follows: T
2023 2022
—E-=F —=FE-=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TT ARETET
Within one year 27,694 2,536
In the second year 22,834 459
In the third to fifth years, inclusive % _i£$ (BIEEEME) 34,739 =
Total 85,267 2,995
RMB’'000
AR® TR
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 R—ZTE-_—%—H—8-
and 1 January 2023: —= ::¢+ A= + H
Cost }izﬁ 748
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE -
Net carrying amount REFE 748
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of accumulated impairment RZE_=F—HA—BHMK -
B REHRE 748
Impairment during the year (note 7) FERRE (HE7) (748)
At 31 December 2023 MNZEZ=F+=H=+—H -
At 31 December 2023: RZEZ_=F+=_HA=+—H
Cost B AR 748
Accumulated impairment ZEPRE (748)
Net carrying amount AREHEE -

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing on goodwiill

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
completed the acquisition of Kunshan Honghui Property
Management Company Limited (“Kunshan Honghui”) for a
cash consideration of RMB3,500,000, which resulted in the
recognition of goodwill of RMB748,000.

The recoverable amount of this Kunshan Honghui CGU has
been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by management. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 21.6% (2022: 21.6%) per annum.
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the
five-year period is 2.5% (2022: 2.5%).

The recoverable amount of this CGU was below the carrying
amount of the CGU of which the assets belong. As affected by
the unpredicted factors, Kunshan Honghui CGU did not perform
as expected. The carrying amount of the CGU has been reduced
to its recoverable amount of nil. Therefore, provision for
impairment loss on goodwill of RMB748,000 (2022: Nil) was
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Annual Report 2023

16.

e R ERRM A

31 December 2023 —_E-_=9F+_HA=+—H

P2 (%)

72 9 ORL BRI

22 EF+_-_A=+—HBItHF
B AEBETHRBERILLBYEERE
BRAR (TEILAE]D - BeaREAA
K #3,500,0007C EHHERFEAR
#748,000 7T °

EILs BE e EE BN KRE SR
BERBETEETE  FETERAR
BEEEEMERERF RPN A
HEHWR e REBA - ZBEEMETE
BERBEE21.6% (- T - — 4 :
21.6%) MITIRE - AFHHEENIE S
MEBEA25% (T T -~ :25%)
Mg REHH -

ZHReELEMNKRESEEREE
FFBReELEEMMERE ARXEH
TAIFERAWEETE  BILABER ©FE
EBANMRARERDR REELEN
WIEEESREZENKESEAT - B
It B REREARK 748,000 (=
T F BERBEZT_=F
TZA=T—HIEFEMERPHER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

liﬁ

B B TR R M 5

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

Cash flow projections during the budget period for this CGU
are based on the management’s estimate of cash inflows/
outflows including revenue, operating expenses and working
capital requirements. The assumptions and estimation are based
on the past performance of the CGU and management'’s
expectation of market development.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the
CGU as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The following
describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Annual revenue growth rate — The predicted revenue growth
rate of the CGU for the five-year period is one of the
assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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BERHZACELEUNEREESRER
ﬂﬁ%%%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%mk/wﬁm
A BiRElE KERAXREEERSD
e F“&%ﬁ%%ﬁi?iﬁum
EXRAMEEEBUMGHRNTAS -

RZEZ=FR_ZT__F+=A
=+ HiENREELEBEMNERE
EREREARE - LT HLEEEK
BIEL RS RETER UGETT R E A
A S BARRR

FRE — FRFAEARBARRE
A B 7 B B R R ©

FhmERE - RAFHENRSE
EBUMBERKEERERTIARTERE
REENERERZ— -
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSET

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR AR T

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

17. BIE B E

Customer
relationship
EFRE%
RMB’000
ARBT R
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=%+=-A=+—H
At beginning of year: REF] :
Cost R A 1,264
Accumulated amortisation Eg 3 (611)
Net carrying amount REEE 653
Carrying amount at beginning of year REFH BREE 653
Amortisation provided during the year (note 7) FAETIREE (F3E7) (253)
Carrying amount at end of year RERMREE 400
At end of year: RER -
Cost B AR 1,264
Accumulated amortisation 2t (864)
Net carrying amount BREDFE 400
Customer
relationship
BEFEER
RMB’'000
AR®TT
At 31 December 2022 R-B-_H+-A=+—H
At beginning of year: REA] -
Cost B AR 1,264
Accumulated amortisation g 5 (358)
Net carrying amount AREEE 906
Carrying amount at beginning of year REYVRREE 906
Amortisation provided during the year (note 7) FAFTIREE (H3E7) (253)
Carrying amount at end of year RERKREE 653
At end of year: RER
Cost B AR 1,264
Accumulated amortisation g e 611)
Net carrying amount BREDFE 653
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/T\ jﬁﬁ#&%z Bﬁ

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

Share of net assets EEEEFE

Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows:

Place

of registration
Name and business

o B 32 K%
£ =ES

Fujian Junyi Property Management ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland
Company Limited
(“Fujian Junyi”)**

Particulars

of issued
and paid-up
capital
BETR
BREXFE

RMB3,000,000

BERAREMEEEERAH R A AR 3,000,000 7T

([fRR2ER )~
* Registered as a limited liability company under PRC law.
# The English name of the company represents the best effort made by

management of the Company to directly translate its Chinese name

as no official English name is registered.

The above investment is indirectly held by the Company.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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2023 2022
—E-=F —=FE}-=
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTE

2,259 1,926

AEEALLRWFRBAOT :

Percentage of equity Principal
attributable to the Group  activity
AEEEE
BHRASHL FTEXK
2023 2022

—Eg-=F Z—T-—F
50 50  Property

management

NEEE

REBEHEEEZEMOERAF -

Z AR AREMERMEREXEZTE - &
FZRBZRXEBTIAARREERN
UZARM P X BEERMS °

PR ERRRBEERS °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of Fujian

A MR AR T

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H
EA = A KR AN PR e
18. R—HXEETENETE @)

TRHFAARERENMBER (LTE

19.

Junyi that is not material: R) =
2023 2022
—EBEC-=HF —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETET
Share of the joint venture’s profit and Efh & B REFNENR
total comprehensive income for the year ~ 2 E WA %8 333 271
Carrying amount of the Group's AEEREGEEERENREEB
investment in the joint venture 2,259 1,926
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. 2 5 W IR
2023 2022
—E-= S
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR%TR
Trade receivables from related companies &Y REEE R A HE 5 fE UK 7K 1A
(note 32(a)) (BftaE 32(a)) 152,694 98,050
Trade receivables from independent FEWE L E=FHE 5 EKFIE
third parties 127,992 88,750
280,686 186,800
Less: Impairment of trade receivables BB S EWMEIERE (6,258) (5,016)
274,428 181,784
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

Trade receivables represented receivables arising from property
management services, commercial operational services and
other related services. For trade receivables from property
management services, the Group charges property management
fees on a quarterly or monthly basis and the payment is
generally due upon the issuance of demand notes. For trade
receivables from other services, the Group’s trading terms with
its customers are mainly on credit and the credit period is
generally within six months. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by management. Except for the balances
with the China SCE Group and joint ventures and associates of
the China SCE Group, the Group's trade receivables relate to a
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are interest-free.

The amounts due from the China SCE Group and joint ventures
and associates of the China SCE Group are repayable on credit
terms similar to those offered to the major customers of the
Group.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

Current to 90 days BIHAZE 90 X
91 to 180 days 91 £180K
181 to 365 days 181 £365K
Over 365 days 365 A E

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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B HRYRIERREMEEERT - &
B 2 MR M E b AE R AR 7% Y 8 UK
H-BRENMEEBRRBNE S EUHK
HmE  ARBERFENAEEERR
MEERE BEEELNFBHEKE
HIRS 3K - LR B H A AR 6 & 5 UK
HME  ARBEEFNXSHERER
REE FEHR-—RANEAAR K
5 1B 7 SR OB AR 12 1) L R U [B] Y JE MR
He-BEEETHEEAMYELR - REP
HREBRTREENESSDEMB LD
AR ERIN - ARENE 5 R UGRIA E
REZTCEFPAR AU EBEANE
EfdRER - AEEYEAELEZREK
RBERTFETAERYREMBEER
Tt - EZEWHERRE °

EUFREERPEREENSEREM
BENRMRAARRERTAKREEE
BEPHBUEERKER -

RERE A RE - B 5 RBIGRIBRNRER
AT (EREEBRL R EERE)
T

2023 2022
—E-=F —=FE-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETx ARET T
125,250 145,221
67,012 22,039
39,068 7,385
43,098 7,139
274,428 181,784
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables

are as follows:

e R ERRM A

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H
=07 KJ’W/T/\I 1 (48)

85 RIGREREREHES M

2023 2022

—E-=F —=E-
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTTT
At beginning of the year REA] 5,016 1,087
Impairment losses (note 7) BB E (FizE7) 1,242 3,929
At end of the year RER 6,258 5,016

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date

using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates

are based on days past due for groupings of various customer

segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,

customer type and

service type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted

outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and

supportable information that is available at the reporting date

about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future

economic conditions.

Report 2023
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REREDRARBRBERETRED
- At ERHEEER - BEXRDE
REEBRUEEEANZEAZTFRER
R H HEETE (ARE P A RRE
*E*”) ZitERB AR NELER

BERRERNREBEAENE@RT
EIF - 2 BRI R R SR AT 16 44 TR DRI Y
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an\

B B TR R M 5

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount
Expected credit losses

As at 31 December 2022

Expected credit loss rate
(Gross carrying amount
Expected credit losses

Current to
90 days
IS
9%
RMB'000
AREFT
R=B==Z%
TERET=E
BAGEBER 2.283%
FHEE 79,756
BHEEER 1,821
R=B==%
tZA=+-H
BHEERRE 0.918%
REAE 65,495
BEEEER 601

91to

180 days
Nz
180 %
RMB'000
ARBTR

2.284%
44312
1,012

1.087%
13,894
151

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the business and

customer risk portfolio of the Group remained stable and there

were no significant fluctuations in the historical credit loss

incurred. In addition, there is no significant change with regards

to economic indicators based on an assessment of forward-

looking information.
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AT #5118 B & A

BE S EEFREER

181to Over
365 days 365 days
181%
365K  365KHL
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETE
2.292% 4.596%
2,836 1,088
65 50
1.582% 61.639%
5310 4,051
84 2,497
K”ﬂ%%m
RESRFIBER
Tﬁiﬁ&éﬁ o IthSh -
rsHi -

BiEEEAENARE
RE)E R
Due from
related
companies Total
JE W
NAHE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETE
2.168%
152,694 280,686
3,310 6,258
1.716%
98,050 186,800
1,683 5,016
CAEERBEREFRA
WEBEEBEEES

RBHATIE AR

HEES T AL EERES) -
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

e R ERRM A

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

. TEH

KIH ~ RS M E R

RECEIVABLES IA
2023 2022
—Z=-= —E- =
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TT AR®TT
Prepayments TETRIE 138,813 32,699
Deposits e 2,653 2,339
Other receivables H fth fE YR IE 67,359 30,841
208,825 65,879
Non-current portion FEMRENEB (6,096) (8,379)
Current portion mENE S 202,729 57,500
All other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and FTAEEMBYRIEREER RERA
repayable on demand. REREE -

The Group has assessed that the credit risk of these receivables
has not increased significantly since initial recognition and
measured the impairment based on 12-month expected credit
loss. The Group considers the historical loss rate and adjusts for
forward-looking macroeconomic data in calculating the
expected credit loss rate. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the Group estimated that the expected loss rate for other
receivables was minimal under the 12-month expected credit
loss method.

The information about the credit exposure is disclosed in note
35 to the financial statements.

Report 2023

FFER

AEEDFEZFREFKENEERR
B P46 HE AR DA SR I AR AL A0 - W ER
REAEHEEBETERREE &
SEAEFEEREEBRREBEERA
EEE R H AT R KB EURETT
AB-R-_B_=FR-_T__F+_
A=+—8 AKEH: - RE12EA
BHEBERAENE M EREN AN
BEERY A RE

EHREERRMNER I ERI B REM
5F35 °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

B B TR R M 5

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHEREE
Time deposits T HATF 3K

Less: Pledged deposits (note (a))
REMREEFEED

Cash and cash equivalents

Note:

(a) As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s time deposits of
RMB1,000,000,000 were pledged to a bank in respect of the bank
and commercial bills of a business partner for the bidding of
commercial land parcels for future development of the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group amounting to
RMB1,150,187,000 (2022: RMB2,220,441,000) were
denominated in RMB. The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
of between six months to three years and earn interest at the
respective time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate
to their fair values.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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B BT (R (a)

2023 2022
—E-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
204,872 264,790
952,500 1,962,500
- (1,000,000)
1,157,372 1,227,290

i

(@ RZZEZZF+=—A=+—8 ' ~5H
A R #1,000,000,000 7T H) & T & #3177 5%
ERBGERTARAIEFBEBRITRE
¥ZR - UBHEELMEASEERR
BRZA-

PR HR A R mﬁlu/\ﬁ‘ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ
BB & RIBITFRERMERBTFRAA
Eﬁ%1,150,187,00075(_2§<::¢ N
R #2,220,441,0007T) - ARETEER
BABAREMER - AM  BEPEA
CHNEE TG BI) R (A TE - S RATE
EERATE) ASENERERERRE
HNEEBHIRITIEARE LBKEME
%ﬁgo

RITRBREFARTERNRGFE
HFEA KRG B o EHIE R BRLEN
BAB=F1%  URESEBNTEHRF
R - RITERTFRREERGT
BEIMENCENRT - RERAE
FEYHNEREEEAREHES
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RANE

22. TRADE PAYABLES

B 5 RN IR

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the R EBERE - B 5B HRIENRER
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: bain (%F?‘—r HE) T :
2023 2022
—E-=F =S
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Current to 90 days BNERZ 90 X% 92,469 64,605
91 to 365 days 91 £ 365K 23,347 5,689
Over 365 days 365 KM F 2,561 4,764
118,377 75,058

Trade payables are unsecured and interest-free and are normally
settled based on 10 to 90 days’ term.

The fair values of trade payables as at the end of the reporting

EHRNRELAEEFE®ES  B—R
LA10Z= 90 KA EARR /518

RBERERE - EHRNKBRAE

period approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts EHREERS - BREIHERRAE -
due to their relatively short maturity terms.
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS H A JE 50 IB R =+ & A
2023 2022
—E-=F —EFE-—
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5E ARBTR AREKTE
Contract liabilities BHRE (@) 253,312 197,808
Other payables H fth &3R8 110,175 43,240
Deposits received Bz E 43,259 70,645
Accruals et E R 152,040 152,978
Lease liabilities (note 15(b)) HE&E (7 150)) 665 4,767
559,451 469,438
Non-current portion — lease liabilities JERBEH — HEAE - (665)
Current portion mENE S 559,451 468,773
Represented by: (A
Contract liabilities aREaE 253,312 197,808
Current portion of other Hibh A RIA R IERTE A
payables and accruals EopERE A 306,139 270,965
559,451 468,773
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B TR R M 5

an\

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

Note:

(a) Contract liabilities include advances payments received from
customers for services yet to be provided. The net increases in
contract liabilities were mainly due to the increase in short term
advances received from customers in relation to the provision of

property managements services at the end of that year.

Included in the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2023 were
advance payments received from related companies of RMB2,518,000

(2022: RMB1,389,000) (note 32(a)).

The movements in deferred tax during the year are as follows:

At 1 January 2022
Credited to profit or loss during
the year (note 10)

At 31 December 2022 and 1
January 2023

Credited to profit or
loss during the year (note 10)

At 31 December 2023

R-ZE_—_F—H—H

FAFTAEZ (HFE10)
N—E——
+—A=+—8K
—E-=%—H—H
FANFABE
(Mf5E10)

N =%
+=—A=+—

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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By L -

(a)

RN

EBHAREBRERFRHAREE KRER
CAMARBINFEILDEEAR
FRAPHREERMEERRBE N 5 2K
B P H) R R SR N o

RZZE_=F+=ZA=+—H &84
BERENER QAR NENRARE
2,518,000t (ZE=Z—_F : AR
1,389,0007t) (Fi5E32(@a)) °

FEIEFRIBRERNMEEE T :

Right-of-use
assets

EREEE
RMB'000
ARBT T
3,424

(2,274)

1,150

(993)

157

Fair value
adjustment
arising from
acquisition of
a subsidiary
Wi —=x
o) NG|
EEW
DNAERE
RMB’000
ARET T

226

163

(63)

100

Total

# st
RMB'000
ARBT T
3,650

(2,337)

1,313

(1,056)

257
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RANE

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 24. IRIERLIE (%)
Deferred tax assets EEBEBEEE
Fair value

Losses  adjustment

available for arising
offsetting from
Lease against future acquisition of
liabilities Accruals taxable profits  subsidiaries Total
THEE WEKELR
ARERB EEW
HEEE EER RANEE AAESER @5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETE ARETL ARETE ARETR

At 1 January 2022 W-E-—#-f—-H 3,424 9,163 = = 12,587
Credited/(charged) to profit or ERAN/GIRE)
loss during the year (note 10) B (FrEE10) 2,274) 6,126 12,125 = 15,977
At 31 December 2022 i —
and 1 January 2023 +ZA=+-Ak
—ER-=f-A-H 1,150 15,289 12,125 - 28,564
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 27) WEMB AR (Fik27) - - - 32,495 32,495
Charged to profit or ERBREER (M:F10)
loss during the year (note 10) (993) - (988) - (1,981)
At 31 December 2023 RZZB_=F
+-A=1+-H 157 15,289 11,137 32,495 59,078
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and REVZBH ETELEHEEERSB
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of EERGEVBIRARPEE - UTA
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred REBMBRE 2 IRERIBERFE DT

tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

2023 2022
—E-= —ZE——
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT AR®TET

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the TEEE BN R PR

consolidated statement of financial EIEFR B A EF4
position 58,921 27,414
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the fE4R& BF 75k S0 3= AP HE R
consolidated statement of financial BEETIEA BT
position 100 163
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

liﬁ

B B TR R M 5

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

At 31 December 2023, the Group had unutilised tax losses of
RMB63,822,000 (2022: RMB49,194,000) that can be carried
forward for five years from the year in which the losses arose
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the tax entity in
which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of certain of these losses of
RMB19,226,000 (2022: RMB694,000) as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which these tax losses can be utilised.

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. The
applicable rate is 5% for the Group.

At 31 December 2023, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group’s fund will be retained
in Chinese Mainland for the expansion of the Group’s
operation, so it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately RMB1,127,257,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB857,710,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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RZFEZ=F+=-A=+—0H &5H
BIRE) R I8 B 18 A K% 63,822,000 7T
(Z=2E=—F : AR¥49,194,0007T) -
ZEREEBBIHEBEBLRNFERE
ERE  UEEHREEENTRIEERE
KEOERB &M - WARB AR
19,226,000t (ZZE =& : AR
694,000 7T) W& TEBERETCHIEE
E BRAZSEBRENBARTEL -
MzENEBRAREEBEERFE BRI
B BTNRA LA FERTE 7% 7 A
R Z EHIEEE -

AR ER B 7B ph 5% A R B R AR ST A B
REPE—EENEF A BREELR
BRI IR BB IEIN - AEE
ME AT E 5% °

RZEZ=F+=A=+—080 " LEHR
N5 B 5 HR B D K ST O B BB A BB
AN TEFOFR B 2R BB I 2 FI FE A5 ) TR0 7R 7
RERGEETIE - NRRARIEZEEFRA - A
SEME 2GR BETR A A EER
REBHES 2R - 7L 78 R &2
ZENBRARTRAIED KA BEF -
R_ZE-_=F+=-A=+—0 #EKE
P HR B A 3 BT B 1 ) 8 A T N R L L B
RELEHEAENTREZRTHAA
R#1,127,257,000c (ZTE=Z=4F : A
R#857,710,0007T) °

ARARQBAE R RIRZERE DS 5| BUER
FriSTiiaR -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RANE

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. fx AR
2023 2022
—E-=F T
Authorised (number of shares): EE (BHEE)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 FREEO.01 BT T EmA 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
2023 2022
—E-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT
Issued and fully paid: EEITREE
1,935,000,000 (31 December 2022: BREEO0.01ETH
2,075,000,000) ordinary shares of 1,935,000,000 (=& = —
HK$0.01 each +=ZA=+—8:
2,075,000,000) % & 3 A% 16,024 17,292
A summary of movements in the Company's issued share capital FARRFEBETRANEBBMAT -
during the year is as follows:
Share
Number of Issued premium
share in issue capital account Total
BT
ROBE ERTRE ROZER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_F—H—H 2,075,000,000 17,292 1,887,379 1,904,671
Share-based payment expense VAR AE R B FRF X = = 1,614 1,614
2021 final dividend T —FERERE - - (88,550) (88,550)
At 31 December 2022 NZZE——
and 1 January 2023 +-A=+—-H8k
—E-=F—Af—H 2,075,000,000 17,292 1,800,443 1,817,735
Share-based payment expense  LARZ 1D BERER A S - - 1,693 1,693
Repurchase and cancellation Bl f R s s AR 1 (B 3E)
of shares (note) (140,000,000) (1,268) (187,495) (188,763)
At 31 December 2023 RZZE_=F
+=-—A=+—8~ 1,935,000,000 16,024 1,614,641 1,630,665
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/T\ jﬁﬁ#&%z Bﬁ

31 December 2023 —E-=%+-A=+—H

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company repurchased its

own shares through the Stock Exchange as follows:

No. of

ordinary shares of

Month of repurchase

Bm A 5

January 2023
—E_=F—H
August 2023
—ZE_=F)\H
September 2023
—ZEZ=FNA

All of the above shares were cancelled during the year ended 31 December
2023. The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of HK$1,400,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,268,000). The
premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of approximately
HK$206,434,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB187,495,000) was

charged to share premium.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

TREEERRBERERARA

HK$0.01 each
ER0.01BT
ZERNEE
Shares

A%

60,000,000
7,170,000

72,830,000

140,000,000

By L -

HE—
Rl BH

Price per share

BRI ER

Highest
RS
HK$
BT

1.96

HE-_ZT—

E=HF+-RA=+—HIFE XA
FriEEERRMO AT

Aggregate

Lowest consideration paid

RIE
HK$
BT

XA RE
HK$:000
THAT
114,786

7,940

85,108

207,834

=FF+-A=+—HIEFE KL

FTERMEZEHE ANAREEITRAERIE
{8 1,400,000 7T (48 & 7 4 A K #61,268,000
JC) © E%@fo B B 1534 B 49 206,434,000 8 7T

(8=

i (B e

RH AR #187,495,0007T) B 5t A KD
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the year are presented in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC,
each of the relevant subsidiaries is required to appropriate
10% of its net profit after tax, as determined under the
Chinese Accounting Standards, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its
registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in
the relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of
association of the relevant subsidiaries, the statutory
surplus reserve may be used either to offset losses, or to
be converted to increase the share capital provided that
the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of
registered capital. The reserve cannot be used for
purposes other than those for which it is created and is
not distributable as cash dividends.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents (i) issued
capital of a subsidiary less the cost of acquisition of the
subsidiary pursuant to the Reorganisation; and (ii) the
capital contributions from the China SCE Group prior to
the completion of the reorganisation.

Annual Report 2023
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31 December 2023 — T - =4+_-H=+—H
26.

AEERBRFANBRESEREZES)
ENREFEREEER -

(a) EEBRERFEE

RIB BB R BDE R B ILH
MEARMAMERADR X4
58 B B 1 B 7R 4% B B4R % AE B9
10% HRBUEE BERH 6 - LLTIR
BrEeFEANEE BEEFHB
HEEINEFTMELRNS50% ° X
AT BER KRN E QR A
BERAAMEE TRHMMRR
AEBBFEETRARNEHEEBRX
BIREEAN EERERBKBETED
REMERE25% - EETEH
EE R B AN E A A %
TP SERRERB IR °

(b) &HtfFtE

REE A O R () B 2 A
MERTRAREREBEEANE
MBARMKAE : RiHREAT
AT AR A EE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

B B TR R M 5

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

On 6 November 2023, the Group acquired a 100% interest in
Mega Time Developments Limited (“Mega Time") and its wholly
owned subsidiaries (collectively, “Mega Time Group”) from a
fellow subsidiary of the Company. Mega Time Group is
principally engaged in properties investment in the PRC. Further
details of the acquisition are included in note 32(b) to the
financial statements. The acquisition was made as part of the
Group's strategy to expand its business into operating
commercial properties in the midst of a downturn in the
property management industry and generate greater profitability
for the shareholders. The acquisition was completed on 21
December 2023.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Mega
Time Group as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

R-ZEBE-=F+—A"H AEERAR
Na—ERRMEBARUKE T ERERE
BRAT(EE] ERE2EMBA
Al S AIEREERE]) B 100% S -
HEBETZRHPEABREMER
& o WA E — S EBH N EHRE
B 5E 32(b) ° % BB Jh AR = B R SRS 2 —
BNEMEEBITREEENBR FGEZE
BERECEHENERBRELERSE
BEANESN  c ZREER T _=F
+=—A=+—H%K

EREERKERABMNEERARDN
DNFEWAT

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
s B BE R SR Y
DR
Notes RMB’000
s ARMT
Investment properties REYHE 14 1,026,000
Deferred tax assets R IBEE 24 32,495
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBFEFEY 4,324
Trade receivables 2 5 W FIE 1,335
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEfTRIE ~ e KA R RIE 100,336
Trade payables B SN A (9,846)
Other payables and accruals Bt B R ERTE A (16,637)
Contract liabilities AHEE (3,956)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAREFERNRHREE
FERRE 1,134,051

Gain on bargain purchase recognised in other ERE fiERKRP H A WA R

income and gains in the consolidated statement T SR Y 5 (B WS ) I

of profit or loss 5,7 (44,051)
Settled by cash AR e#EE 1,090,000

FRWENBRRNRS MRS EED

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries is as follows: MEFEN AT :
RMB’000
AR®T
Cash consideration RENRE (1,090,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired MR e KRB EEEY 4,324
Total net cash outflow 4 FRR (1,085,676)
186 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
FHREEEEREERERAR T =FER



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Since the acquisition, Mega Time Group’s contributions to the
revenue and consolidated profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 was considered immaterial.

Pursuant to the acquisition, the Group has agreed to take the
assignment of a sale debt, which was arisen from certain
commercial housing sales and purchases contracts in relation to
the sale and purchase of investment properties entered into
between a subsidiary of Mega Times Group and a fellow
subsidiary of the Company that was unsecured and interest-
free, at completion, which amounted to RMB1,223,321,000.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the
year would have been RMB1,270,186,000 and
RMB271,338,000, respectively.

On 2 March 2020, the Company issued and granted 900 new
ordinary shares as restricted shares to Affluent Way and 12
employees at cash considerations of approximately
RMB149,381,000 (HK$166,500,000) and RMB24,898,000
(HK$27,750,000), respectively, which would be vested on the
condition that the employees remain in service for 5 years from
the date of grant. Accordingly, the Group measured the fair
value of these shares and recorded the excess of the fair value
over the subscription price as equity-settled compensation costs
over the estimated service period.

The fair value of ordinary shares of the Company was estimated
as at the date of grant. The following table lists the inputs to
the price-to-earnings multiples method used to estimate the fair
value:

Valuation technique

fEE M

Fair value of ordinary shares of the Valuation multiples
Company at date of grant

RAREBRNREABOAAE HEREH

The fair value of the restricted shares granted in 2020 was
RMB40,762,000, of which the Group recognised share-based
payment expenses of RMB1,693,000 during the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB1,614,000).

Annual Report 2023
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31 December 2023 —_E-_=9F+_HA=+—H

BUWBUR EREERAKEEHE
T_=Ft+-A=*+— EIJJ:EVEI’JH&Z@
ReafafERMETERX -

REBEWE  NEECDRBERKREZN
HERKEERE ZEBHEREERN—
XHMBR R EARR RN —KERNELQ

mnTﬁEﬁ&é%%,\ﬁmﬁuu%EE

EHMELE =28 AEARK
1,223,321,000 7T ° ;i KIB RERIE R R
5 o

& FF AR FHEST - BIARERA
FEM M RO &SR AARE
1,270,186,000 7T & A K # 271,338,000
JG ©

RZZE-_ZTF=ZA=-H ARRAEWBE
N 12 % (& B 317 I & HH 900 AR 7 & i Ak
ERZRHIRG REREDRLAA
R # 149,381,000 7t (166,500,000 % 7T )
» A B # 24,898,000 7t (27,750,000
) EFBRMHAREESREL B
A AFRNEETR - AL AEEE
EE&%H&@E@@MQE%@MQE@%@
BENIH T AR BHA U LRE
BRI EK A -

RAREBRODAERE LB B
B TRINEAREERIABENTREK
EEARE

Significant

unobservable input Multiples

EXRTUHERE ARE Li=E

Price to earnings multiple of 23
peers rate

FESPE

RZZEZZFERHNZRERODBOAR
BEA AR40,762,00070 £ AREE
REZEZZE-_=F+="A=+—HIF
ERERUBRMDAEEROMTRAIARE
1,693,000t (ZE=Z—F: AR¥
1,614,0007C) ©
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NOTES 10 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\/T\ ﬁ%#&%@ﬁﬁ

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had HE_Z-_-"+-H=+—H
no non-cash addition to right-of-use assets (2022: IEFE A ERELY M
RMB1,651,000) and lease liabilities (2022: RMB1,651,000) FASBEYEGFRAEEE (=T
in respect of lease arrangements for office properties. Z =% : AR¥®1,651,0007T) &

HEBB(ZZE-_—_F: ARK
1,651,000 7T) K FE3R £ 3 10 ©

Due to

Lease related
liabilities parties
B RAmE T

HEE&E MIH
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT

At 1 January 2022 RZE__F—F—H 13,979 47,060
Changes from financing cash flows BERS R (4,366) (47,060)
New leases Mg 1,651 =
Termination Ak (6,497) =
Interest expense FEFX 372 —
Interest paid classified as DEAKERCREN
operating cash flows BFE (372) =
Subtotal NEE 4,767 -
188 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RANE

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 29. &2 &8 IR &R EX Wt @)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continueq)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing b) MEETHELENEESEH
activities (Continued) (%)

Lease liabilities

HEEE
RMB'000
AR T T
At 31 December 2022 RZBEZZF+ZA=+—HBRK 4,767
and 1 January 2023 —E-=%—H—H
Changes from financing cash flows RERESRELZH (4,102)
Interest expense FERAX 122
Interest paid classified NEARKEREREN
as operating cash flows EENEl (122)
At 31 December 2023 RZE_=F+-_A=+—H 665
(c) Total cash outflow for leases () HERSRHALE
2023 2022
—EZ=F =S
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Within operating activities R EEE) A 13,680 11,557
Within financing activities REEEE A 4,102 4,366
17,782 15,923
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31 December 2023 —E - =F+=-H=+—H

30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 30. EEEH
Details of the Group’s pledged deposits are disclosed in note 21 AEEEEREFERNFIEE RN AT BR
to the financial statements. REFTE21 HE -
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. BAREYE
The Group had the following capital commitments as at the end RImERERRE  XEBHEEUTER
of the reporting period: A
2023 2022
—®=-= ===
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Acquisition of office equipment g8 /NS 13,516 16,975
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. @E TR 5
(a) Outstanding balances with related (a) EEEAEEANRMIRITAERR
companies
2023 2022
—®=-= S
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTET
Due from related companies FE W BAER A R IE
Trade related E 518
China SCE Group HEEEE 139,987 82,869
Joint ventures of the China SCE Group FHREBNG SR 10,902 13,972
Associates of the China SCE Group b8 ENCo): LN 1,805 1,209
152,694 98,050
Impairment A (3,310) (1,683)
149,384 96,367
Due from a related party FE Uk 3 B U5 R IR
Non-trade related FEZ A
China SCE Group HEEEE 640,178 649,176
Impairment AR (4,325) (4,731)
635,853 644,445
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RANE

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3. BB AR5 ®)

(a) Outstanding balances with related (a) EHEEEE AR KRNEER (B
companies (Continued)

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TRT AREKTE
Other payables H P 1S K
China SCE Group hEEEE 4,309 371
Contract liabilities aHAaE
China SCE Group FEEEE 2,454 1,278
Joint ventures of the China SCE Group PEEENGERE 20 -
Companies controlled by miREAEREREKE
Mr. Wong Lun and his family GEREMmE AR
members (together with Mr. Wong [BERXIEDZEHIE R F]
Lun, the “Wong Family”) 44 111
2,518 1,389
The non-trade amount due from a related party is FEW R T IEE HRIA/AIE
secured, bears fixed interest at 7% per annum and B FFEETEHT% RARKRK
repayable within the next twelve months (2022: repayable NREANEE(ZZE-__F: @Bif
over 12 months). The Group has assessed that the credit 12@A&ESRE) - ANEBEDFFHZ
risk of these receivables has not increased significantly ERBFENEERRTES S
since initial recognition and measured the impairment RHERBEAEE M WELR12 @A
under the general approach based on 12-month expected RAEBMEEEBEENERGEFE
credit losses. A ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nm

B B TR R M 5

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

Property management service income
from the China SCE Group

Property management service income
from the associates and joint ventures
of the China SCE Group

Property management service income
from the Wong Family

Value-added service income from the
China SCE Group

Value-added service income from the
associates and joint ventures of the
China SCE Group

Value-added service income from the
Wong Family

Commercial operational service income
from the China SCE Group

Interest income from the China SCE
Group

Rental and utility expenses paid to the
China SCE Group

Rental payments paid to the China SCE
Group*

Repayment of loan from the China
SCE Group

Purchase of car parking spaces from the
China SCE Group”

Short-term lease expenses for car parks,
common areas and advertising space
paid to the China SCE Group

Short-term lease expenses for car parks,
common areas and advertising space
paid to the joint ventures of the China
SCE Group

Loan advanced to the China SCE Group

KETFREBNDEEERB KA

KEFREEBERRN
BELERNYEEERBWA

KB ERRKROYEEERBKA
KA T LR B AR E RIS UA

KEFREBEBE QRN
BEBEMIBERBKA

KB & KK KA IE EIRGKA
KEFREENEZELRBF WA
KB EREEEF WA

AP EEENOES R
NAEXER

AR REEMOEES S
P BR SR E (E R MY B SRR
AR EREE PR A
AFREEXMNEERES -
DA N E SR
RHEE W
AFEEENESEEEXTH
B85 RRERREEMN
EHEE ST

[ AR B 5% B S (Y O B R OR
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2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
ARETx

23,446

3,952

2,119

121,294

7,185

205

7,783

45,451

683

3,825

8,998

405

12,876

63

2022

=

RMB’000
ARBT T

27,705

4,043

1,909

197,745

19,249

140

32,311

682

3,688

1,698

10,529

63
649,176
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) The Group had the following transactions

(9)

with related parties during the year:
(Continued)

* During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group leased certain properties from the China SCE Group
and the rental payments were made to reduce the
corresponding lease liabilities.

A During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group purchased car parking spaces from the China SCE
Group, certain of which were purchased at nil consideration.

During the year, the Group acquired a 100% interest in
Mega Time at a consideration of RMB1,090,000,000.
Pursuant to the acquisition, the Group has agreed to take
the assignment of sale debt at completion, which
amounted to RMB1,223,321,000. Further details of the
acquisition are included in note 27 to the financial
statements.

These transactions were carried out in accordance with
the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties
involved.

All of the above related party transactions also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the directors of
the Company represent the key management personnel
of the Group. Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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32. @R 5

(b) FREHBEBFETUIR

7 - (&)

& RBEE_T-_=FR-FT=__F
+-A=+—BLEEE ~£E
MEBREEREETYELRAS
SRR EENHESE -

A NEBE-_ZE-_=FK-_FT=-_
+TZA=1t—HLEE A£H
MASREBEEREN Hha

(9]

TEEMABKERE -

FRN K&K K AR
1,090,000,000 7t K BB E B 19
100% = © IRBEWE - NEBEE
[ 75 A K 22 B 332 A 8 S R T B A
© A ARB1,223,321,0007T °
ZWENE - T HBHN M B R
FHIE27 ©

N

ZERSGDIEMAPSHERBE
AR S AR HETT ©

FRERARA LHAERNEE
BEAEENTREENOHES
XHidh e LA BB TR 56
BRETRAUNEVAZTEREERLZ

FEBTEEEASEHM

ARAREERR ARAESFH
AEETIZERABE -EEHE
B — PR BN M S mAMIES o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R E

31 December 2023 — T - =4#+_-_H=+—H

All financial assets and liabilities of the Group as at the end of
the year are financial assets and financial liabilities stated at
amortised cost, respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
reasonably approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, amount due from a related party, cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments.

The Group did not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
Nil).

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly include cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and other
receivables, amount due from a related party and trade and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the Group introduces
conservative strategies on its risk management. To keep the
Group's exposure to these risks to a minimum, the Group has
not used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The directors review and
agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables, other receivables, amount due from a related party,
cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits
since they are substantially placed at state-owned banks and
other medium or large-sized listed banks. Management does
not expect that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with trade
receivables and amount due from a related party is not
significant. Information about the impairment provision
recognised during the year is disclosed in note 32(a) to the
financial statements.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by analysis by
customer/counterparty. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the
Group’s trade receivables from third parties and other
receivables are widely dispersed. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

31 December 2023 —E - =F+=-H=+—H

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES ﬁ g IR B ENBR

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE &)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging B = B B R A BT R F R PR BR
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum T%§'JK%EA$EIFQE5@§E'JT*AA
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which =heeFERR(ZENEBEERNA
is mainly based on past due information unless other 2EE- K?iFTETﬁEﬂ%ﬁXZKiWﬁ
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year- BN TG EMER) - -_=
end staging classification as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. T=FRZE_F4+=R :+— =N
The amounts presented are the gross carrying amounts for BERERSE 270N EREH
financial assets. BEMBRAEE -
As at 31 December 2023 R=B==5+=A=+—8H

12-month

ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12@AES
FEER BERFENRBEEES
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-K& FRE F=RE A% @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR

Trade receivables* B 5 YR - - - 280,686 280,686
Financial assets included in 3t ATBR A » & K
prepayments, depositsand  EL A1 EM AR £ 7

other receivables** BE* 70,012 - - - 70,012
Amount due from a related & I BEE 77 F0IF **
party** 640,178 - - - 640,178
Cash and cash equivalents & KR EEEY
— Not yet past due — K@ H 1,157,372 - - - 1,157,372
1,867,562 - - 280,686 2,148,248
196 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R ERRM A

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. iR EEERE R KE
AND POLICIES (continued) ()

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

FEERERR (@)
B 5 B B A T B 4R R B R (48)

R-BE-_—_F+=-A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 ATEE
FEFR REFEDEBCEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-RR FRR =R Blerx @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTE ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Trade receivables* B 5 R * - - - 186,800 186,800
Financial assets included in s ATEf 08 » &

prepayments, deposits RE M IR /9

and other receivables** S EIEE** 33,180 - - - 33,180
Amount due from a B M R Ay RO

related party** 649,176 = = = 649,176
Pledged deposits — BEAER — RBH

Not yet past due 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents & KEEZEY

— Not yet past due — R Hf 1,227,290 - - - 1,227,290

2,909,646 - - 186,800 3,096,446

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 19 to the financial
statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and amount
due from a related party is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“doubtful”.
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31 December 2023 —E - =F+=-H=+—H

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objectives are to maintain a prudent financial
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to
maintain a contingency plan for funding to ensure that the
Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
of the Group’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and
2022, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates,
based on rates as at 31 December 2023 and 2022) and the
earliest date that the Group could be required to repay:

As at 31 December 2023

BSﬁ EIREEENER
FEE S AR

REENBEERFTEENTFEBE
EERPESHXREBBRARBKRER
VHEECRSAEINERAEERS
ERBESRRREBESEK -

TRANANEENERABR T _=
FR-ZB__Ft_A=+—HBHHT
BHOREIER - W HREBEAARRIAE
eRE(BRERBRER-_ZF_=FK
TR _HF+ A=+ HNEHNE
SHEMAN S H) RAKE R K ERIE
EFRNRERBMEH

R-EBE-_=%+-A=+-—H

Within
1 year or In the 3to
ondemand second year 5 years Total
—FR
FRER B =ERF et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTRT AR®BTR
Trade payables 2 7 N I8 115,816 2,561 - 118,377
Other payables Eth & 5 5RIE K
and accruals fEEtE 153,434 - - 153,434
Lease liabilities HEAR 669 - - 669
269,919 2,561 - 272,480
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e R ERRM A

31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. i8R EE B K KE

Annual

=

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

REBE SRR &)

R=®==F+=A=+-H

Within
1 year or In the 3to
on demand second year 5 years Total
—F R
IR E K F_F ==0F HRET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETET AREFT AREBTET
Trade payables B R RIE 70,294 4,764 = 75,058
Other payables and H MR RIA K
accruals Bzt &R 113,885 - - 113,885
Lease liabilities HERE 4,224 669 - 4,893
188,403 5,433 - 193,836
Capital management BIINE T

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are

to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its

business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments

to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or

adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend

payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue

new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or

processes for managing capital during the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022.

Report 2023
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B ERRME

31 December 2023 —E - =F+=-H=+—H

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is total
current assets divided by the total current liabilities, and
liabilities to assets ratio, which is total liabilities divided by total
assets. The current ratios and liabilities to assets ratios as at the
end of each reporting period are as follows:

7f g 2 B IZ MR

BEXREE &)

ARBERRBLE (RBEELE
BRUARE) B B4R REE A B (A
AERERNEEREB) EEEAX-R
EHREHRMRORBLEREEAMRLL
KT

2023 2022
—EC-=HF -
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARBTE

Total current assets mENEERE 2,270,382 2,466,574
Total current liabilities mE e EAE 719,786 596,156
Total assets BEBE 3,396,339 3,184,944
Total liabilities AfE8E 719,886 596,984
Current ratio mENLL R 3.2 41
Liabilities to assets ratio BEREBELE 21.2% 18.7%
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31 December 2023 — T =F+-HA=+—H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36. NN BB S AR R
THE COMPANY
HREAS 2 BN B H 45 SR M0 B IS HROR

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: KEOBERINT :
2023 2022
—E-=F —EgE-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ek ARETR ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R B R RRIRE 1,592 1,592
Total non-current assets IETEEELLE 1,592 1,592
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE AT SR8 B H i FE UGRIR 199 333
Due from subsidiaries AR ENGIE e (a) 1,769,739 1,741,640
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTEREE S 6,937 165,029
Total current assets MEEELE 1,776,875 1,907,002
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Due to a subsidiary FEAST — eI B 8 A A (a) 28,086 =
Total current liabilities mEaEAE 28,086 =
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 1,748,789 1,907,002
Net assets BEFE 1,750,381 1,908,594
EQUITY Ex
Issued capital BT AR 16,024 17,292
Reserves R (b) 1,734,357 1,891,302
Total equity B 1,750,381 1,908,594
Wong Lun Niu Wei
=1 e
Director Director
o EE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

31 December 2023 —E - =F+=-H=+—H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36. KA BB RS AR R IR (4
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: Bt e -
(@)  The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayment on demand. (@) FEAEERW RENERERERE-
(b) A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: (b) AARFEBEOBMELT :
Share
premium Exchange Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
IR 13 % 18 AR ERf#E 2B st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARKEFT ARKEFT ARKEF T ARKET T
At 1 January 2022 R-_ZE-_—F—H—H 1,887,379 (47,045) (17,365) 1,822,969
Share-based payment expenses LA R A7 45 Bl 89 1~ 3R =2 1,614 - - 1,614
Total comprehensive FREEBRA(EE)
income/(loss) for the year FEE - 157,565 (2,296) 155,269
2021 final dividend —E - —FREKRE (88,550) - - (88,550)
At 31 December 2022 RZZZ—F
and 1 January 2023 +ZA=+—HBXK
—E-=F—HfF—H 1,800,443 110,520 (19,661) 1,891,302
Share-based payment expenses LARR AR A EL i 80 1~ 3R =2 1,693 - - 1,693
Total comprehensive FREEBA(EE)
income/(loss) for the year Fab] - 36,542 (7,685) 28,857
Repurchase and cancellation of shares [B] 88 & & 4 B% % (187,495) - - (187,495)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZZB_=%F
+=-—A=+—H 1,614,641 147,062 (27,346) 1,734,357

37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  37. #b /&8 15 k3%

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue PHRRERZE-_MFE=A=+tAH
by the board of directors on 27 March 2024. KEFSHERERE-
202 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities, and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFMERHE

THREAREEBER AR RFRE 2 EER
BE- RENFZERER  HREEEH#E

as extracted from the published audited financial statements and the — Z &%
Company’s prospectus dated 21 June 2021, is set out below:

AMBRREARFARNRS T ——
FRA-T—BHHNBERER :

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t+-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=f ZZ--f ZEZ--% ZZ-TH ZT-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR%®Tr ARETRT ARETT ARETFR
REVENUE i 1,247,682 1,182,371 1,230,050 805,284 574,517
Cost of sales SHER AR (837,943)  (752,413)  (649,181)  (448,707)  (362,227)
Gross profit EF 409,739 429,958 580,869 356,577 212,290
Other income and gains PN 142,982 46,357 24,004 6,817 5,391
Selling and marketing expenses HE RE R X (9,818) (1,032) (2,332) (5,351) (12,222)
Administrative expenses THRAX (193,022) (194,745  (218,525)  (135,295) (98,533)
Finance cost BB ER (122) (372) (560) (43) (112)
Share of profit/(loss) of ElE—RaE %

a joint venture mAl/ (B1E) 333 271 180 (25) =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR 350,092 280,437 383,636 222,680 106,814
Income tax expense MIERX (86,846) (67,825) (97,507) (60,170) (29,516)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 263,246 212,612 286,129 162,510 77,298
Profit attributable to: THZEEEREF

Owners of the parent [SUNGIEZ PN 257,048 208,069 280,609 155,729 70,049

Non-controlling interests IR 6,198 4,543 5,520 6,781 7,249

263,246 212,612 286,129 162,510 77,298
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEIBHHE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE BENMEZERED
INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
R “B--f —B--F —B-TF —FTANF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETIT ARETLT ARETLT ARETIL
TOTAL ASSETS HEE 3,396,339 3,184,944 3,058,734 1,117,658 1,098,753
TOTAL LIABILITIES HweE (719,886)  (596,984) (616,234) (579,974) (748,680)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  FFiZfRiEZR (20,708) (14,510) (9,967) (15,975) (9,194)
2,655,745 2,573,450 2,432,533 521,709 340,879
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